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PART |
ltem 1. Business

This report contains forward-looking statementdimithe meaning of Section 21E of the Securitiesharnge Act of 1934. Words such as
“projected,” “expects,” “believes,” “intends,” “asmes” and similar expressions are used to idefaifiyard-looking statements. These statements are
made based upon current expectations and projsctioout our business and assumptions made by owagement and are not guarantees of future
performance, nor do we assume any obligation t@igpsluch forward-looking statements after the thasereport is filed. Our actual results could
differ materially from those projected in the fonaddooking statements for many reasons, includimgrisk factors listed in Item 1A. “Risk Factors”
and the factors discussed below.

Corporate Overview

Landec Corporation and its subsidiaries (“Landeacthe “Company”) design, develop, manufacture amdket differentiated products in food
and biomedical materials markets and license tdogg@pplications to partners. The Company haspveprietary polymer technology platforms: 1)
Intelimer® polymers, and 2) hyaluronan (“HA”) bidgmers. The Company’s materials are generally petgry in that they are specially formulated
for specific customers to meet specific commeragdlications and in some cases, specific regulagmyirements. The Company’s polymer
technologies, along with its customer relationskipd trade names, are the foundation and a kesreliffiating advantage on which Landec has bu
business.

Landec has three core businesses — Food Produttieadlegy, Food Export and HA-based Biomaterialshaat which is described below.
Financial information concerning the industry segtador which the Company reported its operatiomsnd) fiscal years 2011, 2012 and 2013 is
summarized in Note 14 to the Consolidated Finariiatements.

Landec’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Apio, Inc. (“Afjpoperates our Food Products Technology businesish combines our proprietary
BreatheWay® food packaging technology with the bédjtees of a large national food supplier and veadded produce processor which sells prod
under the Eat Smart® and GreenLine® brands. In ‘Apialue-added operations, produce is processedrbsning, washing, mixing, and packaging
into bags and trays that in most cases incorphiatelec’s BreatheWay membrane technology. The BreatheWay membrane iseseshelf life and
reduces shrink (waste) for retailers and, for éegpaoducts, eliminates the need for ice duringdistribution cycle and helps to ensure that coressm
receive fresh produce by the time the product mékesay through the supply chain. Apio also licenghe BreatheWay technology to partners sut
Chiquita Brands International, Inc. (“Chiquita”)rfpackaging and distribution of bananas and to \8&héHolding 2010 Ltd., a Canadian corporation
(“Windset”), for packaging of greenhouse grown aubers, peppers and tomatoes.

Apio also operates the Food Export business thrisgiubsidiary, Cal Ex Trading Company (“Cal-ExThe Export business purchases and
sells whole fruit and vegetable products predontigdn Asian markets.

Landec’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Lifecore Biomedjdnc. (“Lifecore”), operates our HA-based Biomadls business and is principally
involved in the development and manufacture of potsl utilizing hyaluronan, a naturally occurringysaccharide that is widely distributed in the
extracellular matrix of connective tissues in arlgriacluding humans. Lifecore’s products are pritgagold for use in three medical areas: (1)
Ophthalmic, (2) Orthopedic and (3) Veterinary. Libee also supplies limited quantities of HA to cusérs pursuing other medical applications, such
as aesthetic surgery, medical device coatingsidissgineering and pharmaceuticals. Lifecore |leygrdts fermentation process to manufacture
premium, pharmaceutical-grade HA, and uses itstasi#fing capabilities to also deliver privateHaled HA finished goods to its customers. In
addition, Lifecore manufactures and sells it own-bi#sed finished goods in several foreign marketecbre is known as a premium supplier of HA.
Its name recognition allows Lifecore to attract navgtomers and sell new products and offer itsiseswith a minimal marketing and sales
infrastructure.

Landec was incorporated in California on Octoberl®B6 and reincorporated as a Delaware corporatiodovember 6, 2008. Our common
stock is listed on The NASDAQ Global Select Maruptler the symbol “LNDC".




Technology Overview

Landec has two polymer technology platforms. Thet falatform is its Intelimer polymer and the seddsLifecore’s HA.
A) Intelimer Polymers

Intelimer polymers are crystalline, hydrophobicypoérs that have unique properties and benefits.

The first unique feature of the Intelimer polymgstem is the way that it uses a temperature switcdontrol and modulate properties such as
viscosity, permeability and adhesion when varyimg materials’ temperature above and below the testyre switch. The sharp temperature switch is
adjustable at relatively low temperatures (0° @@6° C) and the changes resulting from the tempe¥awitch are relatively easy to maintain in
industrial and commercial environments. For insgamictelimer polymers can change within the ranfgene or two degrees Celsius from a non-
adhesive state to a highly tacky, adhesive stede in impermeable state to a highly permeable;statfrom a solid state to a viscous liquid state.

A second unique feature of Intelimer polymer materis its controlled release properties. The pelyis able to deliver active ingredients
with low or no burst, with a sustained release g@egiods of time. Finally, Intelimer polymers caa designed to contain up to 80% renewable
materials from components of natural raw matesatsh as rapeseed oil, palm oil or coconut oil, gamdbe supplied in biocompatible and bioerodible
forms.

Landec's proprietary polymer technology is basetherstructure and phase behavior of Intelimer ried$e The abrupt thermal transitions of
specific Intelimer materials are achieved throughdontrolled use of hydrocarbon side chains ttetttached to a polymer backbone. Below a pre-
determined switch temperature, the polymer's didéns align through weak hydrophobic interacticesuiting in a crystalline structure. When this
chain crystallizable polymer is heated to, or abeéhis switch temperature, these interactions emipted and the polymer is transformed into an
amorphous, viscous state. Because this transfaymatvolves a physical and not a chemical charfgeprocess can be repeatedly reversible. Landec
can set the polymer switch temperature anywhengdset 0° C to 100° C by varying the average len§th@side chains. The reversible transitions
between crystalline and amorphous states areraligst inFigure 1below.
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This chemical structure provides an additional fier@patially distinct regions of the Intelimerlgmer confer different physical properties
the material. Each part can be tuned independéemtiyeet the needs of a given application. For exantipe switching temperature (which arises from
one part of the chain) can be adjusted independehtdhesive properties (which arise from anogfet of the chain).




Landec's Intelimer materials are readily availabid are generally synthesized from long side-chaiglic monomers that are derived
primarily from natural materials such as coconut palm oils that are highly purified and designet¢ manufactured economically through known
synthetic processes. These acrylic-monomer rawriablt@re then polymerized by Landec leading toyrdifferent side-chain crystallizable polymers
whose properties vary depending upon the initigiemi@s and the synthetic process. Intelimer malgigan be made into many different forms,
including films, coatings, microcapsules and digeferms.

B) Hyaluronan Biopolymers

Hyaluronan is a non-crystalline, hydrophilic polyntieat exists naturally within the human body, mustably within the aqueous humor of
the eye, synovial fluid, skin and umbilical corchelviscoelastic properties and water solubility4éf make it ideal for medical applications where
lubrication and protection are critical. Becausé@&®ividespread presence in tissues, its critiol@ in normal physiology, and its high degree of
biocompatibility, the Company believes that hyahan will continue to be used for an increasingatgrof medical applications.

Hyaluronan can be produced in two ways, eitherugihdbacterial fermentation or through extractiamnfrrooster combs. Lifecore produces
HA only from fermentation, using an extremely effitt microbial fermentation process and a highfgafve purification operation.

Hyaluronan was first demonstrated to have commlamggalical utility as a viscoelastic solution in&atct surgery. In this application, it is
used for maintaining the shape of the anterior dile&rmand protecting corneal tissue during the rernand implantation of intraocular lenses. The first
ophthalmic hyaluronan product, produced by extoacfiom rooster comb tissue, became commerciabiyiavie in the United States in 1981.
Hyaluronan-based products, produced either by eo@simb extraction or by fermentation processeh asd.ifecore’s, have since gained widespread
acceptance in ophthalmology and are currently usédte majority of cataract extraction procedurethie world. Lifecore’s hyaluronan is also used as
an orthopedic carrier vehicle for allogeneic fredred demineralized bone as the active componiesi¢vices to treat the symptoms of osteoarthritis,
and as a formulation component to provide increddercity to medical devices. Lifecore’s hyalurenaas also been utilized in veterinary drug
applications to treat traumatic arthritis.

Trademarks/Trade names

Intelimer®, Landec®, Apio™, Eat Smart®, BreatheWay®@eenLine®, Clearly Fresh™, Lifecore®, LUROCOAR®BN Ortholure™ are
some of the trademarks or registered trademarksradd names of the Company in the United Statdo#rer countries. This Annual Report on Form
10-K also refers to the trademarks of other congmni

Description of Core Business

Landec participates in three core business segm@pits with the Food Products Technology and Foagdtt businesses and Lifecore with
the HA Biomaterials business.

Landec Corporation
[
Proprietary Polymer Science Technology

|

l |

Food Export Hyaluronan-based
Biomaterials

Food Products
Technology




A) Food Products Technology Business

The Company began marketing its proprietary Intefitlnased BreatheWay membranes in 1996 for useifrébh-cut produce packaging
market, historically one of the fastest growingreegts in the food industry. Landec’s proprietarg&heWaypackaging technology is used to pack
Eat Smart and GreenLine branded and private labshfcut or whole produce, resulting in a convenierady-to-eat finished product that achieves
increased shelf life and reduced shrink (wasteflauit the need for ice during the distribution cydlBese products are referred to as “value-added”
products. In 1999, the Company acquired Apio,hientlargest customer in the Food Products Techgdiaginess and one of the nation’s leading
marketers and packers of produce and specialtygoackfresh-cut vegetables. Apio utilizes statehefdrt fresh-cut processing facilities and year-
round access to quality vegetable sourcing to pregwoducts which Apio distributes to top U.S. itegeocery chains, major club stores and
foodservice customers. The Compangtoprietary BreatheWay packaging business has dmabined with Apio into a subsidiary that retatims Apic
name. This vertical integration within the Food drcts Technology business gives Landec direct adoethe large and growing fresh-cut and whole
produce market. In April 2012, Apio acquired Greegr_Holding Company (“GreenLine”), the number omegessor and marketer of value-added,
fresh-cut green beans in the U.S. GreenLine’s firmesults are included in Apio’s Food Productsfinology business (see Note 2 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements). The acquisiifc@reenLine provides Apio with new customers, nacessing locations and new distribution
centers which will allow Apio greater access to reewl existing customers. In addition, because eg@itine’s retail market share for fresh-cut green
beans, Apio sees an opportunity to cross sellatsStart® line of fresh-cut vegetables to existBrgenLine customers who are currently not carrying
the Eat Smart line of products and to cross sedeBrine® products to Eat Smart customers curreratycarrying the GreenLine line of products.

The Technology: BreatheWay Membrane Packaging

Certain types of fresh-cut and whole produce cail sp discolor rapidly when packaged in convensibpackaging materials and, therefore,
are limited in their ability to be distributed b to markets. The Company’s proprietary Breathg\Wackaging technology extends the shelf life and
quality of fresh-cut and whole produce.

Fresheut produce is cut, washed, and packaged in a floatris ready to use by the consumer and is thisaly sold at premium price leve
compared to unpackaged produce. The total U.Sh fsemduce market is estimated to be $100 billio§%20 billion. Of this, U.S. retail sales of fresh-
cut produce are estimated to comprise 10% of g&hfproduce market.

After harvesting, vegetables and fruit continueepire, consuming oxygen and releasing carboridboX 0o much or too little oxygen can
result in premature spoilage and decay. The respiraate of produce varies from vegetable to valigletand from fruit to fruit. Conventional
packaging films used today, such as polyethylemepatypropylene, can be made with modest perméaldioxygen and carbon dioxide, but often do
not provide the optimal atmosphere for the packageduce. Shortcomings of conventional packaginteneals have not significantly hindered the
growth in the fresh-cut salad market because lettuclike many vegetables and fruit, has low resigin requirements. To achieve optimal product
performance, each fruit or vegetable requiresws anique package atmosphere conditions. The cigdléacing the industry is to develop packaging
that meets the highly variable needs that eachystagquires in order to achieve value creatindgoperance. The Company believes that its
BreatheWay packaging technology possesses aledfritical functionalities required to serve thigatse market. In creating a product package, a
BreatheWay membrane is applied over a small c@ection or an aperture of a flexible film bag aaggic tray. This highly permeable “window” acts
as the mechanism to provide the majority of thetgassmission requirements for the entire packfipese membranes are designed to provide three
principal benefits:

High PermeabilityLandec's BreatheWay packaging technology is dedigmeermit transmission of oxygen and carbon diext 300 to 1,000
times the rate of conventional packaging films. TQwnpany thinks that these higher permeability leweéll facilitate the packaging diversity
required to market many types of fresh-cut and wipobduce in many package sizes and configurations.

Ability to Adjust Oxygen and Carbon Dioxide Permiéghb BreatheWay packaging can be tailored with carboride to oxygen transfer ratios
ranging from 1.0 to 12.0 to selectively transmiygen and carbon dioxide at optimum rates to susterquality and shelf life of packaged
produce. Other high permeability packaging materislich as micro-perforated films cannot differhticontrol carbon dioxide permeability
resulting in sub-optimal package atmosphere camdstfor many produce products.




Temperature Responsivendsandec has developed breathable membranes thaeadesigned to increase or decrease permeabiligsponse to
environmental temperature changes. The Compangéhadoped packaging that responds to higher oxygguirements at elevated
temperatures but is also reversible, and returits tariginal state as temperatures decline. Agébkgpiration rate of fresh produce also
increases with temperature, the BreatheWay memisrégraperature responsiveness allows packagestipemsate for the change in produce
respiration by automatically adjusting gas pernogatates. By doing so, detrimental package atmasptenditions are avoided and improy
quality is maintained through the distribution chai

The Company has demonstrated that the growth dfélsé-cut produce market has been driven by coasdemand and the willingness to
pay for convenience, freshness, uniform qualityl safety delivered to the point of sale. Landedelvek that growth of the overall produce market wil
be driven by the increasing demand for the convexiend nutrition of fresh-cut produce as nearfb ¥ Americans are diabetic and over a third of
American adults are considered obese. In additiith, recent regulations requiring more visibilitytd the calories in what we eat, demand for healthy
foods is increasing. This increasing demand wituim require packaging that provides for high guadroduce and technology that extends the shelf
life of produce that is transported to fresh-cstribbutors in bulk and pallet quantities. The Compthinks that in the future its BreatheWay packggi
technology will be useful for packaging a diverseigty of fresh-cut and whole produce products.

Landec is working with leaders in club stores, itgfacery chains and with the recent acquisitibseeenLine, food service customers. The
Company thinks it will have growth opportunities the next several years through new customersrenayative products in the United States,
expansion of its existing customer relationshipsl tarough export and shipments of specialty pae#tgoduce.

Landec manufactures its BreatheWay packaging thrgetected qualified contract manufacturers. Intamdto using BreatheWay packaging
for its value-added produce business, the Compaarkets and sells BreatheWay packaging directletecs partner food distributors.

The Business: Food Products Technology

The Food Products Technology business, which ogethtough our Apio subsidiary, had revenues of@pmately $320 million for the
fiscal year ended May 26, 2013, $208 million fog flscal year ended May 27, 2012 and $176 millartlie fiscal year ended May 29, 2011.

Based in Guadalupe, California, Apio’s primary lmesis is fresh-cut and whole value-added produgtsapity packaged in our proprietary
BreatheWay packaging. The fresh-cut value-addedymts business markets a variety of freshand whole vegetables to the top retail grocégins
club stores and food service operators. Durinditieal year ended May 26, 2013, Apio shipped apipnaiely twenty-eight million cartons of produce
to its customers throughout North America, primyairl the United States.

There are five major distinguishing characteristitépio that provide competitive advantages infle®d Products Technology market:

Value-Added Supplier: Apio has structured its business as a marketeselhel of branded and private label fresh-cut ahdlesvalue-added
produce. It is focused on selling products undeE#t Smart and GreenLine brands and private abeds for its fresh-cut and whole value-
added products. As retail grocery chains, clubest@nd food service operators consolidate, Apieeispositioned as a single source of a
broad range of products.

Reduced Farming Risks:Apio reduces its farming risk by not taking ownépsbf farmland, and instead, contracts with growfergproduce and
during certain times of the year enters into joietures with growers for produce. The year-rounwtang of produce is a key component to
the fresh-cut and whole value-added processingbssi




Access to Customer BaseApio has strategically invested in the rapidly gimogvfresh-cut and whole value-added business. Apialue-added
processing plant in Guadalupe, CA, is automatel stite-of-the-art vegetable processing equipnigait operates one large central
processing facility in one of the lowest cost gnogvregions in California, the Santa Maria Vallegddor the majority of its non-green bean
vegetable business, use its packaging technolagyaftionwide delivery. With the acquisition of Gnééne, Apio now has three East Coast
processing facilities and five East Coast distidoutenters for nationwide delivery of green beamd recently Apio began processing non-
green bean products in one of our East Coast psimeacilities to meet the next day delivery neeflsustomers.

Expanded Product Line Using Technology and Unique Bnds: Apio, through the use of its BreatheWay packagéeuipihology, is introducing
new value-added products each year. These new girotfarings range from various sizes of freshizagged products, to vegetable trays, to
whole produce, to vegetable salads and snack pBciing the last twelve months,, Apio has introdiéeur new unique products.

Products Currently in 80% of U.S. Retail Grocery Sores: With the acquisition of GreenLine, Apio now hasgwots in approximately 80% of
all U.S. retail grocery stores. This gives Apio tpportunity to cross sell Eat Smart value-added pets to GreenLine customers and
GreenLine value-added products to Eat Smart cusme

Apio established its Apio Packaging division in 8006 advance the sales of BreatheWay packagingodatyy for shelf-life sensitive
vegetables and fruit to third party partners o@sifiApio’s core value-added business. The Compsaspecialty packaging for case liner products
extends the shelf life of certain produce commeditip to 50%. This shelf life extension can endiBeutilization of alternative distribution straieg
to gain efficiencies or reach new markets whilentaning product quality to the end customer.

Apio Packaging’s first program has concentrated@manas and was formally consummated when Apigeghteto an agreement to supply
Chiquita with its proprietary banana packaging tedbgy. This global agreement applies to the ripgnconservation and shelf-life extension of
bananas. The BreatheWay packaging technology extiedshelf-life of bananas by approximately teysda

In June 2008, Apio entered into a collaboratioreagrent with Seminis Vegetable Seeds, Inc., a wimliged subsidiary of Monsanto
Company (“Monsanto”), to develop novel broccoli arailiflower products for the exclusive sale by @&pi the North American market. These novel
products are packaged in Landec’s proprietary Be&fay packaging and commercial sales started i@ B@tler Monsanto’s Beneforte® brand to
retail grocery and club store chains.

In June 2010, Apio entered into an exclusive lieeagreement with Windset for Windset to utilize tlao’s proprietary breathable packaging
to extend the shelf life of greenhouse grown cucensiipeppers and tomatoes. Commercial sales ofdadipeppers in BreatheWay packaging have
recently begun.

On February 15, 2011, Apio entered into a sharetfase agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) wittdgén Pursuant to the Purchase
Agreement, Apio purchased 150,000 senior prefeshedes for $15 million and 201 common shares fod%the “Purchased Shares”). The Company’
common shares represent a 20.1% interest in Win@lsetnon-voting senior preferred shares yieldsh avidend of 7.5% annually. The dividend is
payable within 90 days of each anniversary of tteration of the Purchase Agreement. The Purchaseeftent includes a put and call option, which
can be exercised on the sixth anniversary of threHaise Agreement whereby Apio can exercise théopell its Purchased Shares to Windset, or
Windset can exercise the call to purchase the ReezthShares from Apio, in either case, at a proalego 20.1% of the appreciation in the fair marke
value of Windset from the date of the Company’sstment through the put/call date, plus the pueipase of the Purchased Shares. Under the term:
of the arrangement with Windset, the Company igledtto designate one of five members on the Bad@irectors of Windset.




The Company thinks that hydroponically grown praglusing Windset's know how and growing practice igsult in higher yields with
competitive growing costs that will provide depelléayear round supply to Windset's customers. laitazh, the produce grown in Windset's
greenhouses has a very high safety profile as ih@&ased in the growing process. Windset owns @perates greenhouses in British Columbia,
Canada and in Nevada and California. Windset ctlyréias three million square feet of greenhousesahfornia with plans to double that capacity
by December 2013. In addition to growing producéhiir own greenhouses, Windset has numerous nirgkatrangements with other greenhouse
growers and utilizes buy/sell arrangements to rfieetuation in demand from their customers.

B) Food Export Busines:

Food Export revenues consist of revenues genefiatedthe purchase and sale of primarily whole comitydfruit and vegetable products to
Asia through Apio’s export company, Cal-Ex. The &d&xport business is a buy/sell business thatzesh commission-based margin on average in
the 5-8% range.

The Food Export business had revenues of approgiynd79 million for the fiscal year ended May 2613, $71 million for the fiscal year
ended May 27, 2012 and $62 million for the fiscgdyended May 29, 2011.

Apio is strategically positioned to benefit fromethrowth in export sales to Asia and other parthefworld over the next decade with G-
Through Cal-Ex, Apio is currently one of the largesS. exporters of broccoli to Asia. Other largpert items include apples, grapes, stonefruit and
citrus.

C) Hyaluronan-based Biomaterials Business

Our HA Biomaterials business operates through dfgcbre subsidiary, which Landec acquired in AROILO. Lifecore had revenues of
approximately $41 million for the fiscal year endddy 26, 2013, $34 million for the fiscal year eddday 27, 2012 and $33 million for the fiscal y
ended May 29, 2011.

The Technology: Hyaluronan-based Biomaterials

Lifecore uses its fermentation process and asépticulation and filling expertise to become a leadehe development of HA-based
products for multiple applications and to take adage of non-HA device and drug opportunities wheterage its expertise in manufacturing and
aseptic syringe filling capabilities. Elements dfilcore’s strategy include the following:

» Establish strategic relationships with market leeedéifecore will continue to develop applications fanoducts with partners who have
strong marketing, sales and distribution capabdito end-user markets. Through its strong reputatind history of providing premium HA products,
Lifecore has been able to establish long-termicgiahips with the market leading ophthalmology arttiopedics companies.

» Expand medical applications for HDue to the growing knowledge of the unique chiaréstics of HA, and the role it plays in normal
physiology, Lifecore continues to identify and puegurther uses for HA in other medical applicasiosuch as wound care, aesthetic surgery, drug
delivery, device coatings and pharmaceuticals.ieurapplications may involve expanding process ldgveent activity and/or additional licensing of
technology.

» Utilize manufacturing infrastructure to pursue catt aseptic filling and fermentation opportunitiésfecore is currently utilizing its
manufacturing capabilities to provide contract ggrs for customers related to aseptic filling equémt, fermentation and purification and continues t
seek new opportunities for contract services.

*  Maintain flexibility in product developmentdiaupply relationshipd.ifecore’s vertically integrated development andnun@cturing
capabilities allow it to establish a variety of t@ctual relationships with global corporate pargné&ifecore’s role in these relationships extefidm
supplying HA raw materials to manufacturing of agsply-packaged, finished sterile products to deping and manufacturing its own proprietary
products.
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Ophthalmic Applications

Cataract SurgeryA primary commercial application for LifecoseHA is in cataract surgery. HA, in the form ofiacoelastic solution, is us
to maintain a deep chamber during anterior segswageries (including cataract extraction and irdwdar lens implantation) and to protect the corneal
endothelium and other ocular tissue. These solsiti@ve been shown to reduce surgical trauma anebtheontribute to more rapid recovery with
fewer complications than were experienced pridgh®use of viscoelastics. HA-based products ard unséhe majority of cataract surgeries in the
world.

Lifecore currently sells HA for this application leading producers of ophthalmic surgical prodircthe world for inclusion in their
proprietary viscoelastic solutions.

Lifecore has developed its own viscoelastic solytldJROCOAT Ophthalmic Viscoelastic. Lifecore regsi CE marking for LUROCOAT
Ophthalmic Viscoelastic in 1997, allowing LUROCOMphthalmic Viscoelastic to be marketed and soldidatthe United States. Lifecore has
distribution agreements with multiple companiesupply its HA-based LUROCOAT Ophthalmic Viscoelastnder private label.

Lifecore estimates that its HA products have bessdun over 50 million ophthalmic patients globaligce 1983.

Orthopedic Applications

Lifecore supplies an aseptic HA solution to a costowhich utilizes the solution as a carrier vehidr its allogeneic demineralized, freeze-

dried bone in a final putty composition trademarkedDBX Demineralized Bone Matrix”. This bone pui$ provided to orthopedic surgeons through

the distribution channels established and manageldir customers.

Lifecore also supplies a private-labeled finisheth@pedic viscosupplement to another customer ahda# material to yet another customer
for formulation in their proprietary viscosupplenten

Veterinary Applications

Lifecore manufactures an aseptically processedafailabeled HA solution for use as a veterinasgosupplement in an equine injectable
drug for a customer.

Lifecore estimates that its veterinary HA produas lveen used in over 700,000 equine proceduregwidd.
Product Developmer

In conjunction with partners, Lifecore pursues pretddevelopment activities for HA-based applicasiovith certain clients. The majority of
the projects are intended to demonstrate that arfgs HA is suitable for a particular medical apption. Suitability is often measured by detailed

specifications for product characteristics sucpuity, stability, viscosity and molecular weight well as the primary efficacy for a particulardical
application in a clinical setting.
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Other Non-Core Businesses
Seeds Business — Intellicoat® Seed Coatings

Landec developed Intellicoat seed coating appbeatare designed to control seed germination timimgease crop yields, reduce risks and
extend crop-planting windows. Pollinator Plus® oogé, commercialized by Landec over a decade aga;larently available on male inbred corn
used by seed companies as a method for spreadingapon to increase yields and reduce risk in pneduction of hybrid seed corn. This business
sold to INCOTEC Holding North America, Inc. (“INC@&L”) in June 2012 (see Note 3 to the Consolidatedricial Statements).

Industrial Materials and Adhesivt

Landec’s industrial product development strategues on coatings, catalysts, resins, additivesaédhdsives in the polymer materials
market. During the product development stage, e @any identifies corporate partners to supporbtigoing development and testing of these
products, with the ultimate goal of licensing tipplications at the appropriate time. The Compacarised it proprietary pressure sensitive adhesd
Nitta Corporation“Nitta”) for use in the manufacturing of electrordomponents by their customers and the Companjidesssed its latent thermoset
catalysts technology to Air Products and Chemidals, for use in thermoset chemistries such asgpmiyurethane, and unsaturated polyester.

Personal Care and Cosmetic Applicatic

Landec’s personal care and cosmetic applicatioagegly is focused on supplying Intelimer materialfndustry leaders for use in lotions and
creams, as well as color cosmetics, lipsticks aiddare. The Company's exclusive marketing paréieProducts and Chemicals, Inc. (“Air
Products”), is currently shipping products to L’@reMentholatum, Louis Widmer, Aris Cosmetics arldeo companies for use in lotions and creams.
The rights to develop and sell Landec’s polymergfrsonal care products were licensed to Air Petedin March 2006 along with the latent catalyst
rights. The Company’s Intelimer polymers are cutlyeim over 50 personal care products worldwide.

Sales and Marketing

Apio is supported by dedicated sales and marketiagurces. Lifecore primarily sells products toteoeers under established supply
agreements and also through distribution agreeméuiifiscore does not sell to the end user, anéyetfore, has no dedicated sales and marketing
employees. The Company intends to expand its iateales capacity as more products progress togeamnercialization and as business volume
expands geographically. Apio has 36 sales and riiagkemployees, located in central California am@btighout the U.S., supporting the Food
Products Technology business and the Food Expsméss. During fiscal years 2013, 2012 and 201&sda the Company’s top five customers
accounted for approximately 40%, 45% and 44%, sy, of its revenues, with the top two custom@om the Food Products Technology segment
accounting for approximately 16% and 13%, 17% &t &And 16% and 10%, respectively, of the Comparmgyenues.

Seasonality
The Companys sales are moderately seasonal. The Food Probecisiology business can be affected by seasongherefactors which hay
impacted quarterly results, such as the high dosparcing product due to a shortage of essendilsieadded produce items. The Food Export busi

also typically recognizes a much higher percentdges revenues and profit during the first halfl@indec’s fiscal year compared to the second half.
Lifecore’s business is not significantly affectgddeasonality.

-12-




Manufacturing and Processing
Food Products Technology Busint

The manufacturing process for the Company's prtgsieBreatheWay packaging products is comprisgubdfmer manufacturing, membrane
manufacturing and label package conversion. A tpéndy toll manufacturer currently makes virtualy of the polymers for the BreatheWay
packaging system. Select outside contractors clyreranufacture the breathable membranes, and lcamate transitioned virtually all of the label
package conversion to Apio’s Guadalupe facilityrteet the increasing product demand and to provddéianal developmental capabilities.

Apio processes virtually all of its fresh-cut, vedladded non-green bean products in its procesauility located in Guadalupe, California.
Cooling of produce is done through third partied Apio Cooling LP, a separate consolidated subsidiawhich Apio has a 60% ownership interest
and is the general partner.

Apio processes its fresh-cut, value-added green peaducts, acquired with the acquisition of Graeelin April 2012, in four processing
plants located in Bowling Green, Ohio; Hanover, iggtvania; Vero Beach, Florida and Pico RiverajfGalia.

Hyaluronar-based Biomaterials Business

The commercial production of HA by Lifecore reqgifermentation, separation and purification cajit#sl Products are supplied in a vari
of bulk and single dose configurations.

Lifecore produces its HA through a bacterial fertaéon process. In the early 1980s, Lifecore inict the bacterial fermentation process to
manufacture premium pharmaceutical-grade HA, aoeived patent protection in 1985. Lifecore’s fertation process patent expired in 2002.
Previously, medical grade HA was commercially aaai through an extraction process from roosterbsorifecore believes that the fermentation
manufacturing approach is superior to rooster certikaction because of greater efficiency and fléikjh a more favorable long-term regulatory
environment, and better economies of scale in pioduarge commercial quantities.

Lifecore’s 114,000 square foot facility in Chaskéinnesota is used primarily for the HA manufactgrpprocess, formulation and aseptic
syringe and bulk filling. The Company considerd th& current inventory on-hand, together withnignufacturing capacity, will be sufficient to allow
it to meet the needs of its current customerstierforeseeable future.

Lifecore provides versatility in the manufacturioigvarious types of finished products. Currenttysupplies several different forms of HA i
variety of molecular weight fractions as powdeddygons and gels, and in a variety of bulk andjiruse finished packages. Lifecore continues to
conduct development work designed to improve prodnefficiencies and expand its capabilities thiaee a wider range of HA product
specifications in order to address the broadenpmpdunities for using HA in medical applications.

The FDA inspects the Company’s manufacturing systperiodically and requires compliance with the FD@Quality System Regulation
(“QSR"). In addition, Lifecore’s corporate partneanduct intensive quality audits of the facilitydaits operations. Lifecore also periodically caots
with independent regulatory consultants to conduwiclits of its operations. As a result, similaotber manufacturers subject to regulatory and
customer specific requirements, Lifecore’s facilitsts designed to meet applicable regulatory requérgs and has been cleared for the manufacturing
of both device and pharmaceutical products. The gzmy maintains a Quality System which complies \ajplicable standards and regulations (21
CFR 820, 21 CFR 210-211, EudraLex Volume 4, ISO853£uropean Medical Device Directive, Canadian dDevice Regulations ICH Q7, and
Australian Therapeutic Goods Regulations). Commgkawith these international standards of qualigatly assists in the marketing of Lifecore’s
products globally.
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General

Several of the raw materials used in manufacturertain of the Company’s products are currentlychased from a single source. Although
to date the Company has not experienced difficadtyuiring materials for the manufacture of its prtd, no assurance can be given that interruptions
in supplies will not occur in the future, that tBempany will be able to obtain substitute vendorgshat the Company will be able to procure
comparable materials at similar prices and terntBiwa reasonable time. Any such interruption gfgy could have a material adverse effect on the
Company'’s ability to manufacture and distributepitsducts and, consequently, could materially ahceeesely affect the Company’s business,
operating results and financial condition.

Research and Development

Landec is focusing its research and developmentiress on both existing and new product applicati&@xpenditures for research and
development for the fiscal years ended May 26, 2018/ 27, 2012 and May 29, 2011 were $9.3 milli$®,6 million and $9.3 million, respectively.
Research and development expenditures funded pypaie or governmental partners were $2.1 milliorirgy fiscal year 2013 and none in fiscal yi
2012 and 2011. The Company may seek funds foregbptiaterials research programs from U.S. governagaricies as well as from commercial
entities. The Company anticipates that it will éone to have significant research and developmquetrditures in order to maintain its competitive
position with a continuing flow of innovative, higtuality products and services. As of May 26, 2Q18)dec had 65 employees engaged in research
and development with experience in polymer andyaitcal chemistry, product application, product fafiation, mechanical and chemical engineering.

Competition

The Company operates in highly competitive anddigg@volving fields, and new developments are etgubto continue at a rapid pace.
Competition from large food processors, packagmgpanies, medical and pharmaceutical companiesassge. In addition, the nature of the
Company's collaborative arrangements may resiti icorporate partners and licensees becoming ditaongeof the Company. Many of these
competitors have substantially greater financial gathnical resources and production and marketpgbilities than the Company, and many have
substantially greater experience in conductinglftehls, obtaining regulatory approvals and maaiufdang and marketing commercial products. There
can be no assurance that these competitors wiuaateed in developing alternative technologiespnducts that are more effective, easier to use or
less expensive than those which have been or arg developed by the Company or that would render@ompany's technology and products
obsolete and non-competitive.

Patents and Proprietary Rights

The Company's success depends in large part ability to obtain patents, maintain trade secretgxtion and operate without infringing on
the proprietary rights of third parties. The Compaas had 41 U.S. patents issued of which 27 readine as of May 26, 2013 with expiration dates
ranging from 2014 to 2028. The Company's issuedoanding patents include claims relating to contpmss, devices and use of a class of
temperature and time sensitive polymers that ektibtinctive properties of permeability, adhesénd viscosity control. There can be no assurance
that any of the pending patent applications wilbpproved, that the Company will develop additiqualprietary products that are patentable, that any
patents issued to the Company will provide the Camypwith competitive advantages or will not be tdraged by any third parties or that the patents
of others will not prevent the commercializationppbducts incorporating the Company's technologytifermore, there can be no assurance that
will not independently develop similar productspticate any of the Company's products or designraddhe Company's patents. Any of the foreg:
results could have a material adverse effect oiCtimapany's business, operating results and fineoaalition.

The commercial success of the Company will alseddpin part, on its ability to avoid infringingteats issued to others. If the Company
were determined to be infringing any third partygpé, the Company could be required to pay damaites,its products or processes, obtain licenses
or cease certain activities. In addition, if paseate issued to others which contain claims thatpege or conflict with those of the Company anchsuc
competing or conflicting claims are ultimately deténed to be valid, the Company may be requireplip damages, to obtain licenses to these patents
to develop or obtain alternative technology oréase using such technology. If the Company is requd obtain any licenses, there can be no
assurance that the Company will be able to do stoammercially favorable terms, if at all. The Comypa failure to obtain a license to any technology
that it may require to commercialize its produasld have a material adverse impact on the Compdmginess, operating results and financial
condition.
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Litigation, which could result in substantial cogigshe Company, may also be necessary to enforceatents issued or licensed to the
Company or to determine the scope and validitho@itparty proprietary rights. If competitors oktiEompany prepare and file patent applications in
the United States that claim technology also clditmgthe Company, the Company may have to parteipeinterference proceedings declared by the
U.S. Patent and Trademark Office to determine fyiof invention, which could result in substanttalst to and diversion of effort by the Company,
even if the eventual outcome is favorable to then@any. Any such litigation or interference proceexliregardless of outcome, could be expensive
and time consuming and could subject the Compasigtdficant liabilities to third parties, requidésputed rights to be licensed from third parties o
require the Company to cease using such technalodyonsequently, could have a material adversetash the Company's business, operating
results and financial condition.

In addition to patent protection, the Company setie trade secrets, proprietary know-how, technoctd@dvances and customer
relationships which the Company seeks to protagtait, by confidentiality agreements with its ablbrators, employees and consultants. There can b
no assurance that these agreements will not beledathat the Company will have adequate remddiezny breach, or that the Company's trade
secrets and proprietary know-how will not otherwigeome known or be independently discovered bgrseth

Government Regulation

Government regulation in the United States andratbantries is a significant factor in the markgtof certain of the Comparg’products ar
in the Company’s ongoing research and developnwivities. Some of the Company’s products are stthifeextensive and rigorous regulation by the
FDA, which regulates some of the products as médeéces and which, in some cases, requires Priéflapproval (“PMA”), and by foreign
countries, which regulate some of the products edical devices or drugs. Under the Federal FoodgPand Cosmetic Act (“FDC Act”), the FDA
regulates the clinical testing, manufacturing, ladgg distribution, sale and promotion of medicabites in the United States.

Following the enactment of the Medical Device Ammedits of 1976 to the FDC Act, the FDA classifieddinal devices in commercial
distribution at the time of enactment (“pre-Amendrnéevices”) into one of three classes - Claskdr Ill. This classification is based on the cargr
necessary to reasonably assure the safety andieffezss of medical devices. Class | devices arsethivhose safety and effectiveness can reasonably
be assured through general controls, such as ss$tatgnt registration and labeling, and adherené&®ta mandated current QSR requirements for
devices. Most Class | devices are exempt from FDehyarket review, but some require premarket natiib (“510(k) Notification”). Class Il devices
are those whose safety and effectiveness can ralalydme assured through the use of special consoth as performance standards, post market
surveillance, patient registries and FDA guidelir@siss Il devices are devices that require a Fid# the FDA to assure their safety and
effectiveness. A PMA ordinarily must contain datani a multi-center clinical study demonstrating tewice’s safety and effectiveness for the
intended use and patient population. Class Ill deviare generally life sustaining, life supportimgmplantable devices, and also include most dsvic
that were not on the market before May 28, 197éW'levices”) and for which the FDA has not madimdifig of substantial equivalence based upon
a 510(k) Notification. A predAmendment Class Il device does not require a PMkess and until the FDA issues a regulation reggisubmission of
PMA application for the device.

The FDA requires clinical data for a PMA applicatiand has the authority to require such data f&G{k) Notification. If clinical data are
necessary, the company that sponsors the studyfallest the FDA'’s Investigational Device Exempti¢hDE") regulations governing the conduct of
human studies. The FDA's regulations require ingthal review board approval of the study anditfiermed consent of the study subjects. In
addition, for a “significant risk” device, the FDAust approve an IDE application before the studylmgin. Non-significant risk devices do not
require FDA approval of an IDE application, and emeducted under the “abbreviated IDE” requiremedtsce in effect, an IDE or abbreviated IDE
permits evaluation of devices under controlledicihconditions. After a clinical evaluation prosethe resulting data may be included in a PMA
application or a 510(k) Notification. The PMA mag Approved or the 510(k) Notification may be cldavg the FDA only after a review process that
may include FDA requests for additional data, semes requiring further studies.
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If a manufacturer or distributor of medical devicas establish to the FDA's satisfaction throudil@(k) Notification that a new device is
substantially equivalent to what is called a “poadé device,” i.e., a legally marketed Class | &s€ 1| medical device or a legally marketed pre-
Amendment Class Il device for which the FDA has mquired a PMA, the manufacturer or distribut@ymmarket the new device. In the 510(k)
Notification, a manufacturer or distributor makedam of substantial equivalence, which the FDAymequire to be supported by various type
information, including data from clinical studiessijowing that the new device is as safe and effedétivits intended use as the predicate device.

Following submission of the 510(k) Notificationgtimanufacturer or distributor may not place the dewice into commercial distribution
until the FDA issues a “substantial equivalenceedmination finding the new device to be substdigtiquivalent to a predicate device. The FDA has
a 90 day period in which to respond to a 510(k)ifidattion (30 days for a Special 510(k)). Dependimgthe specific submission and subsequent
agency information requests, the 510(k) Notificatiwmocess can take significantly longer to complétee FDA may agree with the manufacturer or
distributor that the new device is substantiallyigglent to a predicate device and allow the newiadeto be marketed in the United States. The FDA
may, however, determine that the new device isuabstantially equivalent and require the manufaetar distributor to submit a PMA or require
further information, such as additional test dateluding data from clinical studies, before igisle to make a determination regarding substantial
equivalence. Although the PMA process is signifttamore complex, time-consuming and expensive tharb10(k) Notification process, the latter
process can also be expensive and substantially t& market introduction of a product. Modificets$ to a device that is marketed under a 510(k)
Notification might require submission of a new 3d)Qgrior to their implementation, although some iificdtions can be made througt“note to file”
procedure described in FDA guidance.

For devices that cannot be found “substantiallyieant” to a predicate device, the manufacturestsubmit a PMA application, petition for
reclassification, or submit a PMA application i tde novo process. A PMA must contain informatiorthe materials and manufacturing process for
the device, results of preclinical testing, clinidata, and labeling for the device. The FDA ha8 d8ys to review a PMA application, but may request
additional information, which could include addita studies. The FDA might refer a PMA to an adwiscommittee of outside experts to review and
make recommendation on whether a device shoulgpeeed. After considering the data in the PMA &gtion and the recommendations of an
advisory committee, the FDA can approve the devdpprove the device with conditions or refuse apairdevices approved by the FDA are subject
to periodic reporting requirements, and may beexthp restrictions on sale, distribution or use.

Hyaluronan products are generally Class Il devitesases where the Company is supplying hyalurdoa corporate partner as a raw
material or producing a finished product undercarise for the partner, the corporate partner gresble for obtaining the appropriate FDA cleasnc
or approval. Export of the Company'’s hyaluronardpicis generally requires approval of the importiogntry and compliance with the export
provisions of the FDC Act.

Other regulatory requirements are placed on theufaature, processing, packaging, labeling, distitn recordkeeping and reporting of a
medical device and on the quality control procedusech as the FDA'’s device QSR regulations. Mantufang facilities are subject to periodic
inspections by the FDA to assure compliance withicdeQSR requirements. Lifecore’s facility is sutijeo inspections as both a device and a drug
manufacturing operation. For PMA devices, the Camygda required to submit an annual report and taialbapproval of a PMA supplement for
modifications to the device or its labeling. Othpplicable FDA requirements include the medicalickeveporting (“MDR”)regulation, which require
that the Company provide information to the FDAaeting deaths or serious injuries alleged to haentassociated with the use of its devices, as
as product malfunctions that would likely causeantribute to death or serious injury if the matftion were to recur. The FDA also requires repg
regarding notices of correction and the removal ofedical device.
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If the Company is not in compliance with FDA re@urents, the FDA or the federal government can adecall, detain the Company’s
devices, refuse to grant 510(k) Notification cleexes or PMA approvals, withdraw or limit producpegvals, institute proceedings to seize the
Company'’s devices, seek injunctions to controlroehfbit marketing and sales of the Company’s deyjiessess civil money penalties and impose
criminal sanctions against the Company, its offaarits employees.

There can be no assurance that any of the Compelyisal studies will show safety or effectivengggt 510(k) Notifications or PMA
applications or supplemental applications will bbrsitted or, if submitted, accepted for filing; tleeny of the Company’s products that require
clearance of a 510(k) Notification or approval @A application or PMA supplement will obtain sudbarance or approval on a timely basis, on
terms acceptable to the Company for the purposetoflly marketing the products, or at all; or tfefiowing any such clearance or approval
previously unknown problems will not result in mtions on the marketing of the products or withaal of clearance or approval.

Product Liability

Product liability claims may be asserted with respe the Company’s products. The Company maintainduct liability insurance coverage
in amounts the Company deems to be adequate. Thrrge no assurance that the Company will havémrit resources to satisfy product claims if
they exceed available insurance coverage.

Employees

As of May 26, 2013, Landec had 526 full-time empgley, of whom 431 were dedicated to research, dewelot, manufacturing, quality
control and regulatory affairs and 95 were dedit&besales, marketing and administrative activitiemdec intends to recruit additional personnel in
connection with the development, manufacturing mwadketing of its products. None of Landec's empésyis represented by a union, and
Landec considers its relationship with its emplaygebe good.

Available Information

Landec’s website is http://www.landec.com. Landexkes available free of charge its annual, quargarty current reports, and any
amendments to those reports, as soon as reasgmabticable after electronically filing such regowtith the SEC. Information contained on our
website is not part of this Report.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Landec desires to take advantage of the “Safe Hapbovisions of the Private Securities Litigati®eform Act of 1995 and of Section 21E
and Rule 3b-6 under the Securities Exchange AtB8#. Specifically, Landec wishes to alert readeas the following important factors could in the
future affect, and in the past have affected, Latsdactual results and could cause Landec’s refuitisiture periods to differ materially from those
expressed in any forward-looking statements madear lon behalf of Landec. Landec assumes no obtigad update such forwatdeking statement:

Lapses in disclosure controls and procedures oreimtal control over financial reporting could mateally and adversely affect the Compée's
operations, profitability or reputation.

We are committed to maintaining high standardsitgrnal control over financial reporting and distloe controls and procedures.
Nevertheless, lapses or deficiencies in disclosargrols and procedures or in our internal cordr@r financial reporting may occur from time to ér
On January 2, 2013, we reported that our audit ctteereached a determination to restate our puslydiled interim financial statements for the fi
fiscal quarter of 2013 and that our previouslydilaterim financial statements for the first fisqaiarter of 2013 should not be relied upon. We also
reported management’s determination that a mategakness existed in our internal control overrfoial reporting at August 26, 2012. As a result of
the material weakness, management also concludéduh disclosure controls and procedures wereffiettive at August 26, 2012.
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There can be no assurance that our disclosureat®aind procedures will be effective in preventngiaterial weakness or significant
deficiency in internal control over financial reing from occurring in the future. Any such lapsegleficiencies may materially and adversely affect
our business and results of operations or finamaiatition, restrict our ability to access the talpinarkets, require us to expend resources t@cbrr
the lapses or deficiencies, expose us to regulatolggal proceedings, harm our reputation, ormwthee cause a decline in investor confidence.

Adverse Weather Conditions and Other Acts of GodyM2ause Substantial Decreases in Our Sales andfmréases in Our Cosi

Our Food Products Technology business is subjegttiher conditions that affect commodity pricespaquality and yields, and decisions
growers regarding crops to be planted. Crop diseaseé severe conditions, particularly weather dgms such as unexpected or excessive rain or
other precipitation, unseasonable temperatureuduiins, floods, droughts, frosts, windstorms,teprakes and hurricanes, may adversely affect the
supply of vegetables and fruits used in our businggich could reduce the sales volumes and/oe&ss the unit production costs. In fiscal year 2013
the Company’s operating income was negatively irrgghby approximately $5.0 million because of weatleéated produce sourcing issues in the
Food Products Technology business. Because aism@mifportion of the costs are fixed and contragteatdvance of each operating year, volume
declines reflecting production interruptions oreatfactors could result in increases in unit praunccosts which could result in substantial loszed
weaken our financial condition.

The Global Economy is Experiencing Continued Volé Following the Recent Economic Downturn, Whickay Have an Adverse Effect on Our
Business

In recent years, the U.S. and international econanayfinancial markets experienced a significamivelown and volatility due to uncertaint
related to the availability of credit, energy pscdifficulties in the banking and financial semscsectors, softness in the housing market, sgverel
diminished market liquidity, geopolitical confli¢tialling consumer confidence and high unemploymatgs beginning in 2008. Ongoing volatility in
the economy and financial markets could furthed lmareduced demand for our products, which in,twould reduce our revenues and adversely
affect our business, financial condition and resaftoperations. In particular, volatility in theogal markets have resulted in softer demand ang mo
conservative purchasing decisions by customerlydimg a tendency toward lower-priced products,cliidould negatively impact our revenues, gross
margins and results of operations. In addition teduction in sales, our profitability may decrebseause we may not be able to reduce costs at the
same rate as our sales decline. We cannot prédictiimate severity or length of the current périd volatility, whether the recent signs of ecomom
recovery will prove sustainable or the timing oveséty of future economic or industry downturns.

Given the current uncertain economic environmeut,coistomers, suppliers, and partners may havieulifes obtaining capital at adequate
historical levels to finance their ongoing businasd operations, which could impair their abilibynhake timely payments to us. This may result in
lower sales and/or inventory that may not be sd¢eabbad debt expense for Landec. In additioméoimpact of the current market uncertainty on our
customers, some of our vendors and growers mayriexjge a reduction in their availability of fundsdacash flows, which could negatively impact
their business as well as ours. A further worsewpiniie economic environment or continued or insegbvolatility of the U.S. economy, including
increased volatility in the credit markets, coutiV@rsely impact our customers’ and vendors’ abdityvillingness to conduct business with us on the
same terms or at the same levels as they haveibisty. Further, this economic volatility and umgnty about future economic conditions makes it
challenging for Landec to forecast its operatinguties, make business decisions, and identify glesithat may affect its business, sources andaises
cash, financial condition and results of operations
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Our Future Operating Results Are Likely to FluctuatWhich May Cause Our Stock Price to Decline

In the past, our results of operations have flueiaignificantly from quarter to quarter and axpexted to continue to fluctuate in the future.
Apio can be affected by seasonal and weather faetbich have impacted our financial results dua $tortage of essential value-added produce
items, including the approximate $5.0 million négaimpact on operating income which occurred stdi year 2013 due to weather-related produce
sourcing issues. Our earnings may also fluctuadedan our ability to collect accounts receivabberf customers and notes receivable from growers
and on price fluctuations in the fresh vegetabtesfeuits markets. Other factors that affect ouerggpions include:

the seasonality and availability of our supplies,

our ability to process produce during critical hest/periods,

the timing and effects of ripening,

the degree of perishability,

the effectiveness of worldwide distribution systems

total worldwide industry volumes,

the seasonality and timing of consumer demand,

foreign currency fluctuations, and

foreign importation restrictions and foreign pal risks.

As a result of these and other factors, we exmecthtinue to experience fluctuations in quarteggrating results.

Uncertainty Relating To Integration Of New Businegsquisitions.

The successful integration of new business acipnisit including the GreenLine acquisition, may fiegjgubstantial effort from the
Company's management. The diversion of the attewtficnanagement and any difficulties encounterdtiéntransition process could have a material
adverse effect on the Company's ability to realimeanticipated benefits of the acquisitions. Tinessful combination of new businesses also
requires coordination of research and developmaititees, manufacturing, and sales and marketfifigres. In addition, the process of combining
organizations located in different regions of thateld States could cause the interruption of, lesa of momentum in, the Company's activities. €her
can be no assurance that the Company will be abietain key management, technical, sales and mestsupport personnel, or that the Company will
realize the anticipated benefits of any acquis&j@and the failure to do so would have a matedaéese effect on the Company's business, results of
operations and financial condition.

We May Not Be Able to Achieve Acceptance of Our Newducts in the Marketplace

Our success in generating significant sales ofpooducts depends in part on our ability and outrigeis and licensees to achieve market
acceptance of our new products and technology €ktent to which, and rate at which, we achieve miaakceptance and penetration of our current
and future products is a function of many varialietuding, but not limited to:

price,

safety,

efficacy,

reliability,

conversion costs,

regulatory approvals,

marketing and sales efforts, and

general economic conditions affecting purchasirttepas.
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We may not be able to develop and introduce newyms and technologies in a timely manner or nesdpets and technologies may not
gain market acceptance. We or our partners/custarerin the early stage of product commerciabizeif certain Intelimer-based specialty
packaging, HA-based products and other Intelimémper products and many of our potential productsia development. We expect that our future
growth will depend in large part on our or our pars/customers ability to develop and market nevdypets in our target markets and in new markets.
In particular, we expect that our ability to compeffectively with existing food products, induatrimedical and pharmaceutical companies will
depend substantially on developing, commercializawieving market acceptance of and reducingaleaf producing our products. In addition,
commercial applications of our temperature switolymer technology are relatively new and evolvi@gr failure to develop new products or the
failure of our new products to achieve market atarege would have a material adverse effect on osiness, results of operations and financial
condition.

We Face Strong Competition in the Marketplace

Competitors may succeed in developing alternagebrologies and products that are more effectagieeto use or less expensive than those
which have been or are being developed by us ¢mtbald render our technology and products obsaaténon-competitive. We operate in highly
competitive and rapidly evolving fields, and newelepments are expected to continue at a rapid. @zaapetition from large food products,
industrial, medical and pharmaceutical companiexEcted to be intense. In addition, the natui@uofcollaborative arrangements may result in our
corporate partners and licensees becoming our ditonge Many of these competitors have substagt@iéater financial and technical resources and
production and marketing capabilities than we dal, may have substantially greater experience ieating clinical and field trials, obtaining
regulatory approvals and manufacturing and margetommercial products.

We Have a Concentration of Manufacturing for Apioral Lifecore and May Have to Depend on Third PartiessManufacture Our Products

Any disruptions in our primary manufacturing operatat Apio’s facility in Guadalupe, California bifecore’s facility in Chaska, Minnesota
would reduce our ability to sell our products armulvd have a material adverse effect on our findmeigults. Additionally, we may need to consider
seeking collaborative arrangements with other congsato manufacture our products. If we become niggret upon third parties for the manufacture
of our products, our profit margins and our abitibydevelop and deliver those products on a tirbelis may be adversely affected. Failures by third
parties may impair our ability to deliver produots a timely basis and impair our competitive positiwe may not be able to continue to successfully
operate our manufacturing operations at acceptaids, with acceptable yields, and retain adequé#igihed personnel.

Our Dependence on Single-Source Suppliers and Sar\Rroviders May Cause Disruption in Our Operatio8sould Any Supplier Fail to Deliver
Materials

We may experience difficulty acquiring materialsservices for the manufacture of our products omag not be able to obtain substitute
vendors. We may not be able to procure comparahtenmls at similar prices and terms within a reasde time. Several services that are provided to
Apio are obtained from a single provider. Sevefdahe raw materials we use to manufacture our prtsdare currently purchased from a single source,
including some monomers used to synthesize Intelpolymers, substrate materials for our breathed#enbrane products and raw materials for our
HA products. Any interruption of our relationshiptlvsingle-source suppliers or service providensldaelay product shipments and materially harm
our business.
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We May Be Unable to Adequately Protect Our Intelieal Property Rights

We may receive notices from third parties, inclgdgome of our competitors, claiming infringementday products of patent and other
proprietary rights. Regardless of their merit, mying to any such claim could be time-consumiegult in costly litigation and require us to enter
royalty and licensing agreements which may notffered or available on terms acceptable to ussliecessful claim is made against us and we fail to
develop or license a substitute technology, wedcbel required to alter our products or processdanbusiness, results of operations or financial
position could be materially adversely affectedr uccess depends in large part on our abilityotaio patents, maintain trade secret protection and
operate without infringing on the proprietary rigluf third parties. Any pending patent applicatiamesfile may not be approved and we may not be
able to develop additional proprietary productg #ra patentable. Any patents issued to us mapnoeide us with competitive advantages or may be
challenged by third parties. Patents held by othrexg prevent the commercialization of products ipogating our technology. Furthermore, others
may independently develop similar products, dupdicaur products or design around our patents.

Our Operations Are Subject to Regulations that Ditly Impact Our Business

Our products and operations are subject to govantaheegulation in the United States and foreignntdges. The manufacture of our prodt
is subject to periodic inspection by regulatoryhauities. We may not be able to obtain necessayylatory approvals on a timely basis or at all.dye
in receipt of or failure to receive approvals asd®f previously received approvals would have teriad adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations. Although weehao reason to believe that we will not be ableamply with all applicable regulations regarding
the manufacture and sale of our products and polynagerials, regulations are always subject to ghaand depend heavily on administrative
interpretations and the country in which the prdadaee sold. Future changes in regulations orpnégaitions relating to matters such as safe working
conditions, laboratory and manufacturing practieesironmental controls, and disposal of hazardwysotentially hazardous substances may
adversely affect our business.

We are subject to FDA rules and regulations coringrthe safety of the food products handled and bglApio, and the facilities in which
they are packed and processed. Failure to complythe applicable regulatory requirements can, apather things, result in:

fines, injunctions, civil penalties, and suspensjon

withdrawal of regulatory approvals,

product recalls and product seizures, includingagsn of manufacturing and sales,
operating restrictions, and

criminal prosecution.

We may be required to incur significant costs tmpty with the laws and regulations in the futureiebhmay have a material adverse effect
on our business, operating results and financiadlition.

Our food packaging products are subject to reguiatinder the Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act (the “FR€). Under the FDC Act, any
substance that when used as intended may reasdreablpected to become, directly or indirectlypmponent or otherwise affect the characteristics
of any food may be regulated as a food additivessithe substance is generally recognized asFsadd.packaging materials are generally not
considered food additives by the FDA because thesducts are not expected to become componentodfunder their expected conditions of use.
We consider our breathable membrane product tofbedapackaging material not subject to regulatoapproval by the FDA. We have not received
any communication from the FDA concerning our dnebte membrane product. If the FDA were to deteentiirat our breathable membrane products
are food additives, we may be required to subrfobd additive petition for approval by the FDA. Tloed additive petition process is lengthy,
expensive and uncertain. A determination by the Fbs4 a food additive petition is necessary wowddéha material adverse effect on our business,
operating results and financial condition.

Our Food Products Technology business is subjetiet®erishable Agricultural Commodities Act (“PAGAaw. PACA regulates fair trade
standards in the fresh produce industry and gowdtitse products sold by Apio. Our failure to cdgnwith the PACA requirements could among
other things, result in civil penalties, suspengionevocation of a license to sell produce, anthéxmost egregious cases, criminal prosecutioighwh
could have a material adverse effect on our busines

-21-




Lifecore’s existing products and its products undievelopment are considered to be medical devivasteerefore, require clearance or
approval by the FDA before commercial sales cambéde in the United States. The products also reqé approval of foreign government agencies
before sales may be made in many other countriees pfocess of obtaining these clearances or appreages according to the nature and use of the
product. It can involve lengthy and detailed safefficacy and clinical studies, as well as exteasite inspections and lengthy regulatory agency
reviews. There can be no assurance that any oéthered clearances or approvals will be granted timely basis, if at all.

In addition, most of the existing products beintyiday Lifecore and its customers are subject tdicoed regulation by the FDA, various st
agencies and foreign regulatory agencies whichlasgmanufacturing, labeling and record keeping@dares for such products. Marketing cleara
or approvals by these agencies can be withdrawnalizglure to comply with regulatory standardgtoe occurrence of unforeseen problems following
initial clearance or approval. These agencies tsamlimit or prevent the manufacture or distributiof Lifecore’s products. A determination that
Lifecore is in violation of such regulations coldéd to the imposition of civil penalties, includifines, product recalls or product seizures, iofioms
and, in extreme cases, criminal sanctions.

Federal, state and local regulations impose vagowgonmental controls on the use, storage, digehar disposal of toxic, volatile or
otherwise hazardous chemicals and gases used maftime manufacturing processes. Our failure tdrobthe use of, or to restrict adequately the
discharge of, hazardous substances under prestritice regulations could subject us to substalisility or could cause our manufacturing
operations to be suspended and changes in envirdgahnegulations may impose the need for additieapital equipment or other requirements.

We Depend on Strategic Partners and Licenses fotlre Development

Our strategy for development, clinical and fielgtieg, manufacture, commercialization and marketimgsome of our current and future
products includes entering into various collabaragiwith corporate partners, licensees and otkiéesare dependent on our corporate partners to
develop, test, manufacture and/or market some opmducts. Although we believe that our partnarghiese collaborations have an economic
motivation to succeed in performing their contratiesponsibilities, the amount and timing of reses to be devoted to these activities are notimith
our control. Our partners may not perform theiigdtions as expected or we may not derive any mddit revenue from the arrangements. Our
partners may not pay any additional option or Igzefees to us or may not develop, market or payaysity fees related to products under the
agreements. Moreover, some of the collaborativeeagents provide that they may be terminated adidwgetion of the corporate partner, and some of
the collaborative agreements provide for termimatinder other circumstances. Our partners may pusisting or alternative technologies in

preference to our technology. Furthermore, we nwiyba able to negotiate additional collaborativaagements in the future on acceptable terms, if at
all, and our collaborative arrangements may naiumeessful.

Our International Sales May Expose Our BusinessAdditional Risks

For fiscal year 2013, approximately 30% of our ltoéeenues were derived from product sales to matgonal customers. A number of risks
are inherent in international transactions. Intéamal sales and operations may be limited or gid by any of the following:

regulatory approval process,
government controls,

export license requirements,
political instability,

price controls,

trade restrictions,

changes in tariffs, or

difficulties in staffing and managing internatiormgderations.
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Foreign regulatory agencies have or may establistiyet standards different from those in the Unii¢ates, and any inability to obtain
foreign regulatory approvals on a timely basis ddwdve a material adverse effect on our internatibosiness, and our financial condition and result
of operations. While our foreign sales are curgepticed in dollars, fluctuations in currency exoba rates may reduce the demand for our produc
increasing the price of our products in the curyesicthe countries to which the products are sBlelgulatory, geopolitical and other factors may
adversely impact our operations in the future quiee us to modify our current business practices.

Cancellations or Delays of Orders by Our Customé&tay Adversely Affect Our Business

During fiscal year 2013, sales to our top five oustrs accounted for approximately 40% of our reespwith our two largest customers fr
our Food Products Technology segment accountingdproximately 16% and 13%, respectively of ouersies. We expect that, for the foreseeable
future, a limited number of customers may contitsuaccount for a substantial portion of our reven&e may experience changes in the compositior
of our customer base as we have experienced ipabte The reduction, delay or cancellation of adesm one or more major customers for any
reason or the loss of one or more of our majorazusts could materially and adversely affect ouiii®ss, operating results and financial condition. |
addition, since some of the products processeddiy &nd Lifecore are sole sourced to customerspparating results could be adversely affected if
one or more of our major customers were to devethpr sources of supply. Our current customers maaygontinue to place orders, orders by existing
customers may be canceled or may not continuesdéetiels of previous periods or we may not be &blebtain orders from new customers.

Our Sale of Some Products May Increase Our ExpostoeProduct Liability Claims

The testing, manufacturing, marketing, and sathefproducts we develop involve an inherent riskltEfgations of product liability. If any of
our products were determined or alleged to be coint@ted or defective or to have caused a harmfiilant to an end-customer, we could incur
substantial costs in responding to complaintstigaliion regarding our products and our produchf@riznage could be materially damaged. Such e
may have a material adverse effect on our busingesating results and financial condition. Althbuge have taken and intend to continue to take
what we consider to be appropriate precautionsitinmze exposure to product liability claims, we yn#ot be able to avoid significant liability. We
currently maintain product liability insurance. Whive think the coverage and limits are consistétit industry standards, our coverage may not be
adequate or may not continue to be available atcaaptable cost, if at all. A product liability ichg product recall or other claim with respect to
uninsured liabilities or in excess of insured ligigis could have a material adverse effect onbasiness, operating results and financial condition

Our Stock Price May Fluctuate in Accordance with Meet Conditions
The following events may cause the market priceurfcommon stock to fluctuate significantly:
technological innovations applicable to our product
our attainment of (or failure to attain) milestomeshe commercialization of our technology,
our development of new products or the developrma&new products by our competitors,
new patents or changes in existing patents appdi¢atour products,
our acquisition of new businesses or the salespatial of a part of our businesses,
development of new collaborative arrangements bypuscompetitors or other parties,
changes in government regulations applicable tdasmess,
changes in investor perception of our business,
fluctuations in our operating results, and

changes in the general market conditions in ounstrg.

These broad fluctuations may adslgraffect the market price of our common stock.
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We May Be Exposed to Employment Related Claims @odts that Could Materially Adversely Affect Our Bimess

We have been subject in the past, and may be ifuthee, to claims by employees based on allegsatadrdiscrimination, negligence,
harassment and inadvertent employment of undocledembrkers or unlicensed personnel, and we maybjec to payment of workers'
compensation claims and other similar claims. Wddcocur substantial costs and our managementicgp#nd a significant amount of time
responding to such complaints or litigation regagdemployee claims, which may have a material egveffect on our business, operating results and
financial condition.

We Are Dependent on Our Key Employees and if Onéare of Them Were to Leave, We Could ExperiencéfiDulties in Replacing Them and
Our Operating Results Could Suffer

The success of our business depends to a sigrtiedent on the continued service and performaffieerelatively small number of key sen
management, technical, sales, and marketing peekoFime loss of any of our key personnel for areeded period would likely harm our business. In
addition, competition for senior level personnethainowledge and experience in our different linEbusiness is intense. If any of our key personnel
were to leave, we would need to devote substamialurces and management attention to replace themresult, management attention may be
diverted from managing our business, and we magl teepay higher compensation to replace these grapto

We May Issue Preferred Stock with Preferential Riglthat Could Affect Your Rights

The issuance of shares of preferred stock coulé te effect of making it more difficult for a tHiparty to acquire a majority of our
outstanding stock, and the holders of such predesteck could have voting, dividend, liquidatiordasther rights superior to those of holders of our
Common Stock.

We Have Never Paid any Dividends on Our Common &toc

We have not paid any dividends on our Common Ssauée inception and do not expect to in the foralskeefuture. Any dividends may be
subject to preferential dividends payable on amfepred stock we may issue.

Our Profitability Could Be Materially and Adverselbffected if it Is Determined that the Book Valud Goodwill is Higher than Fair Value

Our balance sheet includes an amount designategbadwill” that represents a portion of our assats our stockholders’ equity. Goodwiill
arises when an acquirer pays more for a businesstlte fair value of the tangible and separatelgsueble intangible net assets. In accordance with
accounting guidance, the amortization of goodval fveen replaced with an “impairment test” whigurees that we compare the fair value of
goodwill to its book value at least annually andrenfsequently if circumstances indicate a possilpairment. If we determine at any time in the
future that the book value of goodwill is higheahfair value then the difference must be writtéinwshich could materially and adversely affect our
reported profitability.

1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.
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Item 2. Properties

As of May 26, 2013, the Company owned or leaseggmt@s in Menlo Park, Arroyo Grande, Guadalupe Ricd Rivera, California; Chaska,
Minnesota; Bowling Green, Perrysburg and McClurkio®Hanover, Pennsylvania; Vero Beach, FloridagRMill, South Carolina and Chester, New
York.

These properties are described below:

Acres
Business of Lease
Location Segment Ownership Facilities Land Expiration
Menlo Park, CA Corporate Leased 14,600 square feet of office and — 12/31/14
laboratory space
Chaska, MN HA-based Owned 114,000 square feet of office, 27.5 —
Biomaterials laboratory and manufacturing space
Guadalupe, CA Food Products Owned 199,000 square feet of office space, 17.7 —
Technology manufacturing and cold storage
Bowling Green, OH Food Products Owned 55,900 square feet of office space, 7.7 —
Technology manufacturing and cold storage
Hanover, PA Food Products Owned 18,700 square feet of office space, 15.3 —
Technology manufacturing and cold storage
Vero Beach, FL Food Products Leased 9,200 square feet of office space, — 12/31/14
Technology manufacturing and cold storage
Pico Rivera, CA Food Products Leased 6,300 square feet of office space, — 8/31/13
Technology manufacturing and cold storage
Rock Hill, SC Food Products Owned 16,400 square feet of cold storage 3.6 —
Technology and office space
Chester, NY Food Products Leased 32,900 square feet of cold storage — Month-to-Month
Technology and office space
McClure, OH Food Products Leased Farm land 185 12/31/14
Technology
Perrysburg, OH Food Products Leased 9,000 square feet of office space — 10/31/14
Technology
Arroyo Grande, CA Food Export Leased 1,100 square feet of office space — Month-to-Month

The obligations of the Company under its credieagrent with BMO Harris Bank N.A. (“BMO Harris”) asecured by a lien on the Chaska,
MN land and building. The obligations of the Compamder its credit agreement with General Elecapital Corporation (“General Electric”) are
secured by a lien on all of the land and buildiofthe Food Products Technology segment.
Item 3. Legal Proceedings

As of the date of this report, the Company isaptrty to any legal proceedings.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Sktmlder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Seities

Market Information

The Common Stock is traded on The NASDAQ Globat&eWarket under the symbol “LNDC”. The followingtle sets forth for each
period indicated the high and low sales pricesferCommon Stock.

Fiscal Year Ended May 26, 2013

High Low
4 Quarter ending May 26, 20: $ 14.6¢ $ 10.4¢
3 Quarter ending February 24, 2C $ 1287 $ 9.1¢
2nd Quarter ending November 25, 20 $ 12.2( $ 8.8¢€
1stQuarter ending August 26, 20 $ 9.9¢ $ 6.72

Fiscal Year Ended May 27, 2012

High High
4" Quarter ending May 27, 20: $ 744 $ 5.9¢
3 Quarter ending February 26, 2C $ 7.0t $ 5.1¢
2nd Quarter ending November 27, 20 $ 6.5¢ $ 4.8t
1stQuarter ending August 28, 20 $ 694 $ 5.4¢€

Holders

There were approximately 61 holders of record o#88,518 shares of outstanding Common Stock aglpfl®, 2013. Since certain holders
are listed under their brokerage firm’s namesgaitteal number of stockholders is higher.

Dividends

The Company has not paid any dividends on the Cam@tock since its inception. The Company presentgnds to retain all future
earnings, if any, for its business and does natigate paying cash dividends on its Common Stadké foreseeable future.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

There were no shares repurchased by the Compaimgdiscal year 2013. During fiscal year 2012, @@mpany repurchased and retired
917,244 shares of Common Stock for $5.0 milliontiby fiscal year 2011, the Company repurchasedretictd 215,648 shares of Common Stock for
$1.2 million. The Company may still repurchase 3.8 million of the Company’s Common Stock unitier Company’s stock repurchase plan
announced on July 14, 2010.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data
The information set forth below is not necessaritficative of the results of future operations ahduld be read in conjunction with the

information contained in Item 7 — “Management’'sddission and Analysis of Financial Condition anduRe2f Operations” and the Consolidated
Financial Statements and Notes to Consolidatedn€iahStatements contained in Item 8 of this report
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Year Year Year Year Year
Ended Ended Ended Ended Ended
May 26, May 27, May 29, May 30, May 31,
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Statement of Income Data:
(in thousands)
Revenues:
Product sales $ 43957: $ 314,41: $ 273,33t % 23452 % 231,79
Service revenues 2,13¢ 3,13¢ 3,391 3,69¢ 4,14°
Total revenues 441,70t 317,55: 276,72¢ 238,22: 235,93
Cost of revenue:
Cost of product sales 377,07¢ 262,85¢ 227,16 201,46t 198,36¢
Cost of service revenue 1,87( 2,55k 2,861 2,992 3,28¢
Total cost of revenue 378,94 265,41 230,03 204,45¢ 201,65¢
Gross profit 62,76( 52,13¢ 46,69t 33,76¢ 34,28(
Operating costs and expenses:
Research and development 9,29¢ 9,62t 9,27¢ 4,361 3,66¢
Selling, general and administrative 32,53: 26,51¢ 24,60¢ 17,69¢ 18,01%
Other operating (income)/expenses (3,939 1,421 4,78( 3,72t —
Total operating costs and expenses 37,89 37,56 38,66: 25,78¢ 21,68:
Operating profit 24,86¢ 14,577 8,03z 7,98: 12,59¢
Dividend income 1,12t 1,12¢ 32¢ — —
Interest income 17¢ 18C 43C 834 1,30¢
Interest expense and other (2,00¢) (929 (820 (88) (8)
Other income 8,10( 5,331 472 — —
Net income before taxe 32,26« 20,28 8,44: 8,72¢ 13,89¢
Income tax expense (9,459 (7,185 (4,18)) (4,267) (5,61))
Consolidated net income 22,81: 13,09¢ 4,261 4,46¢ 8,28t
Non-controlling interest (225) (403) (34) (482) (55%)
Net income applicable to common stockholc ~ $ 2258 $ 12,69t $ 3,92 3 3,98 3 7,73(
Basic net income per share $ 087 $ 0.4¢ $ 0.1t $ 0.1t $ 0.3C
Diluted net income per share $ 0.8t $ 0.4¢ $ 0.1t $ 0.1t $ 0.2¢
Shares used in per share computation:
Basic 25,83( 25,84¢ 26,39; 26,38: 26,20:
Diluted 26,62¢ 26,12¢ 26,62¢ 26,63: 26,75
May 26, May 27, May 29, May 30, May 31,
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Balance Sheet Data:
(in thousands)
Cash and cash equivalents $ 13,71¢ $ 22,177 $ 8,13t $ 27817 $ 43,45¢
Total assets 290,94: 277,69. 206,31: 200,19 153,49¢
Long-term debt 40,30¢ 47,317 19,83( 23,77( —
Retained earnings 52,40¢ 29,82: 17,12¢ 13,20¢ 9,22%
Total stockholders’ equity $ 178,69: $ 149,74; $ 136,05 $ 130,78 $ 125,40t

Item 7. Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjiorctvith the Company’s Consolidated Financial Stegats contained in Item 8 of this
report. Except for the historical information cantd herein, the matters discussed in this reperfaward-looking statements within the meaning of
Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 193wese forward-looking statements involve certéks and uncertainties that could cause actual
results to differ materially from those in the famd-looking statements. Potential risks and unt#its include, without limitation, those mentionied
this report and, in particular, the factors desattiin Item 1A. "Risk Factors.” Landec undertakeohbgation to revise any forwaildoking statement
in order to reflect events or circumstances that erése after the date of this report.
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Overview

Since its inception in October 1986, the Comparg/bbeen engaged in the research and developmeatlofelimer technology and related
products. The Company has launched four produes lirom this core development — QuickCast™ sphnits casts in April 1994, which was
subsequently sold to Bissell Healthcare Corporatichugust 1997; BreatheWay packaging technologytie fresh-cut and whole produce packaging
market in September 1995; Intelimer Polymer Systé#rasincludes polymer materials for various indasepplications in June 1997 and for personal
care applications in November 2003; and Intellicamted corn seeds in the Fall of 1999. In additiopril 2010, the Company acquired Lifecore
which develops and manufactures products utilibipgluronan, a naturally occurring polysaccharids ik widely distributed in the extracellular
matrix of connective tissues in both animals anchés.

Landec has three core businesses — Food Produtdiedlegy, Food Export, and HA-based Biomateriatge Food Products Technology
segment combines the Company’s BreatheWay packagimgology with Apio’s branded Eat Smart and Giées and private label fresh-cut and
whole produce business. The Food Export businegsagated through Apio’s Cal-Ex export company Wtparchases and sells whole fruit and
vegetable products to predominantly Asian markete. HA-based Biomaterials business sells produdiging HA in the ophthalmic, orthopedic and
veterinary segments and also supplies HA to cus®pursuing other medical applications, such athats surgery, medical device coatings, tissue
engineering and pharmaceuticals. See "Businesseripgon of Core Business".

As of May 26, 2013, the Compamyretained earnings were $52 million. The Compaay imcur losses in the future. The amount of futust
profits, if any, is uncertain and there can be sgueance that the Company will be able to sustaifitability in future years.

Critical Accounting Policies and Use of Estimates
Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith U.S. generally accepted accounting priresplequires management to make certain
estimates and judgments that affect the amountstexpin the financial statements and accompanyaigs. The accounting estimates that require
management’s most significant and subjective judgmimclude revenue recognition; sales returnsadlodvances; recognition and measurement of
current and deferred income tax assets and ligsilithe assessment of recoverability of long-liasdets; the valuation of intangible assets and
inventory; the valuation of investments; and thiiadon and recognition of stock-based compensation

These estimates involve the consideration of corfaletors and require management to make judgmeéhesanalysis of historical and future
trends can require extended periods of time tovesand are subject to change from period to pefitie actual results may differ from managenent’
estimates.

Allowance for Doubtful Accoun

The Company maintains allowances for doubtful ant®for estimated losses resulting from the ingbdf its customers to make required
payments. The allowance for doubtful accounts getlan review of the overall condition of accoustivable balances and review of significant
due accounts. If the financial condition of the @amy’s customers were to deteriorate, resultirgnimmpairment of their ability to make payments,
additional allowances may be required.
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Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or eftalk the cost of the inventories exceeds thejreexed market value, provisions are recorded
currently for the difference between the cost dredrharket value. These provisions are determinsedcban specific identification for unusable
inventory and an additional reserve, based onfiistdosses, for inventory currently consideredéusable.

Revenue Recognitic

Revenue from product sales is recognized when ikgrersuasive evidence that an arrangement etiikid)as transferred, the price is fixed
and determinable, and collectability is reasonalslyured. Allowances are established for estimatedliectible amounts, product returns, and
discounts based on specific identification anddnisal losses.

The Company takes title to all produce it traded/@npackages, and therefore, records revenuesamtaf sales at gross amounts in the
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Licensing revenue is recognized in accordance prigivailing accounting guidance. Initial licensedege deferred and amortized to revenue
over the period of the agreement when a contrastsxhe fee is fixed and determinable, and ctilatty is reasonably assured. Noncancellable,
nonrefundable license fees are recognized ovarehied of the agreement, including those governgsgarch and development activities and any
related supply agreement entered into concurrevitly the license when the risk associated with cemuialization of a product is non-substantive at
the outset of the arrangement.

Contract revenue for research and development (R&B8corded as earned, based on the performagugements of the contract. Non-
refundable contract fees for which no further perfance obligations exist, and there is no contiguimvolvement by the Company, are recognized on
the earlier of when the payments are received @rvwdollection is assured.

When a sales arrangement contains multiple elemrgs€Company allocates revenue to each elemeatdtmasa selling price hierarchy. The
relative selling price for a deliverable is basedte vendor-specific objective evidence (VSOERvhilable, thirdearty evidence (TPE), if VSOE is r
available, or estimated selling price, if neithe8OE nor TPE is available. The Company then recegmevenue on each deliverable in accordance
with its policies for product and service reveneeagnition. The Company is not typically able ttedmine VSOE or TPE, and therefore, uses
estimated selling prices to allocate revenue batwee elements of the arrangement.

The Company limits the amount of revenue recognmitdy delivered elements to the amount that iscootingent on the future delivery of
products or services or future performance obligegtior subject to customsepecific cancellation rights. The Company evaluatesh deliverable in &
arrangement to determine whether they represeatatepunits of accounting. A deliverable constideseparate unit of accounting when it has stand-
alone value, and for an arrangement that includg=naral right of return relative to the deliveprdducts or services, delivery or performance ef th
undelivered product or service is considered priebahd is substantially controlled by the Comparye Company considers a deliverable to have
stand-alone value if the product or service is seldarately by the Company or another vendor dddmeiresold by the customer. Further, the revenue
arrangements generally do not include a generat dfyreturn relative to the delivered products.afhthe aforementioned criteria for a separateaf
accounting are not met, the deliverable is combimit the undelivered element(s) and treated asglesunit of accounting for the purposes of
allocation of the arrangement consideration andmae recognition. The Company allocates the totahgement consideration to each separable
element of an arrangement based upon the relaliiegsprice of each element. Allocation of the simteration is determined at arrangement inception
on the basis of each unit’s relative selling priceinstances where the Company has not establfstredalue for any undelivered element, revenue fo
all elements is deferred until delivery of the fielement is completed and all recognition critenia met.
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Goodwill and Other Intangibles

The Company'’s intangible assets are comprised stbawer relationships with an estimated usefuldifévelve to thirteen years and
trademarks/trade names and goodwill with indefilites (collectively, “intangible assets”), whichet Company recognized in accordance with
accounting guidance (i) upon the acquisition ofé@tgne by Apio in April 2012, (ii) upon the acquisn of Lifecore in April 2010 and (iii) upon the
acquisition of Apio in December 1999. Accountingdgunce defines goodwill as “the excess of the oban acquired entity over the net of the
estimated fair values of the assets acquired antiahilities assumed at date of acquisition.” idtiangible assets, including goodwill, associatetth w
the acquisition of Lifecore was allocated to our-Hésed Biomaterials reporting unit and the acquisstof Apio and GreenLine were allocated to our
Food Products Technology reporting unit pursuaricimounting guidance based upon the allocatiorsséta and liabilities acquired and consideration
paid for each reporting unit. As of May 26, 2018 HA-based Biomaterials reporting unit had $13illon of goodwill and the Food Products
Technology reporting unit had $35.7 million of gadli

The Company tests its indefinite-lived intangibésets for impairment at least annually, in accocdamith accounting guidance. For non-
goodwill indefinite-lived assets, the Company parfe a qualitative analysis in accordance with ASG-30-35. For goodwill, the Company performs
a quantitative analysis in accordance with ASC 28@85.

Application of the impairment tests for indefinifeed intangible assets requires significant judgtri®y management, including identification
of reporting units, assignment of assets and lt&slto reporting units, assignment of intangiégésets to reporting units, and the determinatichef
fair value of each indefinite-lived intangible asaed reporting unit based upon projections ofreittet cash flows, discount rates and market
multiples, which judgments and projections are ieh#dy uncertain.

The Company tested its indefinite-lived intangigsets for impairment as of July 21, 2013 and deted that no adjustments to the carrying
values of these assets were necessary as of teaQtaa quarterly basis, the Company consideragkd to update its most recent annual tests for
possible impairment of its indefinite-lived intablg assets, based on management’s assessmenhgésha its business and other economic factors
since the most recent annual evaluation. Such @saiifgsignificant or material, could indicate a&deo update the most recent annual tests for
impairment of the indefinite-lived intangible assduring the current period. The results of thesestcould lead to write-downs of the carrying ealu
of these assets in the current period.

The Company uses the discounted cash flow (“DCpjreach to develop an estimate of fair value fardyaill. The DCF approach
recognizes that current value is premised on tipeerd receipt of future economic benefits. Indicet of value are developed by discounting
projected future net cash flows to their presehievat a rate that reflects both the current retequirements of the market and the risks inheretiie
specific investment. The market approach is notl tieevalue the Company’s reporting units (the “mipg units”) because insufficient market
comparables exist to enable the Company to degeleasonable fair value of its intangible asseéstduhe unique nature of each of the Company’s
reporting units.

The DCF approach requires the Company to exergdgnjent in determining future business and findrfor@casts and the related estimates
of future net cash flows. Future net cash flowsethepprimarily on future product sales, which afgeirently difficult to predict. These net cash flows
are discounted at a rate that reflects both theentireturn requirements of the market and thesriskerent in the specific investment.

The DCF associated with the annual goodwill impaintranalysis for the Food Products Technology témpunit is based on management’s
five-year projection of revenues, gross profits apdrating profits by fiscal year and assumes a 8fféttive tax rate for each year. Management takes
into account the historical trends of the Food Botsl Technology reporting unit and the industryegaties in which it operates along with inflatiopar
factors, current economic conditions, new prodantrbductions, cost of sales, operating expensg#ataequirements and other relevant data when
developing its projection. The estimated fair vatfi¢he Food Products Technology reporting univfaduly 21, 2013 was 111% of its book value at
that date, therefore, no goodwill impairment wasrded to exist. For the test performed as of Jul\2R22, the projected cash flow from operations
determining the DCF for fiscal year 2013 was $18ition for the Food Products Technology reportingt. The actual cash flow from operations for
fiscal year 2013 was $13.6 million. The differerméé&3.4 million was primarily due to the timing wbrking capital changes.
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The DCF associated with the annual goodwill impaintranalysis for the HA-based Biomaterials repgrtinit is based on management’s
five-year projections of revenues, gross profitd aperating profits by fiscal year and assumes%% 8ffective tax rate for each year. Management
takes into account the historical trends of HA-ldeB®materials reporting unit and the industry gatées in which it operates along with inflationary
factors, current economic conditions, new prodantrbductions, cost of sales, operating expensg#ataequirements and other relevant data when
developing its projection. The trade name intargédset was valued using the relief from royaltyation method and the customer relationship
intangible asset was valued using the mpdtiiod excess earnings method. The fair value oflgidll was calculated as the excess of considargiaid
including the fair value of contingent consideratimder the terms of the purchase agreement, bedair value of the tangible and intangible assets
acquired less liabilities assumed. The Company tegkigs analysis of the fair value of the indefriived intangible assets as of its annual impairtme
analysis date, concluding that the fair value eflttA-based Biomaterials reporting unit, as deteeaihy the DCF approach, was 117% of its book
value at that date, therefore, no goodwill impainm&as deemed to exist. For the test performed aslp 22, 2012, the projected cash flow from
operations for determining the DCF for fiscal y2843 was $8.4 million for the HA-based Biomateri@porting unit. The actual cash flow from
operations for fiscal year 2013 was $13.2 millibhe difference of $4.8 million is primarily duetiming of working capital changes.

Income Taxe

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordaitbeaccounting guidance which requires that defétax assets and liabilities be
recognized using enacted tax rates for the effeietroporary differences between the book and taishi recorded assets and liabilities. The Com
maintains valuation allowances when it is likelgttall or a portion of a deferred tax asset will be realized. Changes in valuation allowances from
period to period are included in the Company’s inedax provision in the period of change. In detaing whether a valuation allowance is
warranted, the Company takes into account sucbr&ets prior earnings history, expected futureiegs) unsettled circumstances that, if unfavorably
resolved, would adversely affect utilization ofefetred tax asset, carryback and carryforward geriand tax strategies that could potentially enban
the likelihood of realization of a deferred taxets#\t May 26, 2013, the Company had a valuatitowaince of $783,000 against deferred tax assets.

In addition to valuation allowances, the Companglagshes accruals for uncertain tax positions. fBlxecontingency accruals are adjusted in
light of changing facts and circumstances, sudhagrogress of tax audits, case law and emergigiglation. The Company recognizes interest and
penalties related to uncertain tax positions asnaponent of income tax expense. The Company’staféetax rate includes the impact of tax-
contingency accruals as considered appropriatednagement.

A number of years may elapse before a particulatemdor which the Company has accrued, is auditedifinally resolved. The number of
years with open tax audits varies by jurisdictidrhile it is often difficult to predict the final acome or the timing of resolution of any particutiax
matter, the Company believes its tax-contingencyusds are adequate to address known tax contifegeri€avorable resolution of such matters could
be recognized as a reduction to the Company’stafeetax rate in the year of resolution. Unfavoeabéttlement of any particular issue could increase
the effective tax rate. Any resolution of a taxussnay require the use of cash in the year of uéisol. The Company’s tax-contingency accruals are
presented in the balance sheet within accrueditiabi

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company'’s stock-based awards include stockoggiants and restricted stock unit awards (RSUs).

The estimated fair value for stock options, whiettedmines the Company’s calculation of compensaiqense, is based on the Black-
Scholes pricing model. In addition, the accountingdance requires the estimation of the expectddifores of stock-based awards at the time of

grant. As a result, the Company uses historical ttaestimate pre-vesting forfeitures and recotaisksbased compensation expense only for those
awards that are expected to vest and revises #sbgeates in subsequent periods if the actualifarés differ from the prior estimates.
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Fair Value Measurements

The Company uses fair value measurement accoufatirilmancial assets and liabilities and for fineddénstruments and certain other items
measured at fair value. The Company has electefaithealue option for its investment in a non-gatdompany (see Note 4 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements). The Company has not eldébtethir value option for any of its other eligifieancial assets or liabilities.

The accounting guidance established a three-tegatdhy for fair value measurements, which pripetsi the inputs used in measuring fair
value as follows:

Level 1 — observable inputs such as quoted primesiéntical instruments in active markets.

Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices in aatiaekets that are observable either directly oirgadly through corroboration with
observable market data.

Level 3 — unobservable inputs in which there ifelior no market data, which would require the Camypto develop its own assumptions.

As of May 26, 2013, the Company held certain assedsliabilities that are required to be measutddinvalue on a recurring basis, includ
cash equivalents, marketable securities, inteagstawap and its minority interest investment imtigiet.

The fair value of the Company’s marketable se@siis determined based on observable inputs teaeadily available in public markets or
can be derived from information available in pulgliguoted markets. Therefore, the Company has odtegl its marketable securities as a Level 1
measurement.

The fair value of the Comparg/interest rate swap is determined based on moplets that can be observed in a liquid marketpitiolg yield
curves, and is categorized as a Level 2 measurement

The fair value of the Company’s liability for congjent consideration as of May 27, 2012 was basegigmificant inputs not observed in the
market and thus represented a Level 3 measureffemiCompany determined the fair value of the ligbfbr the contingent consideration as of May
27,2012, based on a probability-weighted discalingsh flow analysis, as further discussed in Rdtethe Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Company has elected the fair value option obawting for its investment in Windset. The caltiola of fair value utilizes significant
unobservable inputs in the discounted cash flowetsydncluding projected cash flows, growth rated discount rates. As a result, the Company’s
investment in Windset is considered to be a Lewvakasurement investment. The change in the fakehaalue of the Company’s investment in
Windset for the fiscal years ended May 26, 2013Magt 27, 2012 was due to the Company’s 20.1% miypanterest in the change in the fair market
value of Windset during those periods. In deterngrthe fair value of the investment in Windset, @@mpany utilizes the following significant
unobservable inputs in the discounted cash flowetsod

At May 26, 2013 At May 27, 2012
Revenue growth rates 3% to 99 3% to 249
Expense growth rates 3% to 89 3% to 189
Income tax rates 159 259
Discount rates 18% to 289 14% to 219
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The revenue growth, expense grawithincome tax rate assumptions, consider the Coytgphest estimate of the trends in those items ove
the discount period. The discount rate assumpékes into account the risk-free rate of retune,market equity risk premium and the company’s
specific risk premium and then applies an addifioliecount for lack of liquidity of the underlyirgpcurities. The discounted cash flow valuation
model used by the Company has the following seitsitio changes in inputs and assumptions (in taods):

Impact on value

Windset investment as
May 26, 2013

10% increase in revenue growth rates $1,70
10% increase in expense growth rates ($1,400
10% increase in income tax rates ($100
10% increase in discount rates ($900

Imprecision in estimating unobservable market ispan affect the amount of gain or loss recordea foarticular position. The use of
different methodologies or assumptions to deterrttiecfair value of certain financial instrumentsicbresult in a different estimate of fair valuettae
reporting date.

The following table summarizes the fair value af @ompany’s assets and liabilities that are medsatréir value on a recurring basis, as of
May 26, 2013 and May 27, 2012 (in thousands):

Fair Value at May 26, 2013 Fair Value at May 27, 2012
Assets: Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Marketable securities $ 1,545 $ - $ - 3 - $ - $ =
Investment in private company - - 29,60( - - 21,50(
Total $ 154t % - $ 29,60( $ - $ - 8 21,50(
Liabilities:
Contingent consideration $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 8 3,93¢
Interest rate swap = 163 = - 347 -
Total $ - 8 163 $ - 8 - 8 347 % 3,93

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Intangible-Goodwill and Other

In September 2011, the FASB issued new guidand¢entallow an entity to first assess qualitatifaetors to determine whether it is
necessary to perform the two-step quantitative gilbend intangibles impairment test. Under thiseamdment, an entity would not be required to
calculate the fair value of a reporting unit unltes entity determines, based on a qualitativesassent, that it is more likely than not that it fealue
is less than its carrying amount. The amendmeides a number of events and circumstances fontty & consider in conducting the qualitative
assessment. The guidance is effective for fiscats/beginning after December 15, 2011 with earbpédn permitted. The Company adopted this
standard beginning in fiscal year 2013 and the &oioglid not have a material impact on the Compsuegnsolidated financial statements.

Presentation of Comprehensive Incc

In December 2011, the FASB issued new guidancdrtimbves the comparability, consistency, and pansncy of financial reporting and
increases the prominence of items reported in aheprehensive income by eliminating the optiopresent components of other comprehensive
income as part of the statement of changes in kaddkrs' equity. The amendments in this standaydire that all non-owner changes in stockholders'
equity be presented either in a single continutetesent of comprehensive income or in two sepdmatteonsecutive statements. Under either
method, adjustments must be displayed for itemisatteareclassified from other comprehensive inc@ifI") to net income, in both net income and
OCI. The standard does not change the currentrofisiopresenting components of OCI gross or néhefeffect of income taxes, provided that such
tax effects are presented in the statement in w@iChis presented or disclosed in the notes tditlamcial statements. Additionally, the standaréslo
not affect the calculation or reporting of earnipgs share. For public entities, the amendmentisisnASU are effective for fiscal years, and interi
periods within those years, beginning after Decamibe 2011 and are to be applied retrospectiveith marly adoption permitted. The Company
retrospectively adopted this standard beginninfistal year 2013.
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Fair Value Measuremet

In May 2011, the FASB issued new guidance effedtiveannual reporting periods beginning after Debenil5, 2011. This guidance amends
certain accounting and disclosure requirementse@l® fair value measurements. Additional disalesequirements in the update include: (1) for
Level 3 fair value measurements, quantitative imiation about unobservable inputs used, a desamipfithe valuation processes used by the entity,
and a qualitative discussion about the sensitvitthe measurements to changes in the unobserivghles; (2) for an entity’s use of a nonfinancial
asset that is different from the asset’s highedttzst use, the reason for the difference; (3jif@ncial instruments not measured at fair valuefou
which disclosure of fair value is required, the failue hierarchy level in which the fair value rme@ments were determined; and (4) the disclodure o
all transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 of thevialue hierarchy. The Company adopted thisddsth beginning in fiscal year 2013.

Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabili

In November 2011, the FASB issued new guidancetfiefor annual reporting periods beginning Japudar2013. This guidance amends
disclosure requirements around offsetting to enabées of the financial statements to understameftect of those arrangements on its financial
position. Entities are required to disclose botbsgrand net information about the instruments eargsactions eligible for offset in the statement of
financial position and instruments and transactsutgect to an agreement similar to a master mettirangement. The Company does not expect the
adoption of this standard to have a material impadts consolidated financial statements.
Results of Operations

Fiscal Year Ended May 27, 2013 Compared to FisegrEnded May 27, 201

Revenuegin thousands):

Fiscal Year endet

Fiscal Year endet

May 26, 201: May 27, 201. Change
Food Products Technology $ 320,44 207,58: 54%
Food Export 78,56¢ 71,48t 10%
Total Apio 399,01! 279,06° 43%
HA-based Biomaterials 41,28: 34,28: 20%
Corporate 1,417 4,20z (66%)
Total Revenues $ 441,70¢ $ 317,55: 3g%

Food Products Technology (Apio)

Apio’s food products technology revenues consisegénues generated from the sale of specialtygugakfresh-cut and whole value-added
processed vegetable products that are washed akdgeal in our proprietary packaging and sold ugeo’s Eat Smart and GreenLine brands and
various private labels. In addition, value-addegreies include the revenues generated from Apidil@nd P, a vegetable cooling operation in which
Apio is the general partner with a 60% ownershigitian and from the sale of BreatheWay packaginiicemse partners.

The increase in Apio's food products technologyenrewes for the fiscal year ended May 26, 2013 coetper the same period last year was
primarily due to the following factors: (1) a $21llion increase in non-green bean value-added shleso a 15% increase in unit volume sales to
existing non-green bean customers resulting prigniim expanded product offerings, gaining additibdistribution locations and growth in the
fresh-cut vegetable category, (2) an $86 milliccréase in revenues from GreenLine which was aadjeineApril 23, 2012 and (3) a larger percentage
of Apio's non-green bean value-added sales voluimglgenerated from sales to club stores ratherritail grocery chains. These increases in
revenue were partially offset by product mix changeretail grocery chains to lower priced proddodsn higher priced products.
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Food Export (Apio)

Apio’s food export revenues consist of revenueegaed from the purchase and sale of primarily eltoimmodity fruit and vegetable
products to Asia by Cal-Ex. Apio records revenueatdp the sale price to third parties becausskiés title to the product while in transit.

The increase in revenues in Apio’s food export bess for the fiscal year ended May 26, 2013 contp@aréhe same period last year was
primarily due to more favorable pricing for expprbducts in fiscal year 2013 compared to fiscal @€ 2 resulting in higher prices per unit sold.

HA-based Biomaterials (Lifecore)

Lifecore principally generates revenue throughgéle of products containing HA. Lifecore primaiglls products to customers in three
medical areas: (1) Ophthalmic, which representguicgimately 65% of Lifecore’s revenues in fiscay@013, (2) Orthopedic, which represented
approximately 20% of Lifecore’s revenues in fisgaar 2013 and (3) Veterinary/Other.

The increase in Lifecore’s revenues for fiscal y&@it3 compared to the same period last year wassalemtirely due to increased sales of
existing aseptically filled products to existingstemers and from new aseptically filled productsergly approved by the FDA to existing customer
the Ophthalmic area.

Corporate

Corporate revenues are generated from the licergiregments with Air Products, Nitta and INCOTE®Ge Tecrease in Corporate revenues
for fiscal year 2013 compared to the same periddsifyear was due to the termination of the Mots&greement at the end of the second quarter of
fiscal year 2012. The Company recognized $2.7 onilin license fees from the Monsanto Agreementrdufiscal year 2012. The Monsanto license
fees were partially offset by research and develgmevenues from Nitta.

Gross Profit (in thousands):

Fiscal Year endet  Fiscal Year ende(

May 26, 201: May 27, 201. Change
Food Products Technology $ 37,077 $ 25,23 47%
Food Export 5,27¢ 4,90( 8%
Total Apio 42,35 30,137 41%
HA-based Biomaterials 19,10 17,99¢ 6%
Corporate 1,307 4,007 (67%)
Total Gross Profit $ 62,76( $ 52,13¢ 20%

General

There are numerous factors that can influence gnad# including product mix, customer mix, manctiaring costs, volume, sale discounts
and charges for excess or obsolete inventory, teereafew. Many of these factors influence or aterielated with other factors. The Company
includes in cost of sales all of the costs relatetthe sale of products in accordance with U.Segadly accepted accounting principles. These costs
include the following: raw materials (including plice, seeds, packaging, syringes and fermentatidparification supplies), direct labor, overhead
(including indirect labor, depreciation, and fagilielated costs) and shipping and shipping-relatesis. The following are the primary reasons fer t
changes in gross profit for the fiscal year endexy 126, 2013 compared to the same period last yeautined in the table above.
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Food Products Technology (Apio)

The increase in gross profit for the food produethnology business for the fiscal year 2013 coegb#o the same period last year was
primarily due to (1) the 54% increase in revenueb @) the addition of higher margin GreenLine prod. These increases were partially offset by the
negative impact of produce sourcing issues whiahanily occurred during the second half of fiscahy 2013.

Food Export (Apio)

Apio’s export business is a buy/sell businesstyitally realizes a gross margin in the 5-8% range

The increase in gross profit for Apio’s food expousiness for fiscal year 2013 compared to the gzeried last year was primarily due to a
10% increase in revenues partially offset by higirecurement costs for certain export products.

HA-based Biomaterials (Lifecore)
Lifecore operates in the higher margin medical devindustry and has historically realized an di/grass margin of approximately 50%.
The increase in gross profit for fiscal year 20b&pared to the same period last year was due itcegase in revenues of $7.0

million resulting from the increased sales of boitorical products and new products to existingt@mers which were partially offset by the revenue

increase from aseptically filled products which éalower gross margin than Lifecore’s other prasluc

Corporate
The decrease in Corporate gross profit for fisegry2013 compared to the same period last yeadueato the termination of the Monsanto

Agreement at the end of the second quarter oflfissar 2012. The Company recognized $2.7 milliofidanse fees from the Monsanto Agreement
during fiscal year 2012. The Monsanto license feee partially offset by research and developmewtmnues from Nitta.

Operating Expensegin thousands):

Fiscal Year endet Fiscal Year ende
May 26, 201: May 27, 201. Change
Research and Developmer
Apio $ 1,08 $ 1,10¢ (2%)
Lifecore 4,93( 4,671 6%
Corporate 3,27¢ 3,84¢ (15%,
Total R&D $ 9,29/ % 9,62f (3%)
Selling, General and Administrative
Apio $ 21,97¢  $ 14,77¢ 49%
Lifecore 4, 59¢ 4,521 2%
Corporate 5,96( 7,21¢ (17%,
Total S,G&A $ 3253, $ 26,51t 230
Other operating expenses:
Apio $ (3,939 $ 871 N/M
Corporate — 55C N/M
Total Other Operating Expenses $ (3,93) $ 1,421 N/M
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Research and Development

Landec’s research and development consisted ptimadrproduct development and commercializatiotidtives. Research and development
efforts at Apio are focused on the Company’s petpry BreatheWay membranes used for packaging peodiith a focus on extending the shelf-life
of sensitive vegetables and fruit. In the Lifecbusiness, the research and development efforfeeused on new products and applications for HA-
based biomaterials. For Corporate, the researclievelopment efforts are focused on supportinglthelopment and commercialization of new
products and new technologies in our food and Hgirmsses along with developing uses for our prapwgdntelimer polymers outside of our food i
HA businesses.

The decrease in research and development expendexcél year 2013 compared to the same peridd/&es was primarily due to the
decrease in research and development expenseseithdiyr Corporate during fiscal year 2012 at the gamy’s former seed corn business which was
sold in June 2012.

Selling, General and Administrative (S,G&A)

Selling, general and administrative expenses copsiwarily of sales and marketing expenses astatiaith Landec’s product sales and
services, business development expenses and sthffcaministrative expenses.

The increase in S,G&A expenses for fiscal year 28iBpared to the same period last year was priynduié to: (1) a $4.6 million increase in
S,G&A expenses at Apio from GreenLine which wasuéregl on April 23, 2012 and (2) a $2.6 million ieese in SG&A at Apio, excluding
GreenLine, due to the amortization of the custob@ese intangible acquired in the acquisition of Gtéree and additional sales and marketing expe
associated with the increase in revenues. Thesedses were partially offset by a $1.3 million @éase in S,G&A at Corporate due primarily to no
Corporate bonuses being earned in fiscal year 26fared to $1.0 million of Corporate bonuses ehimdiscal year 2012 and from S,G&A
expenses at the Company's former seed corn businfissal year 2012 which was sold in June 2012.

Other Operating Expenses

Other operating expenses in fiscal year 2013 ctatsisf a $3.9 million reversal of the earn-out liépat Apio associated with the GreenLine
acquisition. Other operating expenses in fiscat 842 consisted of expenses incurred as a refstiie@cquisition of GreenLine.

Non-operating income/(expensein thousands):

Fiscal Year ender  Fiscal Year endel

May 26, 201: May 27, 201: Change
Dividend Income $ 1,128 $ 1,12t —
Interest Income $ 17¢ ¢ 18C D)%
Interest Expense $ (2,009 $ (929) 11€%
Other Income $ 8,10C $ 5,331 52%
Income Taxes $ (9,452 $ (7,185) 32%
Non controlling Interest $ (225 $ (403) (44)%

Dividend Income

Dividend income is derived from the dividends aecron our $15 million preferred stock investmeniMimdset which yields a cash dividend
of 7.5% annually. There was no change in divideraine in fiscal year 2013 compared to fiscal y€dr22

Interest Income

The decrease in interest income for the fiscal yeded May 26, 2013 compared to the same peribgdas was primarily due to lower cash
balances reflecting our use of cash to buybackeshairthe Company’s common stock during fiscal &2 and to purchase GreenLine.
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Interest Expense

The increase in interest expense during fiscal 26aB compared to the same period last year wasodagerest on the $32 million of debt
incurred in the acquisition of GreenLine. This e&se was partially offset by decreases in intengstnse at Lifecore due to paying down its debt by
$3.3 million during fiscal year 2013.

Other Income

The increase in other income for fiscal year 20d@gared to the same period last year is primarily th the change in the fair market value
of our Windset investment being $2.3 million highefiscal year 2013 compared to the change irafigear 2012.

Income Taxes

The increase in the income tax expense for fiseal Y013 is due to a 59% increase in net incomardedxes compared to the same period
last year. The effective tax rate for fiscal ye@t2 was 30% compared to 36% for the same perivgéas primarily because the $3.9 million reversal
of the earn-out liability during fiscal year 201dated to the GreenLine acquisition was not sulifesicome taxes and various to other tax dedustion
and credits in fiscal year 2013, such as the ratfithe R&D credit and the change in the Compastese apportionment factors due to the addition of
GreenLine, which resulted in a lower effective tate for fiscal year 2013.

Non controlling Interest

The non controlling interest consists of the lidifgartners’ equity interest in the net income ofcA@ooling, LP.

The change in the non controlling interest fordisgear 2013 compared to the same periods lastwasdue to a decrease in Apio Cooling
revenues.

Fiscal Year Ended May 27, 2012 Compared to FisealrEnded May 29, 201
Revenueqin thousands):

Fiscal Year endet  Fiscal Year ende(

May 27, 201. May 29, 201: Change
Food Products Technology 207,58 175,66 18%
Food Export 71,48¢ 61,66: 16%
Total Apio 279,06° 237,32 18%
HA-based Biomaterials 34,28 32,50¢ 5%
Corporate 4,202 6,89 (39%)
Total Revenues $ 317,55 $ 276,72¢ 15%

Food Products Technology (Apio)

Apio’s food products technology revenues consisegénues generated from the sale of specialtygugakfresh-cut and whole value-added
processed vegetable products that are washed akdgeal in our proprietary packaging and sold ugeo’s Eat Smart and GreenLine brands and
various private labels. In addition, value-addegreies include the revenues generated from Apidil@nd P, a vegetable cooling operation in which
Apio is the general partner with a 60% ownershigitian and from the sale of BreatheWay packaginiicemse partners.

The increase in Apio's valuedded revenues for the fiscal year ended May 22 20mpared to the same period last year was pghntare to
the following factors: (1) an 11% increase in watume sales to existing customers resulting prip&om expanded product offerings, the additional
of more distribution locations and growth in thedi-cut vegetable category, (2) $9.1 million oferaves from GreenLine from the acquisition date of
April 23, 2012 through the fiscal year ended May 2712 and (3) a larger percentage of Apio's valdéed revenues being generated from sales to
club stores rather than retail grocery chains. &liesreases in revenue were partially offset byoappct mix change in retail grocery chains to lower
priced products from higher priced products.
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Food Export (Apio)

Apio food export revenues consist of revenues ggadrfrom the purchase and sale of primarily wicolmmodity fruit and vegetable
products to Asia by Cal-Ex. Apio records revenueatdp the sale price to third parties becausekiés title to the product while in transit.

The increase in revenues in Apio’s export busifiesthe fiscal year ended May 27, 2012 comparatiecsame period last year was primarily
due to an 11% increase in export unit volume s#desto a greater volume of fruit and vegetablesdaiailable to export and due to more favorable
pricing for export products in fiscal year 2012 gared to fiscal year 2011.

HA-based Biomaterials (Lifecore)

Lifecore principally generates revenue throughgéle of products containing HA. Lifecore primaiglls products to customers in three
medical areas: (1) Ophthalmic, which representguicgimately 65% of Lifecore’s revenues in fiscay@012, (2) Orthopedic, which represented
approximately 20% of Lifecore’s revenues in fisgaar 2012 and (3) Veterinary/Other.

The increase in revenues for Lifecore was primatilg to an increase in sales to existing customers.

Corporate

Corporate revenues consisted of revenues gendratadhe licensing agreements with Monsanto, Aodercts and Nitta.

The decrease in Corporate revenues for the fis=a gnded May 27, 2012 compared to the same pasbglear was primarily due to the
termination of the Monsanto Agreement at the entthefsecond quarter of fiscal year 2012. The gdgntevenues and gross profit from Monsanto had
been $1.35 million per quarter prior to the terrtima

Gross Profit (in thousands):

Fiscal Year endet  Fiscal Year ende(

May 27, 201. May 29, 201: Change
Food Products Technology 25,23 18,88¢ 34%
Food Export 4,90( 3,901 26%
Total Apio 30,137 22,78¢ 32%
HA-based Biomaterials 17,99¢ 17,23: 4%
Corporate 4,007 6,67¢ (40%)
Total Gross Profit $ 52,13¢ $ 46,69¢ 12%

General

There are numerous factors that can influence gnad# including product mix, customer mix, manctiaring costs, volume, sale discounts
and charges for excess or obsolete inventory, teerefew. Many of these factors influence or atermelated with other factors. The Company
includes in cost of sales all of the costs relatetthe sale of products in accordance with U.Segaly accepted accounting principles. These costs
include the following: raw materials (including plece, casein, seeds and packaging), direct laberhead (including indirect labor, depreciationd an
facility related costs) and shipping and shippiated costs. The following are the primary reasonghe changes in gross profit for the fiscalyea
ended May 27, 2012 compared to the same periogidastas outlined in the table above.
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Food Products Technology (Apio)

The increase in gross profit for the food produethnology business for the fiscal year ended Mgy2R12 compared to the same period last
year was primarily due to the 19% increase in raesrand the decrease in costs of produce as codnjpattee costs associated with the weather re
produce supply issues experienced during the Noeetob~ebruary period of fiscal year 2011.

Food Export (Apio)

Apio’s export business is a buy/sell business ithalizes a commission-based margin in the 5-8%erang

The increase in gross profit for Apio’s food explousiness during the fiscal year ended May 27, 2@h2pared to the same period last year
was primarily due to the 16% increase in revenueshigher average margins on export sales duertora favorable product mix in fiscal year 2012
compared to fiscal year 2011.

HA-based Biomaterials (Lifecore)
Lifecore operates in the higher margin medical devindustry and has historically realized an di/grass margin of approximately 50%.

The increase in Lifecore’s gross profit during fiseal year ended May 27, 2012 compared to the gmried last year was primarily due to
the 5% increase in revenues.

Corporate
The decrease in Corporate gross profit for theafigear ended May 27, 2012 compared to the saniedpefrthe prior year was primarily due
to the termination of the Monsanto Agreement atethe of the second quarter of fiscal year 2012. queaterly revenues and gross profit from

Monsanto had been $1.35 million per quarter pache termination.

Operating Expensegin thousands):

Fiscal Year endet Fiscal Year ende: Change
May 27, 201: May 29, 201:
Research and Developmer
Apio $ 1,10¢ $ 1,02¢ 8%
Lifecore 4,671 4,27: 9%
Corporate 3,84¢ 3,98( (3%)
Total R&D $ 9628 $ 9,27¢ 4%
Selling, General and Administrative
Apio $ 14,77¢  $ 12,72: 16%
Lifecore 4,521 4,83¢ (7%)
Corporate 7,21¢ 7,04¢ 2%
Total S,G&A $ 2651F $ 24,60¢ 8%
Other operating expenses:
Apio $ 871 % — N/M
Corporate 55(C 4,78( (88%,
Total Other Operating Expenses $ 1,421 % 4,78( (70%)
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Research and Development

Landec’s research and development consisted ptimadrproduct development and commercializatiotidtives. Research and development
efforts at Apio are focused on the Company’s petpry BreatheWay membranes used for packaging peodiith a focus on extending the shelf-life
of sensitive vegetables and fruit. In the Lifecbusiness, the research and development efforfeeused on new products and applications for HA-
based biomaterials. For Corporate, the researclievelopment efforts are focused on supportinglthelopment and commercialization of new
products and new technologies in our food and Hgirmsses along with developing uses for our prapwgdntelimer polymers outside of our food i
HA businesses.

The increase in research and development expemistreffiscal year ended May 27, 2012 comparetieassame period last year was prime
due to increased payroll expenses from increassreh and development efforts associated withpreduct development in our HA business.

Selling, General and Administrative

Selling, general and administrative expenses copgisarily of sales and marketing expenses assatiaith Landec’s product sales and
services, business development expenses and sthffcaministrative expenses.

The increase in selling, general and administraxgenses for the fiscal year ended May 27, 20bh#aoed to the same period last year was
primarily due to increased sales and marketing es@ at Apio. Due to the increase in revenuesCtmpany experienced higher brokerage fees and
due to Apio and the Company exceeding their revamaeoperating income plan for fiscal year 2012yUsoexpenses were higher than the same p
of last year.

Other Operating Expenses

Other operating expenses in fiscal year 2012 ctatsisf expenses incurred as a result of the adiquisif GreenLine. Other operating
expenses in fiscal year 2011 consisted of an imit charge from the write off of Landec Ag’s godtw

Non-operating income/(expensein thousands):

Fiscal Year ender  Fiscal Year endel

May 27, 201: May 29, 201: Change
Dividend Income $ 1,12 $ 32¢ 242%
Interest Income $ 18C $ 43C (58)%
Interest Expense $ 929 $ (820) 13%
Other Income $ 5331 $ 472 102%%
Income Taxes $ (7,185 $ (4,18)) 2%
Non controlling Interest $ (40%) $ (341) 18%

Dividend Income

The increase in dividend income was due to theipeoéa full year of dividends during fiscal ye2012 from the $15 million preferred stock
investment in Windset. The preferred stock yieldsish dividend of 7.5% annually. The $328,000 il year 2011 represents dividends for the
period February 15, 2011 through May 29, 2011.

Interest Income

The decrease in interest income for the fiscal yeded May 27, 2012 compared to the same peribgdas was primarily due to lower cash

balances reflecting our use of cash to purchaseriee, to purchase our minority investment in Vieidand to purchase the Company’s common
stock on the open market. Interest income waséduntlegatively impacted by lower yields on investtaatue to declines in interest rates.
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Interest Expense

The increase in interest expense during the figeat ended May 27, 2012 compared to the same plasbgiear was due to interest on the
debt incurred in the acquisition of GreenLine argensing of $120,000 in loan origination fees assalt of paying off the Wells Fargo credit fagilit
These increases were partially offset by decreiasaeserest expenses at Lifecore due to paying dissvdebt by $4.3 million during fiscal year 2012.

Other Income

Other income consists primarily of a $5.8 milliorciease in the fair market value of our Windseestment, partially offset by a $160,000
expense related to the amortization of the disconritifecore’s earn out obligation and $347,00@xpense associated with the interest rate swap witt
Wells Fargo.

Income Taxes

The increase in the income tax expense in fiscal 2812 compared to fiscal year 2011 is due to08®#crease in income before taxes
partially offset by a decrease in the Company’'saffe tax rate to 36% in fiscal year 2012 dowmfre2% in fiscal year 2011. The effective tax rates
for fiscal year 2012 differ from the statutory fealincome tax rate of 35 percent as a result eéise factors, including state taxes, non-deduetibl
stock-based compensation expense, tax exemptshtard non-deductible acquisition related expenses.

Non controlling Interest

The non controlling interest consists of the lidifgrtners’ equity interest in the net income ofcA@ooling, LP.

The decrease in the non controlling interest ferftbcal year ended May 27, 2012 compared to thegzeriod last year was not significant.
Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of May 26, 2013, the Company had cash and ogqsivaents of $13.7 million, a net decrease of $8ilion from $22.2 million at May 21
2012.

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Landec generated $21.2 million of cash from opegatictivities during fiscal year 2013 comparedeaearating $22.2 million from operating
activities during fiscal year 2012. The primary sms of cash from operating activities during fisear 2013 were from (1) $22.8 million of net
income, (2) $9.0 million of depreciation/amortizatiand stock based compensation expenses an&§3j anillion net increase in deferred tax
liabilities. The primary uses of cash from openatirctivities were from (1) the $8.1 million non-bascrease in the Company’s investment in Windset,
(2) a reversal of the $3.9 million earn-out liatyilirom the GreenLine acquisition which increasetlincome by the same amount but was a non-cash
item and (3) a net increase of $1.1 million in wngkcapital, excluding the portion of the increaséncome taxes receivable which is attributabléng
tax benefit from stock-based compensation.

The primary factors which increased working capiialing fiscal year 2013 were (1) a $4.5 milliosrgase in receivables primarily due to
timing of cash receipts at Apio and a $1.6 millinarease in May revenues in fiscal year 2013 coetbéw May revenues last year, (2) a $2.5 million
decrease in accrued liabilities primarily from soatcrued at the end of fiscal year 2012 which \paié in fiscal year 2013 associated with the
GreenLine acquisition, (3) a $798,000 decreasedénuad compensation primarily due to a decreabeises earned in fiscal year 2013 compared to
fiscal year 2012 and (4) a $2.1 million increas@irentories at Apio and Lifecore to support api&ted sales growth in early fiscal year 2014.
Working capital decreased during fiscal year 20&&anise of a $8.8 million increase in accounts pdaydie to the timing of payments primarily at
Apio and from the $1.1 million increase in deferredenues from the sale of Landec Ag to INCOTEQune 2012 and from product manufactured at
Lifecore and billed but not yet shipped.
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Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities for fiscay2013 was $10.4 million compared to $44.1 millionthe same period last year. The use of
cash in investing activities in fiscal year 2012svpsimarily due to the acquisition of GreenLinedpril 2012. The primary uses of cash in investing
activities during fiscal year 2013 were for theghase of $8.9 million of equipment primarily to popt the growth of the Apio value-added and
Lifecore businesses and from the net purchase.6figillion of marketable securities.

Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities for fiscahy2013 was $19.3 million compared to net cashigealby financing activities of $35.9
million for the same period last year. The net aasbd in financing activities during fiscal yearl30wvas primarily due to the $10 million earn out
payment from the Lifecore acquisition, $9.7 milliohwhich was recorded as a contingent liabilityreg time of the acquisition and is therefore
classified as a financing activity, and $14.7 railliof payments on the Company’s lines of creditland-term debt. These uses of cash in financing
activities were partially offset by a $1.3 millitexx benefit from stock-based compensation and f$8m million of cash received from the exercise of
stock options by Company employees.

Capital Expenditures

During the fiscal year ended May 26, 2013, Landattioued its expansion of Apio’s value-added pregesfacility and purchased vegetable
processing equipment as well as facility modifieat and equipment purchased at Lifecore to sufpsihess growth. These expenditures representec
the majority of the $8.9 million of capital expehaes.

Debt

On August 19, 2004, Lifecore issued variable ratkistrial revenue bonds (“IRBs”). These IRBs wassumed by Landec in the acquisition
of Lifecore (see Note 9 to the Consolidated FinalnStatements). The IRBs are collateralized byrkbetter of credit which is secured by a first
mortgage on Lifecore’s facility in Chaska, Minnesdn addition, Lifecore pays an annual remarketéaggequal to 0.125% and an annual letter of
credit fee of 0.75%.

On April 23, 2012 in connection with the acquigitiof GreenLine, Apio entered into three loan agrestswith General Electric Capital
Corporation and/or its affiliates (“GE Capital"gllectively the “GE Debt Agreements”):

1) A five-year, $25.0 million asset-based workaapital revolving line of credit, with an interegste of LIBOR plus 2%, with availability based
on the combination of the eligible accounts redeigand inventory balances of Apio and its subsieia(availability was $14.6 million at
May 26, 2013). Apio’s revolving line of credit has unused fee of 0.375% per annum. At May 26, 201tBMay 27, 2012, Apio had $4.0
million and $11.7 million, respectively, outstangiander its revolving line of credit.

2) A $12.7 million capital equipment loan which ton@s in seven years payable in monthly principal iaterest payments of $175,356 with
interest based on a fixed rate of 4.39% per annum.

3) A $19.2 million real estate loan, $1.2 million ohigh was paid in April 2013, and the remainder matuin ten years. The real estate loan

a fifteen year amortization period due in monthlingipal and interest payments of $141,962 witleriest based on a fixed rate of 4.02% per
annum. The principal balance remaining at the drileoten year term is due in one lump sum on A38il2022.
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Apio’s obligations under the GE Debt Agreementssaeured by liens on all of the property of Apia s subsidiaries. The GE Debt
Agreements contain customary events of default uwtiéch obligations could be accelerated or inoeda3he GE Capital real estate and equipment
loans are guaranteed by Landec, and Landec hagaulet equity interest in Apio as collateral unther line of credit agreement. The GE Debt
Agreements contain customary covenants, such éstioms on the ability to (1) incur indebtednesg@ant liens or negative pledges on Apio’s assets;
(2) make loans or other investments; (3) pay divitse sell stock or repurchase stock or other séesir{4) sell assets; (5) engage in mergers;r@re
into sale and leaseback transactions; and (7) wizdeeges in Apio’s corporate structure. In additidpio must maintain a minimum fixed charge
coverage ratio of 1.10 to 1.0 if the availabilityder its line of credit falls below $7.5 millionp was in compliance with all financial covenaassof
May 26, 2013 and May 27, 2012. Unamortized loagination fees for the GE Debt Agreements were #illlon and $1.3 million at May 26, 2013
and May 27, 2012, respectively, and are includeatter assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

On May 23, 2012, Lifecore entered into two finagcagreements with BMO Harris Bank N.A. and/or iffiates (“‘BMO Harris”),
collectively (the “Lifecore Loan Agreements”):

Q) A Credit and Security Agreement (the “Credgréement”) which includes (a) a one-year, $8.0iomlasset-based working capital revolving
line of credit, with an interest rate of LIBOR plus85%, with availability based on the combinatidr.ifecore’s eligible accounts receivable
and inventory balances (availability was $7.0 moilliat May 26, 2013) and with no unused fee (asa@j &6, 2013 and May 27, 2012, no
amounts were outstanding under the line of credit) (b) a $12.0 million term loan which maturegomr years due in monthly payments of
$250,000 with interest payable monthly based oarable interest rate of LIBOR plus 2% (the “Terwaln”).

(2) A Reimbursement Agreement pursuant to whichBMarris caused its affiliate Bank of Montreal $sue an irrevocable letter of credit in the
amount of $3.5 million (the “Letter of Credit”) wth is securing the IRBs described above.

The obligations of Lifecore under the Lifecore Losgreements are secured by liens on all of thegntgf Lifecore. The Lifecore Loan
Agreements contain customary covenants, such éstioms on the ability to (1) incur indebtednesg@nt liens or negative pledges on Lifecore’s
assets; (2) make loans or other investments; (BYipédends or repurchase stock or other securif@®ssell assets; (5) engage in mergers; (6) eénte
sale and leaseback transactions; (7) adopt cdrgaigfit plans; and (8) make changes in Lifecoreiparate structure. In addition, under the Credit
Agreement, Lifecore must maintain (a) a minimuneébcharge coverage ratio of 1.10 to 1.0 and a mimirquick ratio of 1.25 to 1.00, both of which
must be satisfied as of the end of each fiscaltguaommencing with the fiscal quarter ending Aud& 2012 and (b) a minimum tangible net worth
of $29,000,000, measured as of May 28, 2013, amd the end of each fiscal year thereafter. Unammedtloan origination fees for the Lifecore Loan
Agreements were $149,000 and $139,000 at May 263 a@d May 27, 2012, respectively, and are includexher assets in the Consolidated Balance
Sheets. Lifecore was in compliance with all finahciovenants as of May 26, 2013.

The market value of the Company’s debt approximisge®corded value as the interest rates on eelshinlstrument approximates current
market rates.

The Term Loan was used to repay Lifecore’s formedit facility with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (“WellBargo”). The Letter of Credit (which
replaces a letter of credit previously providedglls Fargo) provides liquidity and credit suppiort the IRBs.

In May 2010, the Company entered into a five-yaggrest rate swap agreement under the credit agreemith Wells Fargo, which expires
on April 30, 2015. The interest rate swap was dedigd as a cash flow hedge of future interest pagsra LIBOR and had a notional amount of $20
million. As a result of the interest rate swap saction, the Company fixed for a five-year peribd interest rate at 4.24% subject to market based
interest rate risk on $20 million of borrowings endhe credit agreement with Wells Fargo. The Camizaobligations under the interest rate swap
transaction as to the scheduled payments weremfeachand secured on the same basis as its obligathder the credit agreement with Wells Fargo
at the time the agreement was consummated. Upenimminto the new Term Loan with BMO Harris, therfipany used the proceeds from that loan
to pay off the Wells Fargo credit facility. The qwaith Wells Fargo was not terminated upon thergxtishment of the debt with Wells Fargo. As a
result of extinguishing the debt with Wells Fargocd May 23, 2012, the swap was no longer an e¥fettedge and therefore, the fair value of the
swap at the time the debt was extinguished of $80rwas reversed from other comprehensive incordeetorded in other expense during fiscal !
2012. The fair value of the swap arrangement &danf 26, 2013 and May 27, 2012 was $163,000 and $8487respectively, and is included in other
accrued liabilities in the accompanying Consoliddalance Sheets.
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Contractual Obligations

The Company’s material contractual obligationstha next five years and thereafter as of May 2632@re as follows (in thousands):
Due in Fiscal Year Ended May

Obligation Total 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Thereafter
Income taxes $ — 3 — % — % — 3 — % — % —
Debt principal payments 44,30¢ 9,93: 6,05¢ 6,181 3,31¢ 3,45¢€ 15,361
Interest payments 6,65 1,42¢ 1,15¢ 96% 80C 66€ 1,641
Operating leases 7,32¢ 2,13¢ 1,73( 1,421 1,13t 554 35C
Purchase commitments 1,982 1,982 — — — — =
Total $ 6027( $ 1548 $ 8,93¢ $ 8567 $ 525¢  $ 467¢ $ 17,35:

The income tax amounts above exclude liabilities®amted with the accounting for uncertainty inoime taxes as we are unable to reasor
estimate the ultimate amount or timing of settlem&ee Note 11 in the Notes to Consolidated Firsu8tatements for further discussion.

The interest payment amounts above include: (111B8% fixed interest rate payments on the GE @heguipment loan, (2) the 4.02% fixed
interest rate payments on the GE real estate (8athe estimated interest rate payment on thelkrirate line of credit with GE Capital based los t
current 30-day LIBOR plus 2% or 2.25% for fiscahy@014 as the Company plans to pay off the lineredit at the beginning of fiscal year 2015, (4)
the estimated interest rate payment on the varibé&ie Loan with BMO Harris based on the four yeatdrical average 30-day LIBOR plus 2% or
2.24% and (5) the estimated interest rate paymetii®@variable rate IRB based on the five yeaohistl interest rate average for the Municipal Swap
Index plus 20 basis points plus the letter of dradd remarketing fees of 0.875% resulting in dmeged rate of 1.52%.

Landec is not a party to any agreements with, arrngments to, any special purpose entities thatldvoanstitute material off-balance sheet
financing other than the operating lease commitment

Landec’s future capital requirements will depenchamerous factors, including the progress of iseaech and development programs; the
continued development of marketing, sales andibigton capabilities; the ability of Landec to ddtash and maintain new collaborative and licensing
arrangements; any decision to pursue additionalisitipn opportunities; weather conditions that edfiect the supply and price of produce, the timing
and amount, if any, of payments received unden$itey and research and development agreementspsteeinvolved in preparing, filing, prosecutii
defending and enforcing intellectual property rgghhe ability to comply with regulatory requirent&rthe emergence of competitive technology and
market forces; the effectiveness of product comiakzation activities and arrangements; and othetdrs. If Landec’s currently available funds,
together with the internally generated cash floswfroperations are not sufficient to satisfy itsitdimeeds, Landec would be required to seek
additional funding through other arrangements wiaborative partners, additional bank borrowiags public or private sales of its securities. €her
can be no assurance that additional funds, if requivill be available to Landec on favorable terihat all.

Landec believes that its cash from operations,galeith existing cash, cash equivalents and marketsdrurities will be sufficient to finance
its operational and capital requirements for astiélae next twelve months.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MakRisk
Not significant.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
See Item 15 of Part IV of this report.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcédunting and Financial Disclosure
Not applicable.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

In January 2013, the Audit Committee of our Boar®iectors completed its independent investigatign certain accounting and financial
control matters following our January 2, 2013 ammeament that we would restate our financial stategfor the three month period ended August
2012. As a result of management's review we idedté material weakness in our internal controldwencial reporting which required corrective
and remedial action, including strengthening tigerriof our review controls regarding the periodit fnarket value adjustments to our investment in a
non-public company. As of May 26, 2013, we have pleted all remedial actions required to strengtheninternal controls in this area and have
remediated this material weakness in the effecéssmof controls.

As of May 26, 2013, our management evaluated, patticipation of our Chief Executive Officer andrathief Financial Officer, the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and pracesias of the end of the period covered by thisuahReport on Form 10-K. Based on this
evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and our €Htinancial Officer have concluded that our disale controls and procedures are effective in
ensuring that information required to be discloseceports filed under the Securities Exchange #c934, as amended, is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periodsi§ipd by the Securities and Exchange Commissiod,ae effective in providing reasonable
assurance that information required to be disclésetthe Company in such reports is accumulatedccantmunicated to the Company’s management,
including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Rimcial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely dgans regarding required disclosure.

Management's Report on Internal Control over Finaiad Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@gaorting (as defined in Rule 13&(f)
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as ae®n@®ur management assessed the effectiveness witernal control over financial reporting as
of May 26, 2013. In making this assessment, ouragament used the criteria set forth by the ComeitfeSponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (“COSO”) in Internal Control - IntegrdtEramework. Our management has concluded thaf, May 26, 2013, our internal control over
financial reporting was effective to provide reasille assurance regarding the reliability of finahoéporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles.

Our management, including our Chief Executive @ffiand Chief Financial Officer, does not expect tha disclosure controls and
procedures or our internal control over financedarting will prevent all error and all fraud. Ardool system, no matter how well conceived and
operated, can provide only reasonable, not absasteirance that the objectives of the controkesysire met. Further, the design of a control system
must reflect the fact that there are resource caings, and the benefits of controls must be carsid relative to their costs. Because of the inttere
limitations in all control systems, no evaluatidrcontrols can provide absolute assurance thaballrol issues and instances of fraud, if any, iwith
the Company have been detected.

Our independent registered public accounting flEmst & Young LLP, has issued an audit report onioternal control over financial
reporting, which is included herein.

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reportiy
Except as disclosed in the Evaluation of Disclostwatrols and Procedures section above, there mechanges in our internal controls over

financial reporting during the fiscal year endedyl28&, 2013 that have materially affected, or assomably likely to materially affect, our internal
controls over financial reporting.
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REPORT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP, INDEPENDENT REGISTERED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of LanderpGration

We have audited Landec Corporation and subsidianisnal control over financial reporting as ofly126, 2013, based on criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framdwssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organinatiaf the Treadway Commission (the COSO
criteria). Landec Corporation and subsidiaries’ aggment is responsible for maintaining effectiverimal control over financial reporting, and far it
assessment of the effectiveness of internal cootret financial reporting included in the accompgagyManagement’s Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to exgge@n opinion on the company’s internal controlr dveancial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightiq@nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenalteontrol over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal cordgwar financial reporting, assessing the risk that
material weakness exists, testing and evaluatiegiésign and operating effectiveness of internafrobbased on the assessed risk, and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessgy dircumstances. We believe that our audit plewia reasonable basis for our opinion.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is @pess designed to provide reasonable assuranaeiregthe reliability of financie
reporting and the preparation of financial statetsiéor external purposes in accordance with gelyesatepted accounting principles. A company’s
internal control over financial reporting includé®se policies and procedures that (1) pertaihéartaintenance of records that, in reasonableldetai
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) igeweasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation ofiiahstatements in accordance with generally aedepccounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made ordg@ordance with authorizations of management amdtdrs of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or tidetction of unauthorized acquisition, use, opdiition of the compang’assets that could hav
material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢¢tmisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods afgexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedunay deteriorate.

In our opinion, Landec Corporation and subsidian®sntained, in all material respects, effectiveiinal control over financial reporting as of
May 26, 2013, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the consolidated
balance sheets of Landec Corporation and subsidiadg of May 26, 2013 and May 27, 2012, and tlaeelconsolidated statements of
comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity, antt flasvs for each of the three years in the periodegl May 26, 2013 and our report dated August
6, 2013 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLP

San Francisco, California
August 6, 2013

Item 9B. Other Information

None
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Item 10.

Item 11.

Item 12.

Item 13.

Item 14.

PART Il

Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govene

This information required by this item will be cairied in the Registrant’s definitive proxy statetnghich the Registrant will file with
the Commission no later than September 23, 2013 d&g2s after the Registrant’s fiscal year end aedday this Report) and is
incorporated herein by reference.

Executive Compensatio

This information required by this item will be cairied in the Registrant’s definitive proxy statetnghich the Registrant will file with
the Commission no later than September 23, 2013 d&¥2s after the Registrant’s fiscal year end aedday this Report) and is
incorporated herein by reference.

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners abBnagement and Related Stockholder Mattt

This information required by this item will be cairied in the Registrant’s definitive proxy statemnhich the Registrant will file with
the Commission no later than September 23, 2013 da%s after the Registrant’s fiscal year end aeddry this Report) and is
incorporated herein by reference.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions aditector Independence

This information required by this item will be cairied in the Registrant’s definitive proxy statemn&hich the Registrant will file with
the Commission no later than September 23, 2013 da%s after the Registrant’s fiscal year end aeddry this Report) and is
incorporated herein by reference.

Principal Accountant Fees and Servici

This information required by this item will be cairied in the Registrant’s definitive proxy statemnhich the Registrant will file with
the Commission no later than September 23, 2013 da¥s after the Registrant’s fiscal year end aedvdry this Report) and is
incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

ltem Exhibits and Financial Statement Scheduls
15.

(@)1. consolidated Financial Statements of Landec Cotjoora

Page
Report of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent RegistePadlic Accounting Firm 50
Consolidated Balance Sheets at May 26, 2013 and2V1a2012 51
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive IncomthéoYears Ended May 26, 2013, May 27, 2012 and 282011 52
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockhol&epsity for the Years Ended May 26, 2013, May 2¥12and May 29, 2011 53
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Yeaded May 26, 2013, May 27, 2012 and May 29, 2011 54
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem 55

2. All schedules provided for in the applicable acammregulations of the Securities and Exchange @@sion have been omitted sil
they pertain to items which do not appear in thericial statements of Landec Corporation and isidiaries or to items which are
significant or to items as to which the requiresctiisures have been made elsewhere in the finastat@iments and supplementary n
and such schedules.

3. Index of Exhibits 85

The exhibits listed in the accompanying Index ohibis are filed or incorporated by reference as pfthis report.
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REPORT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP, INDEPENDENT REGISTERED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of LanderpGration

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of Landec Corporation and subsidiarie$ ey 26, 2013 and May 27, 2012,
and the related consolidated statements of compsaheincome, stockholders’ equity, and cash fllaveach of the three years in the period ended
May 26, 2013. These financial statements are thgoresibility of the Company's management. Our nesibdity is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBiqUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet émdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdintecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digidg in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles usédignificant estimates made by management, dsawelaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits providesaonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referreabove present fairly, in all material respedts, ¢onsolidated financial position of Landec
Corporation and subsidiaries at May 26, 2013 ang ®¥g 2012, and the consolidated results of thedrations and their cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended May 26, 2013, infaraity with U.S. generally accepted accountinggiples.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), Landec
Corporation’s internal control over financial refiog as of May 26, 2013, based on criteria esthbtisn Internal Controlrtegrated Framework issu

by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations offtteadway Commission and our report dated Augug063 expressed an unqualified opinion
thereon.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLP

San Francisco, California
August 6, 2013
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LANDEC CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

May 26, 2013 May 27, 2012
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 13,71¢ $ 22,17
Marketable securities 1,54t —
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtfalbants of $583 and $512 at May 26, 2013 and M
27, 2012, respectively 36,07 31,95
Accounts receivable, related party 671 32¢
Income taxes receivable 5,10: 47
Inventories, net 24,11 22,01
Deferred taxes 1,58: 2,07¢
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 2,85¢ 2,57¢
Total current assets 85,66( 81,16:
Investment in non-public company, non-fair value 79< 798
Investment in non-public company, fair value 29,60( 21,50(
Property and equipment, net 65,81: 63,49t
Goodwill, net 49,62( 49,62(
Trademarks/ trade names, net 48,42¢ 48,42¢
Customer relationships, net 9,60¢ 10,557
Other assets 1,42¢ 2,13¢
Total Assets $ 290,94. $ 277,69:
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 3147C $ 22,64«
Related party payables 78€ 77€
Accrued compensation 4,98¢ 5,782
Other accrued liabilities 2,33¢ 18,64:
Deferred revenue 1,24¢ 162
Lines of credit 4,00( 11,66¢
Current portion of long-term debt 5,93¢ 7,012
Total current liabilities 50,75 66,68
Long-term debt 34,37: 40,30¢
Deferred taxes 24,05« 18,037
Other non-current liabilities 1,34¢ 1,10¢
Total liabilities 110,52¢ 126,13:
Commitments and contingencies (Note 12)
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock, $0.001 par value; 50,000,000 shartt®azed; 26,402,247 and 25,644,580 shares
issued and outstanding at May 26, 2013 and MapQ¥2, respectively 2€ 26
Additional paid-in capital 126,25¢ 119,89
Retained earnings 52,40¢ 29,82
Total stockholders’ equity 178,69: 149,74
Non-controlling interest 1,721 1,81¢
Total Equity 180,41 151,55¢
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity $ 290,94 $ 277,69.

See accompanying notes.
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LANDEC CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Revenues:

Product sales

Services revenue, related party
Total revenues

Cost of revenue:
Cost of product sales
Cost of services revenue
Total cost of revenue

Gross profit

Operating costs and expenses:
Research and development
Selling, general and administrative
Other operating expenses
Total operating costs and expenses

Operating income

Dividend income

Interest income

Interest expense

Other income

Net income before taxe

Income tax expense

Consolidated net income

Nonr-controlling interest

Net income and comprehensive income applicableencon stockholder

Basic net income per share
Diluted net income per share

Shares used in per share computation:
Basic
Diluted

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
May 26, May 27, May 29,
2013 2012 2011
$ 439,57 $ 314,41 $ 273,33¢
2,13¢ 3,13¢ 3,391
441,70t 317,55: 276,72¢
377,07¢ 262,85¢ 227,16
1,87( 2,55t 2,867
378,94 265,41 230,03:
62,76( 52,13¢ 46,69¢
9,29¢ 9,62t 9,27¢
32,53: 26,51t 24,60¢
(3,939 1,421 4,78(
37,89: 37,56 38,66
24,86¢ 14,577 8,03:
1,12¢ 1,12¢ 32¢
17¢ 18C 43C
(2,00¢) (929 (820)
8,10( 5,331 472
32,26« 20,28 8,44:
(9,452) (7,185 (4,18))
22,81: 13,09¢ 4,261
(225) (403) (341
$ 2258 $ 12,69¢ $ 3,92(
$ 0.87 $ 04¢ $ 0.1%
$ 0.8t $ 0.4¢ $ 0.1F
25,83( 25,84¢ 26,39’
26,62¢ 26,12¢ 26,62¢

See accompanying notes
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Balance at May 30, 2010
Issuance of common stock at $3.38 to
$3.80 per share, net of taxes paid by
Landec on behalf of employees
Issuance of common stock for vested
restricted stock units
Common stock repurchased on the ope
market
Taxes paid by Company for stock swap
and RSUs
Stock-based compensation
Tax benefit from stock-based
compensation expense
Non-controlling interest
Payments to non-controlling interest
Net income and comprehensive loss
Balance at May 29, 2011
Issuance of common stock at $2.55 to
$6.95 per share, net of taxes paid by
Landec on behalf of employees
Issuance of common stock for vested
restricted stock units
Common stock repurchased on the ope
market
Taxes paid by Company for stock swap
and RSUs
Stock-based compensation
Tax benefit from stock-based
compensation expense
Non-controlling interest
Payments to non-controlling interest
Net and comprehensive income
Balance at May 27, 2012
Issuance of common stock at $1.66 to
$13.32 per share, net of taxes paid by
Landec on behalf of employees
Issuance of common stock for vested
restricted stock units
Taxes paid by Company for stock swap
and RSUs
Stock-based compensation
Tax benefit from stock-based
compensation expense
Non-controlling interest
Payments to non-controlling interest
Net and comprehensive income
Balance at May 26, 2013

LANDEC CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Non-

Additional Other Total controlling

Common Stock Paid-in Retained Comprehensive Stockholders’ interest

Shares Amount Capital Earnings Loss Equity

26,490,25 $ 27 $ 117,73( $ 13,20t $ 179 $ 130,78 $ 1,691
91,09: — 12¢ — — 12¢ —
40,13 — — — — — —
(215,68, — (1,189 — — (1,189 —
— — (21¢) — — (219) —

— — 1,951 — — 1,951 —

— — 764 — — 764 —

— — — — — — 341
— — — — — — (363)

— — — 3,92( (88 3,832 —
26,405,79 27 119,16¢ 17,12¢ (267) 136,05! 1,671
72,57: — 61 — — 61 —
83,45 — — — — — —
(917,24, 1) (5,00%) — — (5,006 —
— — (260) — — (260) —

— — 1,872 — — 1,87 —

— — 4,057 — — 4,057 —

— — — — — — 403
— — — — — — (25¢)

— — — 12,69¢ 267 12,96: —
25,644,58 26 119,89: 29,82: 149,74. 1,81¢
597,53 — 3,41¢ — — 3,41¢ —
160,13( — — — — — —
— — (49 — — (49 —

— — 1,69 — — 1,69t —

— — 1,30z — — 1,30z —

— — — — — — 22t
— — — — — — (320

— — — 22,581 — 22,58 —
26,402,24 % 26 $ 126,25¢ $ 52,40¢ $ — $ 178,69 $ 1,721

See accompanying notes
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LANDEC CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
May 26, May 27, May 29,
2013 2012 2011
Cash flows from operating activities:
Consolidated net income $ 22,81: $ 13,09¢ % 4,261
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigesl by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization 7,29¢ 5,621 5,31:
Stock-based compensation expense 1,69¢ 1,87z 1,951
Deferred taxes 6,511 3,28: 3,251
Change in investment in non-public company (fairketvalue) (8,100 (5,83¢) (662)
Increase in long-term receivable — — (800)
Tax benefit from stock based compensation (1,302) (4,057) (764
Net loss on disposal of property and equipment 217 12 26
Earn out liability (3,939 — —
Impairment charges — — 4,78(
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effectsmifacquisitions:
Accounts receivable, net (4,12 (3,24¢) (3,016
Accounts receivable, related party (34¢) 13C 27¢€
Income taxes receivable (3,759 4,581 87¢
Inventories, net (2,102 (447) (4,059
Issuance of notes and advances receivable (4,179 (3,699 (3,079
Collection of notes and advances receivable 4,17: 3,70¢ 3,31«
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (27¢) 3,58¢ 60z
Accounts payable 8,82¢ (544 2,39:
Related party accounts payable 10 47€ (49
Accrued compensation (79¢) 2,701 1,03¢
Other accrued liabilities (2,48¢) 3,43¢ 532
Deferred revenue 1,08¢ (2,495 (1,739
Net cash provided by operating activities 21,23( 22,18 14,46¢
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment (8,877) (5,37)) (6,689
Acquisition of GreenLine (Note 2) — (66,82¢) —
Purchase of marketable securities (4,959 (30,729 (59,839
Proceeds from maturities of marketable securities 3,414 31,10¢ 24.,84:
Proceeds from sales of marketable securities — 27,74 27,28
Investment in non-public company (fair market value — — (15,000)
Net cash used in investing activities (10,427 (44,079) (29,38)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Repurchase of outstanding common stock — (5,006 (1,189
Proceeds from sale of common stock 3,41¢ 61 12€
Taxes paid by Company for stock swaps and RSUs (49 (260) (21¥)
Tax benefit from stock-based compensation expense 1,302 4,057 764
Earn out payment from Lifecore acquisition (9,650 — —
Net change in other assets/liabilities 712 (1,819 49
Proceeds from long term debt — 31,81¢ —
Proceeds from lines of credit — 12,76¢ —
Payments on long term debt (7,012) (4,329 (3,940
Payments on lines of credit (7,66€) (2,100 —
Payments to non-controlling interest. (320) (25¢) (367)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (19,26)) 35,93¢ (4,769
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equisalent (8,459 14,04 (19,687
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 22,17 8,13t 27,81,
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 13,71t $ 22,177 $ 8,13t

Supplemental disclosure of cash flows information:
Cash paid during the period for interest $ 1,72¢  $ 95z $ 761




Cash paid during the period for income taxes $ 5,60 $ 24 % 14€

Supplemental schedule of noncash operating andding activities:
Long-term receivable from Monsanto $ —

Impairment charges

—  $ 80C
—  $ 4,78(

1521
|
&

See accompanying notes.
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LANDEC CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization, Basis of Presentatioand Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Organization

Landec Corporation and its subsidiaries (“Landecthe “Company”) design, develop, manufacture aibdifferentiated products for food
and biomaterials markets and license technologlicgtipns to partners. The Company has two prognepolymer technology platforms: 1)
Intelimer® polymers, and 2) hyaluronan (“HA”) bidgmers. The Company’s HA biopolymers are proprigfarthat they are specially formulated for
specific customers to meet strict regulatory rezpients. The Company’s polymer technologies, aloitly itg customer relationships and trade names,
are the foundation, and a key differentiating adege upon which Landec has built its business.dmpany sells specialty packaged branded Eat
Smart and GreenLine and private label freshvegetables and whole produce to retailers, sfaies and foodservice operators, primarily inlnéed
States, Canada and Asia through its Apio, Inc. {8®psubsidiary and sells HA-based biomaterial®tigh its Lifecore Biomedical, Inc. (“Lifecore”)
subsidiary.

Basis of Presentation
Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements are presemidhbe accrual basis of accounting in accordariteWS. generally accepted accounting
principles and include the accounts of Landec Catjimn and its subsidiaries, Apio and Lifecore. lhterial inter-company transactions and balances
have been eliminated.

Arrangements that are not controlled through votingimilar rights are reviewed under the guidaiocevariable interest entities (“VIES”). A
company is required to consolidate the assetdlitiab and operations of a VIE if it is determin&xbe the primary beneficiary of the VIE.

An entity is a VIE and subject to consolidationbyf design: a) the total equity investment at rsskot sufficient to permit the entity to finance
its activities without additional subordinated fireéal support provided by any parties, includingiggholders or b) as a group the holders of thaitg
investment at risk lack any one of the followingett characteristics: (i) the power, through votigépts or similar rights to direct the activitieban
entity that most significantly impact the entitgsonomic performance, (ii) the obligation to absih expected losses of the entity, or (iii) thghtito
receive the expected residual returns of the enftlig Company reviewed the consolidation guidameecancluded that the partnership interest and
equity investment in non-public companies by thenfany are not VIEs.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to pear jinancial statements to conform to the curyear presentation.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conféymiith U.S. generally accepted accounting priresplequires management to make certain
estimates and judgments that affect the amountstexpin the financial statements and accompanyaigs. The accounting estimates that require
management’s most significant and subjective judgmimclude revenue recognition; sales returnsadlodvances; recognition and measurement of

current and deferred income tax assets and liisilithe assessment of recoverability of long-ligsdets; the valuation of intangible assets and
inventory; the valuation of investments; and thiiadon and recognition of stock-based compensation
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1. Organization, Basis of Presentatioand Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (catinued)

These estimates involve the consideration of corfaletors and require management to make judgmeéhesanalysis of historical and future
trends can require extended periods of time tovesand are subject to change from period to pefib@ actual results may differ from management'’s
estimates.

Concentrations of Risk

Cash and cash equivalents, marketable securitége ticcounts receivable, grower advances and remteiwable are financial instruments -
potentially subject the Company to concentratidngredit risk. Our Company policy limits, among etltthings, the amount of credit exposure to any
one issuer and to any one type of investment, atizer securities issued or guaranteed by the Wrgment. The Company routinely assesses the
financial strength of customers and growers and, @nsequence, believes that trade receivablesegradvances and notes receivable credit risk
exposure is limited. Credit losses for bad debtpaoeided for in the consolidated financial statetsehrough a charge to operations. A valuation
allowance is provided for known and anticipatediitrmsses. The recorded amounts for these finhimsauments approximate their fair value.

Several of the raw materials we use to manufadureroducts are currently purchased from a sisglece, including some monomers used
to synthesize Intelimer polymers, substrate mdtef@a our breathable membrane products and raveniadg for our HA products.

The operations of Windset, in which the Companyba 20.1% minority investment, are predominamttated in British Columbia and
Santa Maria, California. Routinely, the Companyleates the financial strength and ability for Wiatl® continue as a going concern.

During the fiscal year ended May 26, 2013, salebheédCompany’s top five customers accounted for@pmately 40% of total revenue with
the top two customers from the Food Products Tdolgycssegment accounting for approximately 16% aBfb lrespectively, of total revenues. In
addition, approximately 30% of the Company'’s totalenues were derived from product sales to intemmal customers, none of which individually
accounted for more than 5% of total revenues. Adaj 26, 2013, the top two customers from the FBamHucts Technology segment
both represented approximately 15% of total accotetteivable.

During the fiscal year ended May 27, 2012, salébkeéacCompany’s top five customers accounted for@apmately 45% of total revenue with
the top two customers from the Food Products Tdolgycsegment accounting for approximately 17% abhlrespectively, of total revenues. In
addition, approximately 36% of the Company'’s to&alenues were derived from product sales to intemma customers, one of whom individually
accounted for more than 5% of total revenues. Adaj 27, 2012, the top two customers from the FBamHucts Technology segment
both represented approximately 11% of total accotetteivable.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment wienevents or changes in circumstances indicatdtiba carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. Recoverability of assets is measuyambimparison of the carrying amount of the asséteémet undiscounted future cash flow expectt
be generated from the asset. If the future undistsmlicash flows are not sufficient to recover thirying value of the assets, the assets’ carryaigev
is adjusted to fair value. The Company regularlgleates its long-lived assets for indicators ofslde impairment.

Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments are primariynposed of marketable securities, commercial-teaghet payables, grower advances,
notes receivable and debt instruments. For shom-testruments, the historical carrying amount appnates the fair value of the instrument. The fair
value of long-term debt and lines of credit appneedies their carrying value. Fair values for longrtéinancial instruments not readily marketable are
estimated based upon discounted future cash floyeegailing market interest rates. Based on tlassemptions, management believes the fair marke
values of the Company’s financial instruments aresignificantly different from their recorded amnmisi as of May 26, 2013 and May 27, 2012.
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1. Organization, Basis of Presentatioand Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (catinued)
Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Acamts

The Company carries its accounts receivable at theé amounts less an allowance for doubtful actown a periodic basis, the Company
evaluates its accounts receivable and establishaBavance for doubtful accounts and estimategdssesulting from the inability of its customers t
make required payments. The allowance for doulaifabunts is determined based on review of the dwemadition of accounts receivable balances
and review of significant past due accounts. Thenalnce for doubtful accounts is based on speitiatification of past due amounts and for accc
over 90-days past due. The changes in the Compahgisance for doubtful accounts are summarizetthénfollowing table (in thousands).

Additions from
acquisitions and

Balance at additions from Balance at enc

beginning charges to costs  Write offs net of of

of period and expenses recoveries period
Year ended May 29, 2011 $ 18¢ % 20 % 56 $ 34z
Year ended May 27, 2012 $ 34z 3 248 $ (78 $ 512
Year ended May 26, 2013 $ 51z $ 10¢ % (38 $ 58:

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from product sales is recognized when ikgrersuasive evidence that an arrangement etiikid)as transferred, the price is fixed
or determinable, and collectability is reasonalsisumed. Allowances are established for estimatedllgttible amounts, product returns, and discounts
based on specific identification and historicables

The Company takes title to all produce it traded¥@anpackages, and therefore, records revenuesamaf sales at gross amounts in the
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive IncdRevenue recognition for product sales generallyiecwhen the customer receives the product or
at the time title passes to the customer. Custogenerally do not have the right to return produdess damaged or defective. Net sales is comprised
of gross sales reduced by customer returns andicwrspromotion allowances.

Licensing revenue is recognized in accordance adttounting guidance. Initial license fees are deteand amortized to revenue over the
period of the agreement when a contract existdethés fixed and determinable, and collectabibtyeasonably assured. Noncancellable,
nonrefundable license fees are recognized ovarehied of the agreement, including those governgsgarch and development activities and any
related supply agreement entered into concurrevitly the license when the risk associated with cemuialization of a product is non-substantive at
the outset of the arrangement.

Contract revenue for research and development (R&B8corded as earned, based on the performagugements of the contract. Non-
refundable contract fees for which no further perfance obligations exist, and there is no contigumvolvement by the Company, are recognized on
the earlier of when the payments are received @rwvdollection is assured.

When a sales arrangement contains multiple elemr@s€Company allocates revenue to each elemeatdtmasa selling price hierarchy. The
relative selling price for a deliverable is basedte vendor-specific objective evidence (VSOERpvhilable, thirdearty evidence (TPE), if VSOE is r
available, or estimated selling price, if neithe8OE nor TPE is available. The Company then recegmevenue on each deliverable in accordance
with its policies for product and service reveneeagnition. The Company is not typically able ttedine VSOE or TPE, and therefore, uses
estimated selling prices to allocate revenue batwiee elements of the arrangement.
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1. Organization, Basis of Presentatioand Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (catinued)

The Company limits the amount of revenue recognitay delivered elements to the amount that iscoeotingent on the future delivery of
products or services or future performance obligegtior subject to customsepecific cancellation rights. The Company evaluatesh deliverable in &
arrangement to determine whether they represeatatepunits of accounting. A deliverable constideseparate unit of accounting when it has stand-
alone value, and for an arrangement that includgsnaral right of return relative to the deliveprdducts or services, delivery or performance ef th
undelivered product or service is considered prigbabd is substantially controlled by the Comparhe Company considers a deliverable to have
stand-alone value if the product or service is seldarately by the Company or another vendor dddmeiresold by the customer. Further, the revenue
arrangements generally do not include a generat dfjreturn relative to the delivered products.atéhthe aforementioned criteria for a separateaf
accounting are not met, the deliverable is combimitl the undelivered element(s) and treated asglesunit of accounting for the purposes of
allocation of the arrangement consideration andmae recognition. The Company allocates the totahgement consideration to each separable
element of an arrangement based upon the relaliiegsprice of each element. Allocation of the simteration is determined at arrangement inception
on the basis of each unit’s relative selling priceinstances where the Company has not establfstiredalue for any undelivered element, revenue fo
all elements is deferred until delivery of the firlement is completed and all recognition critenia met.

Shipping and Handling Costs

Amounts billed to third-party customers for shippend handling are included as a component of teg&rShipping and handling costs
incurred are included as a component of cost adyets sold and represent costs incurred to shigyatdrom the sourcing locations to the end
consumer markets.

Other Accounting Policies and Disclosures
Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company records all highly liquid securitieshathree months or less from date of purchase tombaas cash equivalents. Cash
equivalents consist mainly of certificate of dep@$CDs), money market funds and U.S. Treasuribs.rmarket value of cash equivalents approxin
their historical cost given their short-term nature

Marketable Securities

Short-term marketable securities consist of CDsdh@ FDIC insured and single A or better rateghotate and municipal bonds with original
maturities of more than three months at the dafiothase regardless of the maturity date. The @omplassifies all debt securities with readily
determinable market values as “available for safethe Company views the funds within its portf@gavailable for use in its current operationbe
aggregate amount of CDs included in marketablerg@sias of May 26, 2013 and May 27, 2012 was @1 and zero, respectively. The contractual
maturities of the Company's marketable securitias @re due in less than one year represent $1i8mand zero of its marketable securities ands#
due in one to two years represent the remainind $2B and zero of the Company’s marketable seesrés of May 26, 2013 and May 27, 2012,
respectively. Investments in marketable securéirescarried at fair market value with unrealizethgand losses reported as other income. The €ost o
debt securities is adjusted for amortization ofitens and discounts to maturity. This amortizat®recorded to interest income. Realized gains and
losses on the sale of available for sale secutiesalso recorded to interest income and wersigoificant for the fiscal years ended May 26, 2013
and May 27, 2012. During fiscal years 2013 and 2812 Company received proceeds of zero and $2illidnmrespectively, from the sale of
marketable securities. The cost of securities solhsed on the specific identification method.
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1. Organization, Basis of Presentatioand Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cotmued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (usiregfirst-in, firstout method) or market. As of May 26, 2013 and M&y 2012 inventorie
consisted of (in thousands):

May 26, May 27,
2013 2012
Finished goods $ 11,297 $ 9,40¢
Raw materials 9,29( 9,87¢
Work in progress 3,52¢ 2,72¢
Inventories, net $ 24,110 $ 22,01:

If the cost of the inventories exceeds their nalizable value, provisions are recorded curremlgetduce them to net realizable value. The
Company also provides a provision for slow moving absolete inventories.

Advertising Expense

Advertising expenditures for the Company are expéras incurred. Advertising expense for the Companiiscal years 2013, 2012 and
2011 was $445,000, $406,000 and $458,000, respdctiv

Notes and Advances Receivable

Apio issues notes and makes advances to produaeggdor their crop and harvesting costs primdalythe purpose of sourcing crops for
Apio's business. Notes receivable and advancegeswerally recovered during the growing seasors fflesn one year) using proceeds from the crops
sold to Apio. Notes are interest bearing obligaticevidenced by contracts and notes receivaliles@ notes and advances receivable are secured by
perfected liens on crops, have terms that range fhwee to nine months, and are reviewed at lagsteyly for collectability. A reserve is estabksl
for any note or advance deemed to not be fullyectilble based upon an estimate of the crop valtleeofair value of the security for the note or
advance. There were no notes or advances outstpatiMay 26, 2013.

Related Party Transactions

The Company provides cooling and distribution sesito both a farm and Beachside Produce LLC ("Bsde"), a commodity produce
distributor, in which the Chairman of Apio has anfitng and ownership interest, respectively. Daiffiscal years 2013, 2012 and 2011, the Company
recognized revenues of $2.5 million, $3.8 milliand $4.1 million, respectively, which have beeruded in product sales and in service revenues in
the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Corepséle Income, from the sale of products and pingidooling services to these parties. The
related receivable balances of $671,000 and $3@&69included in accounts receivable in the acemyipg Consolidated Balance Sheets as of May
26, 2013 and May 27, 2012, respectively.

Additionally, unrelated to the revenue transactiabseve, the Company purchases produce from Beaglesidrm in which the Chairman of
Apio has an ownership interest, and Windset Hold0g0 Ltd., a Canadian corporation (“Windset”) $atte to third parties. During fiscal years 2013,
2012 and 2011, the Company recognized cost of jptahles of $6.7 million, $5.6 million and $3.6 i, respectively, in the accompanying
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incoram fhe sale of products purchased from these paffttee related accounts payable of $786,000
and $776,000 are included in related party accquenyable in the accompanying Consolidated BalaheetS as of May 26, 2013 and May 27, 2012,
respectively.

All related party transactions are monitored qubrtey the Company and approved by the Audit Corteribf the Board of Directors.
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1. Organization, Basis of Presentatioand Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cotmued)
Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Expgedifor major improvements are capitalized wtelgairs and maintenance are charged to
expense. Depreciation is expensed on a straightlisis over the estimated useful lives of theaetbge assets, generally three to thirty years for
buildings and leasehold improvements and threeversyears for furniture and fixtures, computeaitalized software, capitalized leases, machir
equipment and autos. Leasehold improvements aretiaetbon a straight-line basis over the lessehefeconomic life of the improvement or the life
of the lease.

The Company capitalizes software development dosisternal use in accordance with accounting goak. Capitalization of software
development costs begins in the application devetoy stage and ends when the asset is placedeintioces The Company amortizes such costs using
the straight-line basis over estimated useful livkethree to seven years. During fiscal years 20182012, the Company did not capitalize any
software development costs.

Long-Lived Assets

The Company’s Londived Assets consist of property, plant and equipinend intangible assets. Intangible assets ampdsed of custome
relationships with an estimated useful life of tveeto thirteen years (the “finite-lived intangilaesets”) and trademarks/trade names and goodwhil wi
indefinite lives (collectively, “the indefinite-led intangible assets”), which the Company recoghizeaccordance with accounting guidance (i) upon
the acquisition of GreenLine Holding Company (“Greime”) by Apio in April 2012, (ii) upon the acqui®n of Lifecore in April 2010 and (iii) upon
the acquisition of Apio in December 1999. Accougtguidance defines goodwill as “the excess of the of an acquired entity over the net of the
estimated fair values of the assets acquired amtiahilities assumed at date of acquisition.” idtiangible assets, including goodwill, associatetth w
the acquisition of Lifecore was allocated to our-Hésed Biomaterials reporting unit and the acquoisstof Apio and GreenLine were allocated to our
Food Products Technology reporting unit pursuaricimounting guidance based upon the allocatioss#ta and liabilities acquired and consideration
paid for each reporting unit. As of May 26, 2018 HA-based Biomaterials reporting unit had $13illon of goodwill and the Food Products
Technology reporting unit had $35.7 million of gadli

Property, plant and equipment and finite-lived ingfible assets are reviewed for possible impairmdrenever events or changes in
circumstances occur that indicate that the carrgimgunt of an asset (or asset group) may not lmveeable. The Company’s impairment review
requires significant management judgment includisgmating the future success of product linesjreusales volumes, revenue and expense growth
rates, alternative uses for the assets and estimateeeds from the disposal of the assets. Thep@nynconducts quarterly reviews of idle and
underutilized equipment, and reviews business dlangossible impairment indicators. Impairmeninidicated when the carrying amount of the asset
(or asset group) exceeds its estimated future codiged cash flows and the impairment is viewedtlsr than temporary. When impairment is
indicated, an impairment charge is recorded fowdifference between the asset's book value aresiisated fair value. Depending on the asset,
estimated fair value may be determined either leyaisx discounted cash flow model or by referencestimated selling values of assets in similar
condition. The use of different assumptions woulttéase or decrease the estimated fair value efsaasd would increase or decrease any impairmen
measurement.

The Company tests its indefinite-lived intangibésets for impairment at least annually, in accocdamith accounting guidance. For non-
goodwill indefinite-lived intangible assets, ther@any performs a qualitative analysis in accordamitie ASC 350-3035. For goodwill, the Compar
performs a quantitative analysis in accordance W8iC 350-20-35.

Application of the impairment tests for indefiniteed intangible assets requires significant judgii®/ management, including identification
of reporting units, assignment of assets and ltgdslto reporting units, assignment of intangiédsets to reporting units, and the determinaticdhef
fair value of each indefinite-lived intangible asaad reporting unit based upon projections ofriteet cash flows, discount rates and market
multiples, which judgments and projections are irhdy uncertain.
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1. Organization, Basis of Presentatioand Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cotmued)

The Company tested its indefinite-lived intangigsets for impairment as of July 21, 2013 and deted that no adjustments to the carrying
values of these assets were necessary as of teaQtaa quarterly basis, the Company consideragkd to update its most recent annual tests for
possible impairment of its indefinite-lived intablg assets, based on management’s assessmenhgésha its business and other economic factors
since the most recent annual evaluation. Such @sarfgsignificant or material, could indicate addo update the most recent annual tests for
impairment of the indefinite-lived intangible assduring the current period. The results of thesestcould lead to write-downs of the carrying ealu
of these assets in the current period.

The Company uses the discounted cash flow (“DCppreach to develop an estimate of fair value fardyall. The DCF approach
recognizes that current value is premised on tipeerd receipt of future economic benefits. Indicet of value are developed by discounting
projected future net cash flows to their presehievat a rate that reflects both the current retequirements of the market and the risks inheretiie
specific investment. The market approach is notl tisevalue the Company’s reporting units (the “mipg units”) because insufficient market
comparables exist to enable the Company to degeleasonable fair value of its intangible asseéstduhe unique nature of each of the Company’s
reporting units.

The DCF approach requires the Company to exergdgnjent in determining future business and findrfor@casts and the related estimates
of future net cash flows. Future net cash flowsethepprimarily on future product sales, which afgeirently difficult to predict. These net cash flows
are discounted at a rate that reflects both theentireturn requirements of the market and thesriskerent in the specific investment.

The DCF associated with the annual goodwill impaintranalysis for the Food Products Technology témpunit is based on management'’s
five-year projection of revenues, gross profits apdrating profits by fiscal year and assumes a 8fféttive tax rate for each year. Management takes
into account the historical trends of the Food Botsl Technology reporting unit and the industryegaties in which it operates along with inflatiopar
factors, current economic conditions, new prodantrbductions, cost of sales, operating expensg#ataequirements and other relevant data when
developing its projection. The estimated fair vatfi¢he Food Products Technology reporting univfaduly 21, 2013 was 111% of its book value at
that date, therefore, no goodwill impairment wasrded to exist. For the test performed as of Ju\2@22, the projected cash flow from operations
determining the DCF for fiscal year 2013 was $18ilion for the Food Products Technology reportimgt. The actual cash flow from operations for
fiscal year 2013 was $13.6 million. The differerméé&3.4 million was primarily due to the timing wbrking capital changes.

The DCF associated with the annual goodwill impaintranalysis for the HA-based Biomaterials repgrtinit is based on management’s
five-year projections of revenues, gross profitd aperating profits by fiscal year and assumes% 8ifective tax rate for each year. Management
takes into account the historical trends of HA-lbeB®materials reporting unit and the industry gatges in which it operates along with inflationary
factors, current economic conditions, new prodnttbductions, cost of sales, operating expens@#ataequirements and other relevant data when
developing its projection. The trade name intargédsgset was valued using the relief from royaltyatton method and the customer relationship
intangible asset was valued using the mpdtiiod excess earnings method. The fair value oflgidll was calculated as the excess of considargiad
including the fair value of contingent consideratimder the terms of the purchase agreement, bgdair value of the tangible and intangible assets
acquired less liabilities assumed. The Company tapidés analysis of the fair value of the indefniived intangible assets as of its annual impaitme
analysis date, concluding that the fair value eflttA-based Biomaterials reporting unit, as deteediby the DCF approach, was 117% of its book
value at that date, therefore, no goodwill impainmeas deemed to exist. For the test performed aslp 22, 2012, the projected cash flow from
operations for determining the DCF for fiscal y281.3 was a $8.4 million for the HA-based Biomatsrieporting unit. The actual cash flow from
operations for fiscal year 2013 was $13.2 millithe difference of $4.8 million is primarily due timing of working capital changes.
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1. Organization, Basis of Presentatioand Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (catinued)
Investment in Non-Public Company

The Companys investment in Aesthetic Science is carried at @aod adjusted for impairment losses. Since tremireadily available mark
value information, the Company periodically reviethis investment to determine if an other than terapy decline in value has occurred based on the
financial stability and viability of Aesthetic Sciee.

Aesthetic Science sold the rights to its Smartflijéctor System on July 16, 2010. As a result, leanelvaluated its cost method investment
for impairment, utilizing a discounted cash flonadysis. Based on the terms of the agreement, tinep@ny determined that its investment was other
than temporarily impaired and therefore, recordedrpairment loss of $1.0 million in fiscal yearl®0 The Company'’s carrying value of its
investment in Aesthetic Sciences, net of the inmpairt loss, is $793,000 at May 26, 2013 and May2Q12.

On February 15, 2011, the Company made an investim&vindset which is reported as an investmemtdn-public company, fair value, in
the accompanying Consolidated Balance SheetsMsy®6, 2013 and May 27, 2012. The Company hagezldo account for its investment in
Windset under the fair value option (see Note 4).

Deferred Revenue

Cash received in advance of services performeddipally related to upfront license fees) are rdedras deferred revenue. At May 26, 2013,
$1.2 million was recognized as advances from custent May 27, 2012, $162,000 was recognized aarazes from customers.

Non-Controlling Interest

The Company reports all non-controlling interestsiaeparate component of stockholders’ equity.nbmecontrolling interest’s share of the
income or loss of the consolidated subsidiary oreed as a separate line item in our Consolid&tatements of Comprehensive Income, following
consolidated net income caption.

In connection with the acquisition of Apio, Landemuired Apio’s 60% general partner interest incApboling, a California limited
partnership. Apio Cooling is included in the condaled financial statements of Landec for all pgsipresented. The non-controlling interest balance
of $1.7 million at May 26, 2013 and $1.8 millionMay 27, 2012 is comprised of the non-controllimgiled partners’ interest in Apio Cooling.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordaitbeaccounting guidance which requires that defitax assets and liabilities be
recognized using enacted tax rates for the effieletroporary differences between the book and taisha recorded assets and liabilities. The Com
maintains valuation allowances when it is likelgttall or a portion of a deferred tax asset wili be realized. Changes in valuation allowances from
period to period are included in the Company’s inedax provision in the period of change. In detaimg whether a valuation allowance is
warranted, the Company takes into account sucbr&ets prior earnings history, expected futureiegs) unsettled circumstances that, if unfavorably
resolved, would adversely affect utilization ofefetred tax asset, carryback and carryforward geriand tax strategies that could potentially en@an
the likelihood of realization of a deferred taxetsé\t May 26, 2013, the Company had $783,000 vainallowance against deferred tax assets.

In addition to valuation allowances, the Comparngldsshes accruals for uncertain tax positions. fBixecontingency accruals are adjusted in
light of changing facts and circumstances, sudhagrogress of tax audits, case law and emergigiglation. The Company recognizes interest and
penalties related to uncertain tax positions asmnaponent of income tax expense. The Company’stéféetax rate includes the impact of tax-
contingency accruals as considered appropriatednagement.
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1.  Organization, Basis of Presentation, and &mary of Significant Accounting Policies (continuel

A number of years may elapse before a particulatemdor which the Company has accrued, is auditadifinally resolved. The number of
years with open tax audits varies by jurisdictidrhile it is often difficult to predict the final acome or the timing of resolution of any particutiax
matter, the Company believes its tax-contingencyusds are adequate to address known tax contifegeri€avorable resolution of such matters could
be recognized as a reduction to the Company’stafeetax rate in the year of resolution. Unfavoeabéttlement of any particular issue could increase
the effective tax rate. Any resolution of a taxussnay require the use of cash in the year of uéisol. The Company’s tax-contingency accruals are
recorded in other accrued liabilities in the accampng Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Per Share Information

Accounting guidance requires the presentation sichend diluted earnings per share. Basic earrpagshare excludes any dilutive effects of
options, warrants and convertible securities armbmputed using the weighted average number of aamshares outstanding. Diluted earnings per
share reflect the potential dilution as if secastor other contracts to issue common stock werecesed or converted into common stock. Diluted

common equivalent shares consist of stock optiodsrestricted stock units, calculated using thaswey stock method.

The following table sets forth the computation dfitd net income per share (in thousands, exoepsipare amounts):

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
Ended Ended Ended
May 26, 2013 May 27, 2012 May 29, 2011

Numerator:
Net income applicable to Common Stockholc $ 22587 % 12,69t $ 3,92(
Denominator:

Weighted average shares for basic net income aee sh 25,83( 25,84¢ 26,397
Effect of dilutive securities:

Stock options and restricted stock units 79€ 277 22¢
Weighted average shares for diluted net incomesipaire 26,62¢ 26,12¢ 26,62¢
Diluted net income per share $ 0.8 $ 04¢ $ 0.1t

Options to purchase 88,022, 1,855,167 and 2,03ZB&s of Common Stock at a weighted averageisgeprce of $12.80, $6.72 and $6
per share were outstanding during fiscal yearseéMizy 26, 2013, May 27, 2012 and May 29, 2011, eespely, but were not included in the
computation of diluted net income per share bectheseptions’ exercise price were greater tharatrerage market price of the Common Stock and,
therefore, their inclusion would be antidilutive.

Cost of Sales

The Company includes in cost of sales all the cadéted to the sale of products in accordance geétierally accepted accounting principles.
These costs include the following: raw materiatgl(iding produce, seeds, packaging, syringes antkefgtation and purification supplies), direct lal
overhead (including indirect labor, depreciatiomd acility related costs) and shipping and shigpielated costs.
Research and Development Expenses

Costs related to both research and developmentamtstand Company-funded research is includedseareh and development expenses.

Research and development costs are primarily caeghiof salaries and related benefits, suppliegeltexpenses, consulting expenses and corporate
allocations.
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Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation

The Company records compensation expense for $tased awards issued to employees and directoxeliapge for services provided ba
on the estimated fair value of the awards on theint dates and is recognized over the requiredcseperiods. The cash flows resulting from the tax
benefit due to tax deductions in excess of the @rsation expense recognized for those options ¢exea benefit) are classified as financing
activities with the statement of cash flows. Ther(pany’s stock-based awards include stock optiontgrand restricted stock unit awards (RSUSs).

During the fiscal year ended May 26, 2013, the Camyprecognized stock-based compensation experfk @85,000 which included
$907,000 for restricted stock unit awards and $¥@8for stock option grants. During the fiscal yeaded May 27, 2012, the Company recognized
stock-based compensation expense of $1,872,00hwittuded $826,000 for restricted stock unit awaadd $1,046,000 for stock option grants.
During the fiscal year ended May 29, 2011, the Camyprecognized stock-based compensation experfk @61,000 which included $857,000 for
restricted stock unit awards and $1,094,000 farkstption grants.

The following table summarizes the stock-based earagtion by income statement line item:

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
Ended Ended Ended
May 26, 2013 May 27, 2012 May 29, 2011
Research and development $ 718,000 $ 530,00 $ 565,00(
Sales, general and administrative 977,00( 1,342,001 1,386,001
Total stock-based compensation expense $ 1,695,000 $ 1,872,000 $ 1,951,001

The estimated fair value for stock options, whiettedmines the Company’s calculation of compensaiqense, is based on the Black-
Scholes option pricing model. The Company usestitzght line single option method to calculate agxbgnize the fair value of stock-based
compensation arrangements. In addition, the Compaey historical data to estimate pre-vesting fiorfes and records stock-based compensation
expense only for those awards that are expectedstoand revises those estimates in subsequentpéfithe actual forfeitures differ from the prior
estimates.

The BlackScholes option pricing model requires the inputighly subjective assumptions, including the expedtock price volatility. As (
May 26, 2013, May 27, 2012 and May 29, 2011, tlirevialue of stock option grants was estimated usliregfollowing weighted average assumptions:

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
Ended Ended Ended
May 26, 2013 May 27, 2012 May 29, 2011
Expected life (in years) 3.76 3.76 3.76
Risk-free interest rate 0.48% 0.59% 1.16%
Volatility 0.53 0.53 0.52
Dividend yield 0% 0% 0%

The weighted average estimated fair value of Lamaieployee stock options granted at grant date rhariees during the fiscal years ended
May 26, 2013, May 27, 2012 and May 29, 2011 wa5%32.65 and $2.42 per share, respectively. Neksiptions were granted above or below g
date market prices during the fiscal years endey 26 2013, May 27, 2012 and May 29, 2011.

Fair Value Measurements
The Company uses fair value measurement accouiatiritnancial assets and liabilities and for finednstruments and certain other items

measured at fair value. The Company has electefaithealue option for its investment in a non-galdompany (see Note 4). The Company has not
elected the fair value option for any of its otk#gible financial assets or liabilities.
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The accounting guidance established a three-teatdhy for fair value measurements, which pripetsi the inputs used in measuring fair
value as follows:

Level 1 — observable inputs such as quoted primesiéntical instruments in active markets.

Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices in aatiaekets that are observable either directly oirgadly through corroboration with
observable market data.

Level 3 — unobservable inputs in which there ifelior no market data, which would require the Camypto develop its own assumptions.

As of May 26, 2013, the Company held certain assedsliabilities that are required to be measutddinvalue on a recurring basis, includ
marketable securities, interest rate swap andiiterity interest investment in Windset.

The fair value of the Company’s marketable se@siis determined based on observable inputs teaeadily available in public markets or
can be derived from information available in pulgliguoted markets. Therefore, the Company has odtegl its marketable securities as a Level 1
measurement.

The fair value of the Compargy/interest rate swap is determined based on moplets that can be observed in a liquid marketuitiolg yield
curves, and is categorized as a Level 2 measurement

The fair value of the Company’s liability for congjent consideration as of May 27, 2012 was basegigmificant inputs not observed in the
market and thus represented a Level 3 measureffemiCompany determined the fair value of the ligbfbr the contingent consideration as of May
27,2012, based on a probability-weighted discalingesh flow analysis.

The Company has elected the fair value option obawting for its investment in Windset. The caltiola of fair value utilizes significant
unobservable inputs in the discounted cash flowetsydncluding projected cash flows, growth rated discount rates. As a result, the Company’s
investment in Windset is considered to be a Lewakeasurement investment. The change in the fakehaalue of the Company’s investment in
Windset for the fiscal years ended May 26, 2013Magl 27, 2012 was due to the Company’s 20.1% minanterest in the change in the fair market
value of Windset during those periods. In deterngrthe fair value of the investment in Windset, @@mpany utilizes the following significant
unobservable inputs in the discounted cash flowetsod

At May 26, 201

At May 27 201]

Revenue growth rates 3% to 9% 3% to 249
Expense growth rates 3% to 8% 3% to 18%
Income tax rates 15% 25%

Discount rates 18% to 28% 14% to 21%

The revenue growth, expense gramithincome tax rate assumptions, consider the Coytgphest estimate of the trends in those items ove
the discount period. The discount rate assumpékes into account the risk-free rate of retune,market equity risk premium and the company’s
specific risk premium and then applies an addifioliscount for lack of liquidity of the underlyirgecurities. The discounted cash flow valuation
model used by the Company has the following sefityitio changes in inputs and assumptions (in taods):

Impact on value
Windset investment as

May 26, 2013
10% increase in revenue growth rates $1,70
10% increase in expense growth rates ($1,400
10% increase in income tax rates ($100
10% increase in discount rates ($900
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Imprecision in estimating unobservable market ismain affect the amount of gain or loss recorded foarticular position. The use of
different methodologies or assumptions to deterrttiecfair value of certain financial instrumentsicbresult in a different estimate of fair valuettae
reporting date.

The following table summarizes the fair value & @ompany’s assets and liabilities that are medsairéir value on a recurring basis, as of
May 26, 2013 and May 27, 2012 (in thousands):

Fair Value at May 26, 2013 Fair Value at May 27, 2012
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets:
Marketable securities $ 154 % - $ - $ - % - % -
Investment in private company - - 29,60( - - 21,50(

Total $ 154 % - $ 29,60 $ - $ - $ 21,50(
Liabilities:
Contingent consideration $ - 3 - 8 - 8 - $ - $ 3,93t
Interest rate swap - 163 - - 347 -

Total $ - $ 162 $ - $ - $ 347 % 3,93t

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Intangible-Goodwill and Other

In September 2011, the FASB issued new guidandevifiallow an entity to first assess qualitatifeetors to determine whether it is
necessary to perform the two-step quantitative gdlbend intangibles impairment test. Under thiseamdment, an entity would not be required to
calculate the fair value of a reporting unit unl#es entity determines, based on a qualitativesassent, that it is more likely than not that its fealue
is less than its carrying amount. The amendmeidies a number of events and circumstances fon#ty & consider in conducting the qualitative
assessment. The guidance is effective for fiscats/beginning after December 15, 2011 with earbpédn permitted. The Company adopted this
standard beginning in fiscal year 2013 and the &oioglid not have a material impact on the Compsuegnsolidated financial statements.

Presentation of Comprehensive Incc

In December 2011, the FASB issued new guidancdrtimbves the comparability, consistency, and pansncy of financial reporting and
increases the prominence of items reported in abeprehensive income by eliminating the optiopresent components of other comprehensive
income as part of the statement of changes in baddkrs' equity. The amendments in this standaydire that all non-owner changes in stockholders'
equity be presented either in a single continuteieent of comprehensive income or in two sepdmateonsecutive statements. Under either
method, adjustments must be displayed for itemisaitgareclassified from other comprehensive inc@f@€l1") to net income, in both net income and
OCI. The standard does not change the currentrofiigpresenting components of OCI gross or néthefeffect of income taxes, provided that such
tax effects are presented in the statement in w@iChis presented or disclosed in the notes tdittamcial statements. Additionally, the standaréslo
not affect the calculation or reporting of earnipgs share. For public entities, the amendmenitisisnASU are effective for fiscal years, and interi
periods within those years, beginning after Decamibe 2011 and are to be applied retrospectiveith early adoption permitted. The Company
retrospectively adopted this standard beginninfistal year 2013.

Fair Value Measuremet

In May 2011, the FASB issued new guidance effedtiveannual reporting periods beginning after Debenl5, 2011. This guidance amends
certain accounting and disclosure requirementse@l® fair value measurements. Additional disalesequirements in the update include: (1) for
Level 3 fair value measurements, quantitative imiation about unobservable inputs used, a desamipfithe valuation processes used by the entity,
and a qualitative discussion about the sensitviitthe measurements to changes in the unobservghlts; (2) for an entity’s use of a nonfinancial
asset that is different from the asset’s highedttzast use, the reason for the difference; (3jif@ncial instruments not measured at fair valuefou
which disclosure of fair value is required, the failue hierarchy level in which the fair value rme@ments were determined; and (4) the disclodure o
all transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 of thevialue hierarchy. The Company adopted thisddsth beginning in fiscal year 2013.
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Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabili

In November 2011, the FASB issued new guidancetffe for annual reporting periods beginning Japdar2013. This guidance amends
disclosure requirements around offsetting to enabées of the financial statements to understameftect of those arrangements on its financial
position. Entities are required to disclose botbsgrand net information about the instruments eargsactions eligible for offset in the statement of
financial position and instruments and transactguigect to an agreement similar to a master eirangement. The Company does not expect the
adoption of this standard to have a material impadts consolidated financial statements.

2. Acquisitions
GreenLine Holding Company

On April 23, 2012 (the “GreenLine Acquisition DateApio acquired all of the outstanding equity ake@nLine under a Stock Purchase
Agreement (the “GreenLine Purchase Agreement”ydento expand its product offerings and enter ey markets such as foodservice. GreenLine,
headquartered in Bowling Green, Ohio, was a priydield company and is the leading processor antteter of value-added, frestut green beans
North America. GreenLine has four processing astribution plants one each in Ohio, Pennsylvaniiaridia and California and distribution centers
New York and South Carolin

Under the GreenLine Purchase Agreement, the aggregasideration paid at closing consisted of $&2IBon in cash, including
$4.7 million that is held in an escrow accounteowse Landec’s indemnification rights with respectertain matters, including breaches of
representations, warranties and covenants. Iniaddihe GreenLine Purchase Agreement included@ngial earn out payment up to $7.0 million in
the event that GreenLine achieved certain reveangets during calendar year 2012. The earn outaaprised of $4.0 million for achieving a certain
revenue target during calendar year 2012, and ap &dditional $3.0 million for exceeding the rewenarget by $3.0 million or more. In April 2012,
the Company performed an analysis of projectedmase for GreenLine and concluded at that timeitiveas probable that GreenLine would meet,
not exceed, the initial revenue target and theegfilie Company recorded a $3.9 million liabilitycddlay 27, 2012, representing the present value of
the expected earn out payment. As a result oféliers drought in the Midwest during 2012, lowemntlkeapected results from new product launches
and new planned business not being realized, dtinemgecond quarter of fiscal year 2013, the Comppatermined that GreenLine did not achieve the
earn out revenue target. As a result, the Compavsrsed the $3.9 million liability recorded for tb@n out and recorded a corresponding credit to
other operating expenses in its Consolidated Sttésrof Comprehensive Income for fiscal year 2013.

The operating results of GreenLine are includethénCompany’s financial statements beginning A28il 2012, in the Food Products
Technology operating segment. Included in the Camsaresults for the fiscal year 2012 was $9.lionillof GreenLine’s net sales.

The acquisition date fair value of the total coesédion transferred was $66.8 million, which cotesisof the following (in thousands):

Cash $ 62,90(
Contingent consideration 3,93¢
Total $ 66,83
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2. Acquisitions (continued)

The assets and liabilities of GreenLine were reedrat their respective estimated fair values deeflate of the acquisition using generally
accepted accounting principles for business contibims. The excess of the purchase price over thedhue of the net identifiable assets acquiresl ha
been allocated to goodwill. Goodwill representsilassantial portion of the acquisition proceeds heeaof the workforce in-place at acquisition and
because of GreenLine’s long history and future pects. Management believes that there is furth@midr potential by extending GreenLine’s product
lines into new channels, such as club stores.

The following table summarizes the estimated falues of GreenLine’s assets acquired and liatslgiesumed and related deferred income
taxes, effective April 23, 2012, the date the Conypabtained control of GreenLine (in thousands).

Accounts receivable, net $ 7,057
Inventories, net 1,40¢
Property and equipment 11,66¢
Other tangible assets 30€
Intangible assets 43,50(
Total identifiable assets acquired 63,94
Accounts payable and other liabilities (8,39))
Deferred taxes (1,875
Total liabilities assumed (10,26¢6)
Net identifiable assets acquired 53,67¢
Goodwill 13,15¢
Net assets acquired $ 66,83:

The Company used a combination of the market agtlajgproaches to estimate the fair values of tlee@rine assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. During the measurement period (whichtisonexceed one year from the acquisition date&) Gbmpany is required to retrospectively adjust
the provisional assets or liabilities if new infation is obtained about facts and circumstancdsettisted as of the acquisition date that, if knpwn
would have resulted in the recognition of thosetsser liabilities as of that date. No adjustmemse made to the fair values of GreenLine assets
acquired or liabilities assumed during fiscal ye@t3. The Company has finalized the fair valuethefacquired assets and assumed liabilities and
closed the measurement period.

Intangible Asset

The fair value of indefinite and finite-lived intgible assets was determined using a DCF model riandimcome valuation methodology,
based on management’s five-year projections ofmees, gross profits and operating profits by fisear and assumed a 40% effective tax rate for
each year. Management took into account the histbifiends of GreenLine and the industry categanieghich GreenLine operates along with
inflationary factors, current economic conditionsyv product introductions, cost of sales, operatixggenses, capital requirements and other relevant
data when developing its projection. The Compadigbes that the level and timing of cash flows aypiately reflect market participant assumptions.
The projected cash flows from these intangiblesevbased on key assumptions such as estimatesarsfuesy and operating profits related to the
intangibles over their respective forecast peridth® resultant cash flows were then discountedyusirate the Company believes is appropriate given
the inherent risks associated with each intangibiet and reflect market participant assumptions.

The Company identified two intangible assets innemtion with the GreenLine acquisition: trade nasred trademarks valued at $36.0
million, which are considered to be indefinite l#esets and therefore, will not be amortized; arsoener base valued at $7.5 million with a thirteen
year useful life. The trade name/trademark intalegiisset was valued using the relief from roya#tijuation method and the customer relationship
intangible asset was valued using the distributethod.

Goodwill

The excess of the consideration transferred oweefatin values assigned to the assets acquiredaitities assumed was $13.2 million on the
closing date, which represents the goodwill ameestlting from the acquisition which can be atttéile to GreenLine long history, future prospe:
and the expected operating synergies from combi@irggnLine with Apio’s fresh-cut, value-added vedp business. None of the goodwill is
expected to be deductible for income tax purpoBlee.Company will test goodwill for impairment on amnual basis or sooner, if indicators of
impairment are present.
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2. Acquisitions (continued)

Deferred Tax Liabilities

The $1.9 million of net deferred tax liabilitiesstating from the acquisition was primarily relatedthe difference between the book basis and
tax basis of the intangible assets and net operaisses that were assumed by the Company in thesgtion.

Acquisition-Related Transaction Costs

The Company recognized $1.4 million of acquisitietated expenses that were expensed in the yeadévidy 27, 2012 and are included in
other operating expenses in the Consolidated Seatenof Comprehensive Income for the year ended Mag012. These expenses included
investment banker fees, legal, accounting anddaxce fees and appraisals fees.

Lifecore Biomedical, Inc.

On April 30, 2010, the Company acquired all of teenmon stock of Lifecore under a Stock Purchaseedment (“Lifecore Purchase
Agreement”) in order to expand its product offedrand enter into new markets. Lifecore was a pelydteld HA-based biomaterials company located
in Chaska, Minnesota. Lifecore is principally inved in the development and manufacture of produtiliging hyaluronan, a naturally occurring
polysaccharide that is widely distributed in théragellular matrix of connective tissues in botlnzads and humans.

Under the Lifecore Purchase Agreement, the Compait/to the former Lifecore stockholder at closfi#.0 million in cash. In addition to
the cash consideration paid to the former sharehaftiLifecore, the Lifecore Purchase Agreemenliuited an earn out payment of up to an additional
$10.0 million based on Lifecore achieving cert@wanue targets in calendar years 2011 and 2012eTkeenue targets where achieved in calendar
year 2011 and the $10.0 million earn out paymerst paad by the Company to the former shareholdé&ifetore on May 29, 2012.

3. Sale of Landec Ag

On June 24, 2012, Landec entered into a stock paechgreement and two licensing agreements (seeSi\Natith INCOTEC® Coating and
Seed Technology Companies (“INCOTEC"), a leadingvjafer of seed and coating technology productssamndices to the seed industry.

In the stock purchase agreement, Landec sold iityeigterest in its seed subsidiary, Landec Ag LEt&€INCOTEC for $600,000, which
resulted in a gain of $400,000. Under accountindance, because the stock purchase agreement veasceimto at the same time the license
agreements were consummated (a multiple elemeeaeagmt), a portion of the gain, or $300,000, has loeferred and will be recognized as revenue
monthly from the sale date over the seven yeaofifiae Pollinator Plus® license agreement (seedt The remaining $100,000 of the gain was
recognized during the first quarter of fiscal y2ad 3.

4, Investments in non-public companies

In December 2005, Landec entered into an exclugigasing agreement with Aesthetic Sciences forttdusive rights to use Landec's
Intelimer materials technology for the developmeidermal fillers worldwide under the agreemente Tompany received shares of preferred sto
exchange for the license with a valuation of $1ilfian. Aesthetic Sciences sold the rights to ita&tfil Injector System on July 16, 2010. Landes ha
evaluated its investment in Aesthetic Sciencednfigairment, utilizing a discounted cash flow an@ymder the terms of the purchase agreement.
Based on the terms of the sale, the Company deteththat its investment was other than temporaripaired and therefore, recorded an impairment
charge of $1.0 million in fiscal year 2010. The GQamy’s carrying value of its investment in Aestb@&ciences is $793,000 as of May 26, 2013 and
May 27, 2012. No additional impairment has beermeined for the Company’s investment in Aesthetiefces.
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4, Investments in non-public companiesgntinued)

On February 15, 2011, Apio entered into a sharetfase agreement (the “Windset Purchase Agreemsitti’Windset. Pursuant to the
Windset Purchase Agreement, Apio purchased 15G80i@r preferred shares for $15 million and 201 mam shares for $201 that were issued by
Windset (the “Purchased Shares”). The Company’'snaomshares represent a 20.1% interest in Windbsetnon-voting senior preferred shares yield
a cash dividend of 7.5% annually. The dividendaggble within 90 days of each anniversary of thecaiion of the Windset Purchase Agreement, the
first two dividend payments of $1.1 million eachresenade in May 2013 and May 2012. The Windset Ragel\greement includes a put and call
option, which can be exercised on the sixth ansagr of the Windset Purchase Agreement whereby gaioexercise the put to sell its Purchased
Shares to Windset, or Windset can exercise theaallirchase the Purchased Shares from Apio, liereitase, at a price equal to 20.1% of the
appreciation in the fair market value of Windsemfrthe date of the Company’s investment througtptiieand call date, plus the purchase price of the
Purchased Shares. Under the terms of the arrangevitarWindset, the Company is entitled to designate of five members on the Board of
Directors of Windset.

In accordance with accounting guidance, the investrin Windset does not qualify for equity methedaunting as the investment does not
meet the criteria of in-substance common stocktdweturns through the annual dividend on t he wating senior preferred shares that are not
available to the common stock holders. As the pdteall options require the Purchased Shares fuber called in equal proportions, the Company
has deemed that the investment, in substance,sheuteated as a single security for purposesadumting. The Company has adopted fair value
option in the accounting for its investment in Wset effective on the acquisition date. The faiueadf the Company’s investment in Windset utilizes
significant unobservable inputs in the discountashcflow models, including projected cash flowsvgh rates and the discount rate, and is therefore
considered a Level 3 for fair value measuremenpqees (see Note 1). The Company believes thattiegadts investment at fair value provides its
investors with useful information on the performarmnd the Company’s investment and the anticipapgateiation in value as Windset expands its
business.

The fair value of the Company’s investment in Wietdsas determined utilizing a discounted cash fioedel based on projections developed
by Windset, and considers the put and call conerrsptions. These features impact the duratiohetash flow utilized to derive the estimated fair
value of the investment. Assumptions included andfscounted cash flow model will be evaluated tgurbased on Windset's actual and projected
operating results to determine the change in fine.

During fiscal years 2013 and 2012, the Companyrdszband received in cash $1.1 million in dividémcbme and the Company recorded
$8.1 million and $5.8 million of income, respectiyenhich is included in other income in the Coridated Statements of Comprehensive Income,
from the increase in the fair market value of tlempany’s investment in Windset. From the closéhefWindset Purchase Agreement on February 15,
2011 to May 29, 2011, the Company recorded $3289dvidend income and $662,000 from the incraagbe fair market value of the Company’s
investment in Windset.

The Company also entered into an exclusive licagseement with Windset, which was executed in A0i®, prior to contemplation of
Apio’s investment in Windset (see Note 5).

5. License Agreements

Monsanto

On December 1, 2006, Landec entered into a five-geaxclusive technology license and polymer sypgreement (“the Monsanto
Agreement”) with Monsanto Company (“Monsanto”) the use of Landec’s Intellicoat polymer seed captathnology. On December 1, 2011,

Monsanto terminated the Monsanto Agreement andtpaicCompany a $4 million termination fee and iglhts to the Intellicoat seed coating
technology reverted to Landec.
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5. License Agreements (continued)

For fiscal years 2013, 2012 and 2011, Landec razedricense revenues from the Monsanto Agreemiergrm, $2.7 million and $5.4
million, respectively.

INCOTEC

In connection with the sale of Landec Ag to INCOT&CJune 24, 2012 (see Note 3), Landec entereciswven-year exclusive technology
license and polymer supply agreement with INCOTEGe use of Landec’s Intellico8ipolymer seed coating technology for male inbreah aghich
is sold under the Pollinator Plus label. This leerloes not include the use of Intellicoat fordbetrolled release of an active ingredient for agtural
applications which was retained by Landec. Landididoe the exclusive supplier of Pollinator Pludyuer to INCOTEC during the term of the licer
agreement. Landec will receive a royalty equalG®2f the revenues realized by INCOTEC from the sélor sublicense of Pollinator Plus coatings
during the first four years of the agreement an I6r the last three years of the agreement.

On June 24, 2012, Landec also entered into a ®a-gxclusive technology license and polymer supgheement with INCOTEC for the
joint development of new polymer and unique coatiftg use in seed treatmeformulations. In this agreement, Landec will reeeivvalue share
which will be mutually agreed to by both partie®pto each application being developed.

Air Products

In March 2006, Landec entered into an exclusivense and research and development agreement witrdducts and Chemicals, Inc. (“Air
Products”). In accordance with the agreement, Lamedeeives 40% of the direct profit generated fthesale of products by Air Products occurring
after April 1, 2007, that incorporate Landec’s |lmr materials.

Chiquita

In September 2007, the Company amended its licgresid supply agreement with Chiquita Brands Int@wnal, Inc. (“Chiquita”). Under the
terms of the amendment, the license for bananagewzended to include additional exclusive fieldmgd.andec’s BreatheWay® packaging
technology, and a new exclusive license was addethé sale and marketing of avocados and mandog Landec’s BreatheWay packaging
technology. The agreement with Chiquita has beerewed through December 2016 and requires Chiquitay annual gross profit minimums to
Landec in order for Chiquita to maintain its exoheslicense for bananas, avocados and mangos. UWmeléerms of the agreement, Chiquita must
notify Landec before Decembef'bf each year whether it is going to maintain itslesive license for the following calendar year #imas agree to
pay the minimums for that year. Landec was notifirelovember 2012 that Chiquita had chosen to raihtain its exclusive license for calendar year
2013 and thus was not required to pay the minimwrsgprofit for calendar year 2013. As a result,areement has reverted to a non-exclusive
agreement in which Chiquita will pay the Companyrfeembranes purchased on a per unit sales basth@ai@bmpany is now entitled to sell its
BreatheWay packaging technology for bananas, awscadd mangos to others.

Windset

In June 2010, Apio entered into an exclusive lieeagreement with Windset for Windset to utilize tao’'s proprietary breathable packaging
to extend the shelf life of greenhouse grown cucensitpeppers and tomatoes (“Exclusive Products adctordance with the agreement, Apio received
and recorded a one-time upfront research and dewelot fee of $100,000 and will receive license fmsal to 3% of net revenue of the Exclusive
Products utilizing the proprietary breathable paihg technology, with or without the BreatheWaydmark. The ongoing license fees are subject to
annual minimums of $150,000 for each of the thypes of exclusive product as each is added todreement. As of May 26, 2013, two products
have been added to the agreement.
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5. License Agreements (continued)

Nitta

In July 2012, the Company entered into an agreemigntNitta Corporation (“Nitta”), a Japanese compato develop additional uses of the
Company'’s adhesive polymer technology for elect®nburing fiscal year 2013, the Company recognf®8B,000 in research and development
revenues from this agreement.

6. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of the followimgtliousands):

Years of
Useful Life May 26, 2013 May 27, 2012
Land and building 15-30 $ 52,527 $ 51,99:
Leasehold improvements 3-20 1,02¢ 1,102
Computer, capitalized software, machinery, equipraed auto 3-7 47,06¢ 43,09¢
Furniture and fixtures 5-7 76€ 551
Construction in process 3,35¢ 727
Gross property and equipment 104,74 97,46¢
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (38,93) (33,979
Net property and equipment $ 65,81 $ 63,49¢

Depreciation and amortization expense for propang equipment for the fiscal years ended May 26328ay 27, 2012 and May 29, 2(
was $6.3 million, $5.3 million and $5.0 million,seectively. There were no equipment under cape@dés at May 26, 2013. Equipment under ci
leases totaled $158,000 at May 27, 2012 and tla¢ecklaccumulated amortization as of May 27, 2012 »rego as these leases were assumed
acquisition of GreenLine on April 23, 2012. Amodion related to capitalized software was $160,81@36,000 and $136,000 for fiscal years el
May 26, 2013, May 27, 2012 and May 29, 2011, rethpedg. The unamortized computer software costdlay 26, 2013 and May 27, 2012 w
$343,000 and $468,000, respectively.

7. Intangible Assets

Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for tiseal years ended May 26, 2013, May 27, 2012 aagl BB, 2011 by reportable segment,
are as follows (in thousands):

Food Hyaluronan-
Products based
Technology Corporate Biomaterials Total
Balance as of May 30, 2010 $ 22,58. $ 4,780 $ 13,79¢ $ 41,15¢
Goodwill acquired/reclassified during the period — — 88 88
Goodwill impaired during the period — (4,780) — (4,780
Balance as of May 29, 2011 22,58 — 13,88: 36,46:
Goodwill acquired during the period 13,15¢ — — 13,15¢
Balance as of May 27, 2012 35,73¢ — 13,88: 49,62(
Goodwill acquired during the period — — — —
Balance as of May 26, 2013 $ 35,73¢ $ — $ 13,88: $ 49,62(
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7. Intangible Assets (continued)

Information regarding Landec’s other intangibleedsss as follows (in thousands):

Trademarks & Customer
Trade names Relationships Total
Balance as of May 30, 2010 12,42¢ 3,67 16,10:
Amortization expense — (30¢) (30§)
Balance as of May 29, 2011 12,42¢ 3,36¢ 15,79«
Acquired during the period 36,00( 7,50( 43,50(
Amortization expense — (309 (309)
Balance as of May 27, 2012 48,42¢ 10,557 58,98t
Amortization expense — (95)) (957)
Balance as of May 26, 2013 $ 48,42¢ % 9,60¢ $ 58,03«

Accumulated amortization of Trademarks and Tradesgaas of May 26, 2013 and May 27, 2012 was $872 86fumulated amortization of
Customer Relationships as of May 26, 2013 and Mgy2212 was $1.6 million and $643,000, respectivebcumulated impairment losses as of May
26, 2013 and May 27, 2012 were $4.8 million. Lifexs customer relationships amount of $3.7 mili®being amortized over 12 years and
GreenLine’s customer relationships amount of $7ilbam is being amortized over 13 years. The anzaition expense for the next five fiscal years is
estimated to be $885,000 per year.

8. Stockholders’ Equity
Holders of Common Stock are entitled to one votespare.
Convertible Preferred Stock
The Company has authorized two million shares efgored stock, and as of May 26, 2013 has no oudstg preferred stock.
Common Stock and Stock Option Plans
At May 26, 2013, the Company had 1.9 million comnsbares reserved for future issuance under Largigtyencentive plans.

On October 15, 2009, following stockholder appraatathe Annual Meeting of Stockholders of the Compdhe 2009 Stock Incentive Plan
(the “Plan”) became effective and replaced the Camyjs 2005 Stock Incentive Plan. Employees (incigdifficers), consultants and directors of the
Company and its subsidiaries and affiliates amgilgé to participate in the Plan.

The Plan provides for the grant of stock optior@lifmonstatutory and incentive stock options), lsgrants stock units and stock appreciat
rights. Awards under the Plan will be evidencedihyagreement with the Plan participants and 1.Bomishares of the Company’s Common Stock
(“Shares”) were initially available for award undbe Plan. Under the Plan, no recipient may recawards during any fiscal year that exceeds the
following amounts: (i) stock options covering incess of 500,000 Shares; (ii) stock grants and siaik covering in excess of 250,000 Shares in the
aggregate; or (iii) stock appreciation rights cavgmore than 500,000 Shares. In addition, awaraeh-employee directors are discretionary.
However, a non-employee director may not be graateards in excess of 30,000 Shares in the aggrdgsteg any fiscal year. The exercise price of
the options was the fair market value of the Comgfa8ommon Stock on the date the options were grant

On October 14, 2005, following stockholder appratathe Annual Meeting of Stockholders of the Conmypahe 2005 Stock Incentive Plan
(“2005 Plan”) became effective. The 2005 Plan regdithe Company’s four then existing equity plam$ @o shares remain available for grant under
those plans. Employees (including officers), cotasis and directors of the Company and its subéédiand affiliates were eligible to participate in
the 2005 Plan. The 2005 Plan provided for the gpéstock options (both nonstatutory and incensiteek options), stock grants, stock units and stock
appreciation rights. Under the 2005 Plan, 861,03&&s were initially available for awards, and B§lay 26, 2013344,300 options to purchase shi
remain outstanding. The exercise price of the ogtivas the fair market value of the Company’s Com&twck on the date the options were granted.
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8. Stockholders’ Equity (continued)

The 1995 Directors’ Stock Option Plan (the “DirestdPlan”) provided that each person who becamera amployee director of the
Company, who had not received a previous grangraeted a nonstatutory stock option to purchased®0shares of Common Stock on the date on
which the optionee first became a non-employeecttireof the Company. Thereafter, on the date ofi @mual meeting of the stockholders each non-
employee director was granted an additional optiopurchase 10,000 shares of Common Stock if, oh date, he or she had served on the
Company'’s Board of Directors for at least six manphior to the date of such annual meeting. Theoise price of the options was the fair market
value of the Company’s Common Stock on the dategtiens were granted. Options granted under this were exercisable and vested upon grant.

The 1996 Non-Executive Stock Option Plan authoribedBoard of Directors to grant non-qualified &toptions to employees, including
executive officers, and outside consultants ofGbenpany. The exercise price of the options wasldquae fair market value of the Company’s
Common Stock on the date the options were granted.

Options were generally exercisable upon vestinggamerally vested ratably over four years and sat@ect to repurchase if exercised before being
vested.

The 1996 Stock Option Plan authorized the Boarim#ctors to grant stock purchase rights, incensiteek options or non-statutory stock
options to Landec executives. The exercise pridgee&tock purchase rights, incentive stock optams non-statutory stock options could be no less
than 100% of the fair market value of Landec’s Camrtock on the date the options were granted o@ptjenerally were exercisable upon vesting,
generally vested ratably over four years and webgest to repurchase if exercised before beingedest

Activity under all Landec equity incentive plansas follows:

Stock-Based Compensation Activity

Restricted Stock Outstanding Stock Options Outstanding

RSUs and Number Weighted Weighted
Options of Average Number of Average
Available Restricted Grant Date Stock Exercise
for Grant Shares Fair Value Options Price
Balance at May 30, 2010 770,31: 431,60¢ $ 6.3 2,456,82° $ 6.1<
Granted (129,339 32,33t % 6.0C 97,00C $ 6.0C
Awarded/Exercised — (48,859 $ 9.4¢ (217,079 $ 3.4¢
Forfeited — — — (18,000 $ 10.63
Balance at May 29, 2011 640,97¢ 415,08" $ 5.9¢ 2,318,75. $ 6.34
Granted (191,33) 47,83 % 6.67 143,500 $ 6.67
Awarded/Exercised — (111,25) $ 6.3¢€ (371,72) $ 5.4C
Forfeited — (3,500 $ 5.84 (5,657 $ 5.7¢
Plan shares expired — — — (38,43) $ 8.2%
Balance at May 27, 2012 449,64 348,16t $ 5.9¢ 2,046,43. $ 6.5C
Granted (26,66¢) 6,66€ $ 9.01 20,00¢ $ 9.01
Awarded/Exercised — (231,08) $ 5.74 (671,56) $ 6.3C
Forfeited — (28,41¢) $ 6.2C (44,97) $ 6.34
Plan shares expired — — — (10,000 $ 13.32
Balance at May 26, 2013 422,97 95,33( $ 6.52 1,339,89. $ 6.5¢
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8. Stockholders’ Equity (continued)

Upon vesting of certain RSUs and the exercise aéeoptions during fiscal years 2013, 2012 antil2@ertain RSUs and exercised options
were net share-settled to cover the required eseeqmiice and withholding tax and the remaining am®were converted into an equivalent number of
shares of Common Stock. The Company withheld shaitbsvalue equivalent to the exercise price fotiamps and the employees' minimum statutory
obligation for the applicable income and other esypient taxes, and remitted the cash to the ap@tepiaxing authorities. The total shares withheld
for fiscal years 2013, 2012 and 2011 were 145,336,954 and 136,374 RSUs and options, respectiwglich was based on the value of the option
and/or RSUs on their exercise or vesting date ssméed by the Company's closing stock price. Mumgments for the employees' tax obligations to
the taxing authorities during fiscal year 2013 waperoximately $49,000. These net-share settleniewtshe effect of share repurchases by the
Company as they reduced and retired the numbéravés that would have otherwise have been issuadesilt of the vesting and did not represer
expense to the Company.

The following table summarizes information concegnstock options outstanding and exercisable at 22013

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average
Number of Remaining Weighted Weighted
Range of Shares Contractual Average Aggregate Number of Average Aggregate
Exercise Outstanding Life Exercise Intrinsic Shares Exercise Intrinsic
Prices (in years) Price Value Exercisable Price Value
$5.65-$5.63 423,10: 4.0C $ 5.6 $ 3,490,58 423,10 $ 5.6 $ 3,490,58
$5.65-$6.22 367,13 357 §$ 6.1 $ 2,836,56 359,00 $ 6.1¢ $ 2,772,50
$6.35-$7.50 443,65t 28 % 6.77 $ 3,153,36: 391,49 $ 6.7¢ $ 2,776,78
$8.1¢-$13.32 106,00( 231 % 11.0¢ $ 296,11( 89,33. $ 1147 $ 214,93
$5.6:-$13.32 1,339,89 33 % 6.5¢ $ 9,776,61 1,262,93 $ 6.58 $ 9,254,811

The weighted average remaining contractual lifeifons exercisable as of May 26, 2013 was 3.0isyea

At May 26, 2013 and May 27, 2012 options to purehb262,934 and 1,620,562 shares of Landec’s Con8tanrk were vested, respectively.
No options have been exercised prior to being dedthe aggregalintrinsic value in the table above represents dite pretax intrinsic value, based
the Company'’s closing stock price of $13.88 on M4y2013, which would have been received by holdéstock options had all holders of stock
options exercised their stock options that werthexmoney as of that date. The total number oherhoney stock options exercisable as of May 26,
2013, was 1,262,934 shares. The aggregate intniaiie of stock options exercised during the figear 2013 was $4.1 million.

Shares Subject to Vesting

The following table summarizes the activity relgtio unvested stock option grants and RSUs duhiadiscal year ended May 26, 2013:

Stock Options Restricted Stock
Weighted Weighted
Average Fair Average Fair
Shares Value Shares Value
Unvested at May 27, 2012 425,87 $ 2.45 348,16¢ $ 5.92
Granted 20,00 $ 3.57 6,66¢ $ 9.01
Vested/Awarded (323,93) $ 2.87 (231,08() $ 5.74
Forfeited (44,977 $ — (28,410 $ 6.2C
Unvested at May 26, 2013 76,95¢ $ 2.2¢ 95,33( $ 6.52

As of May 26, 2013, there was $418,000 of totakeognized compensation expense related to unvegtéty compensation awards granted
under the Company'’s incentive stock plans. Totpkese is expected to be recognized over the weighterage period of 2.0 years for stock options
and 1.7 years for restricted stock awards.
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9.

Stockholders’ Equity (continued)

Stock Repurchase Plan

On July 14, 2010, the Board of Directors of the @any approved the establishment of a stock repaechtan which allows for the
repurchase of up to $10 million of the Company’sr@won Stock. The Company may repurchase its commock from time to time in open market
purchases or in privately negotiated transactidhs.timing and actual number of shares repurchissatthe discretion of management of the
Company and will depend on a variety of factorsluding stock price, corporate and regulatory regraents, market conditions, the relative
attractiveness of other capital deployment oppdtieshand other corporate priorities. The stockurepase program does not obligate Landec to ac
any amount of its common stock and the program beamodified, suspended or terminated at any tinleea€Company's discretion without prior
notice. During fiscal year 2013, the Company didpurchase any shares on the open market. Dusoglfyear 2012, the Company purchased on the
open market 917,244 shares of its Common Stoc&5d¥ million and retired those shares. During fisesr 2011, the Company purchased on the
market 215,684 shares of its Common Stock for $ilflon and retired those shares.

Debt
Long-term debt consists of the following (in thonds):

Real estate loan agreement with General Electrt@leCorporation (“GE Capital”); du
in monthly principal and interest payments of $088, through May 1, 2022 with
interest based on a fixed rate of 4.02% per annum

Real estate bridge loan agreement with GE Capited;in monthly principal and interes
payments of $8,902 with a lump sum final principayment due on May 1, 2013 wit
interest based on a fixed rate of 4.02% per annum

Capital equipment loan with GE Capital; due in nibyprincipal and interest payment:
of $175,356 through May 1, 2019 with interest basea fixed rate of 4.39% per
annum

Term note with BMO Harris; due in monthly paymeot$250,000 through May 23, 2C
with interest payable monthly at LIBOR plus 2% panum

Industrial revenue bonds (“IRBs”) issued by Lifegodue in annual payments through
2020 with interest at a variable rate set weeklyhgybond remarketing agent (0.38%
and 0.42% at May 26, 2013 and May 27, 2012, resmg)

Total

Less current portion

Long-term portion
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May 26, 2013 May 27, 2012
17,06¢ $ 17,95"

— 1,20(

11,08( 12,66(

9,00( 12,00(

3,16( 3,50(

40,30 47,31

(5,939 (7,019

3437. $ 40,308




9. Debt (continued)

The future minimum principal payments of the Compslebt for each year presented are as followghnsands):

GE RE Loan  GE Equipmen BMO Harris IRB Total

FY 2014 $ 92¢ $ 1,65C $ 3,00C $ 358 % 5,93:
FY 2015 96€ 1,72¢ 3,00( 36¢ 6,05¢
FY 2016 1,00t 1,801 3,00( 37t 6,181
FY 2017 1,041 1,882 — 39(C 3,31¢
FY 2018 1,08¢ 1,967 — 40C 3,45¢
Thereafter 12,03( 2,05¢ = 1,27¢ 15,36(

Total $ 17,06¢ $ 11,08 $ 9,00C $ 3,16 $ 40,30¢

In addition to entering into the GE real estate agdipment loans mentioned above, on April 23, 2@1nnection with the acquisition of
GreenLine, Apio also entered into a five-year, $2%illion asset-based working capital revolvingeliof credit, with an interest rate of LIBOR plus
2%, with availability based on the combinationfué eligible accounts receivable and eligible ineen{availability was $14.6 million at May 26,
2013). Apio’s revolving line of credit has an undsee of 0.375% per annum. At May 26, 2013 and 1ay2012, Apio had $4.0 million and $11.7
million, respectively, outstanding under its revotyline of credit.

The GE real estate, equipment and line of crediéegents (collectively the “GE Debt Agreements® secured by liens on all of the prop
of Apio and its subsidiaries. The GE Debt Agreera@ointain customary events of default under whidigations could be accelerated or increased.
The GE Debt Agreements are guaranteed by Landetamtkc has pledged its equity interest in Apic@kteral under the agreements. Apio was in
compliance with all financial covenants as of M@y 2013. Unamortized loan origination fees for &t Debt Agreements were $1.2 million and $1.3
million at May 26, 2013 and May 27, 2012, respeditiyand are included in other assets in the Cadesteld Balance Sheets. Amortization of loan
origination fees recorded to interest expenseisoaf years 2013, 2012 and 2011 were $181,000080%nd zero, respectively.

On May 23, 2012, Lifecore entered into two finagcagreements with BMO Harris Bank N.A. and/or ffdiates (“‘BMO Harris”),
collectively (the “Lifecore Loan Agreements”):

1) A Credit and Security Agreement (the “Credirégment”) which includes (a) a one-year, $8.0 onllasset-based working capital revolving
line of credit, with an interest rate of LIBOR plis85%, with availability based on the combinatifriifecore’s eligible accounts receivable
and inventory balances (availability was $7.0 moiiliat May 26, 2013) and with no unused fee (at B&y2013 and May 27, 2012, no
amounts were outstanding under the line of credit) (b) a $12.0 million term loan which maturegomar years due in monthly payments of
$250,000 with interest payable monthly based oarable interest rate of LIBOR plus 2% (the “Terwaln”).

2) A Reimbursement Agreement pursuant to which BNEDris caused its affiliate Bank of Montreal teus an irrevocable letter of credit in the
amount of $3.5 million (the “Letter of Credit”) wth is securing the IRB described below.

The obligations of Lifecore under the Lifecore Lodgreements are secured by liens on all of thegntypf Lifecore. The Lifecore Loan
Agreements contain customary covenants, such #@stioms on the ability to (1) incur indebtednesgmnt liens or negative pledges on Lifecore’s
assets; (2) make loans or other investments; BYipadends or repurchase stock or other securifissell assets; (5) engage in mergers; (6) énte
sale and leaseback transactions; (7) adopt cdrgaigfit plans; and (8) make changes in Lifecoreiparate structure. In addition, under the Credit
Agreement, Lifecore must maintain (a) a minimuneébcharge coverage ratio of 1.10 to 1.0 and a mimirquick ratio of 1.25 to 1.00, both of which
must be satisfied as of the end of each fiscaltguaommencing with the fiscal quarter ending Aud& 2012 and (b) a minimum tangible net worth
of $29,000,000, measured as of May 28, 2013, amd the end of each fiscal year thereafter. Unammedtloan origination fees for the Lifecore Loan
Agreements were $149,000 and $139,000 at May 263 a6d May 27, 2012, respectively, and are includexher assets in the Consolidated Balance
Sheets. Amortization of loan origination fees releat to interest expense for fiscal year 2013, 20122011 were $50,000, $161,000 and $45,000
respectively. Lifecore was in compliance with @ilancial covenants as of May 26, 2013.
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9. Debt (continued)

The market value of the Company’s debt approximisge®corded value as the interest rates on eelhidstrument approximates current
market rates.

The Term Loan was used to repay Lifecore’s formedit facility with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (“WellBargo”). The Letter of Credit (which
replaces a letter of credit previously providedvdglls Fargo) provides liquidity
and credit support for the IRBs.

On August 19, 2004, Lifecore issued variable ratristrial revenue bonds (“IRBs”). These IRBs wassumed by Landec in the acquisition
of Lifecore (see Note 2). The IRBs are collateediby a bank letter of credit which is secured lfiygsh mortgage on the Company’s facility in Chaska
Minnesota. In addition, the Company pays an anrerabrketing fee equal to 0.125% and an annual letteredit fee of 0.75%. The maturities on the
IRBs are held in a sinking fund account, recorae@iher Current Assets in the accompanying ConatgitiBalance Sheets, and are paid out each yee
on September .

10. Derivative Financial Instruments

In May 2010, the Company entered into a five-yaggrest rate swap agreement under the credit agraemith Wells Fargo, which expires
on April 30, 2015. The interest rate swap was dedigd as a cash flow hedge of future interest patgra LIBOR and had a notional amount of $20
million. As a result of the interest rate swap saction, the Company fixed for a five-year peribd interest rate at 4.24% subject to market based
interest rate risk on $20 million of borrowings endhe credit agreement with Wells Fargo. The Camjsaobligations under the interest rate swap
transaction as to the scheduled payments were mfeahand secured on the same basis as its obligatnder the credit agreement with Wells Fargo
at the time the agreement was consummated. Upenimminto the new Term Loan with BMO Harris, therfipany used the proceeds from that loan
to pay off the Wells Fargo credit facility. The gyaith Wells Fargo was not terminated upon thengtishment of the debt with Wells Fargo. As a
result of extinguishing the debt with Wells Fargood May 23, 2012, the swap was no longer an effettedge and therefore, the fair value of the
swap at the time the debt was extinguished of $®0rwas reversed from other comprehensive incordeenorded in other expense during fiscal !
2012. The fair value of the swap arrangement &8ayf 26, 2013 and May 27, 2012 was $163,000 and $887 respectively, and is included in other
accrued liabilities in the accompanying Consolidéalance Sheets.

11. Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes consisted of théofeing (in thousands):

Year ended Year ended Year ended
May 26, 2013 May 27, 2012 May 29, 2011

Current:

Federal $ 2,80¢ $ 4597 $ 881

State (18) (586) 17¢€

Foreign 56 56 —
Total 2,84¢ 4,067 1,057
Deferred:

Federal 6,21¢ 2,641 3,14(

State 38¢ A77 (16
Total 6,60¢ 3,11¢ 3,12¢
Income tax expense $ 9,45 $ 7,188 $ 4,181
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11. Income Taxes (continued)

The actual provision for income taxes differs frima statutory U.S. federal income tax rate as ¥adl@din thousands):

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
May 26, 2013 May 27, 2012 May 29, 2011
Provision at U.S. statutory rate (1) $ 11,21 $ 6,95¢ $ 2,83t
State income taxes, net of federal benefit 731 451 21¢
Goodwill impairment charge — — 1,84¢
Change in valuation allowance 37C 1 (7
Tax-exempt interest — (40 (11t
Tax credit carryforwards (807) (36¢) (637
Transaction costs — 322 =
Domestic manufacturing deduction (172) (20¢) —
Change in value of contingent consideration (1,450 — —
Other (440 69 43
Total $ 9,45 $ 7,18t $ 4,181

(1) Statutory rate was 35% for fiscal years 2013,2and 2011.

The increase in the income tax expense in fiscal 2613 compared to fiscal year 2012 is due to% Brease in net income before taxes
offset by a decrease in the Company’s effectivardtexto 30% down from 36% in fiscal year 2012. irteease in the income tax expense in fiscal
year 2012 compared to fiscal year 2011 is dueltd0b increase in net income before taxes partidfet by a decrease in the Company'’s effective
tax rate to 36% down from 52% in fiscal year 2011.

The effective tax rates for fiscal year 2013 diffem the statutory federal income tax rate of 8&cpnt as a result of several factors, inclut
state taxes, change in value of contingent corsiider, non-deductible stock-based compensationresqpedisqualified dispositions of incentive stock
options, domestic manufacturing deduction, the fieokfederal and state research and developmedits and the change in valuation allowance.
effective tax rates for fiscal year 2012 differrfrdhe statutory federal income tax rate of 35 pares a result of several factors, including staxes,
non-deductible stock-based compensation expensex&mpt interest, domestic manufacturing dedudiwh the benefit of federal and state research
and development credits and accounting for traiwacbsts associated with the GreenLine acquisitidiscal year 2012. The effective tax rates for
fiscal year 2011 differ from the statutory fedeéredome tax rate of 35 percent as a result of séfactors, including state taxes, non-deductibtelst
based compensation expense, tax exempt intereshamgbodwill impairment charge. In addition to #igve, the Company was able to further reduce
the effective tax rate for fiscal year 2011 assulteof being a recipient of a therapeutic drugdidraward and the extension of the federal reseanch
development credit.
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11. Income Taxes (continued)

Significant components of deferred tax assets ifdlities consisted of the following (in thousaids

May 26, 2013 May 27, 2012

Deferred tax assets:

Net operating loss carryforwards $ 3,85: $ 3,95¢

Accruals and reserves 1,38¢ 2,191

Stock-based compensation 621 981

Research and AMT credit carryforwards 48¢€ 32¢

Other 45C 42¢
Gross deferred tax assets 6,79¢ 7,882
Valuation allowance (789) (41¢
Net deferred tax asse 6,01¢ 7,468
Deferred tax liabilities:

Basis difference in investment in non-public compan (5,50%) (2,51(

Depreciation and amortization (5,827 (5,57¢

Goodwill and other indefinite life intangibles (17,160 (15,33¢
Deferred tax liabilities (28,48) (23,424
Net deferred tax liabilitie $ (22,47) $ (15,96

As of May 26, 2013, the Company had federal, Calify and other state net operating loss carryfadeaf approximately $8.8 million, $4.6
million, and $15.2 million respectively. These lesexpire in different periods through 2032, if ntiized. Such net operating losses consist oésxc
tax benefits from employee stock option exercisesteave not been recorded in the Company’s deféasedssets. The Company will record
approximately $4.6 million of the gross Califormiat operating loss as a credit to additional paicaipital as and when such excess tax benefits are
ultimately realized. The Company acquired additiove operating losses through the acquisition e@line. Utilization of these acquired net
operating losses in a specific year is limited ttuthe “change in ownership” provision of the Im&rRevenue Code of 1986 and similar state
provisions. The net operating losses presentedeatoo\federal and state purposes are net of arty lgadation.

The Company has federal and state research antbdewent tax credits carryforwards of approximat®lyl 8,000 and $1.2 million,
respectively. The research and development taxtaadyforwards expire in different periods thréw@033 for federal purposes and have an unlin
carryforward period for state purposes. The Com@aso has federal therapeutic drug tax credityéarward of approximately $244,000 that will
expire in 2031. Furthermore, the Company has féadéternative minimum tax credits of approximat8g74,000 that can be carried forward
indefinitely. Certain tax credit carryovers areibtitable to excess tax benefits from employeekstption exercises and have not been recordectin th
Company'’s deferred tax assets. The Company widrce§1.2 million of the above Federal credit an8%800 of the gross California credit will be
recorded to additional paid in capital as and warh excess tax benefits are ultimately realized.

Valuation allowances are reviewed each period tax gurisdiction by jurisdiction basis to analyzéether there is sufficient positive or
negative evidence to support a change in judgntemitahe realizability of the related deferred éssets. Based on this analysis and considering all
positive and negative evidence, we determinedahatuation allowance of $783,000 should be reabetea result of uncertainty around the utilize
of certain state net operating losses and a bopkimment loss on the Company's investment in AdistiSeiences as it is more likely than not that a
portion of the deferred tax asset will not be ==diin the foreseeable future. The valuation alleeaincreased by $364,000 from the prior year
primarily due to uncertainty around the utilizatioihcertain state net operating losses.

The accounting for uncertainty in income taxes gaized in an enterprise’s financial statementsqgiless a recognition threshold and

measurement attribute for the financial statemeobgnition and measurement of a tax position takesxpected to be taken in a tax return, and the
derecognition of tax benefits, classification oa Halance sheet, interest and penalties, accountingerim periods, disclosure, and transition.
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11. Income Taxes (continued)

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoointinrecognized tax benefits is as follows (inubands):

As of
May 26, 2013 May 27, 2012 May 29, 2011
Unrecognized tax benefits — beginning of the period $ 76€ % 76C % 86¢
Gross increases — tax positions in prior period 103 1 28C
Gross decreases — tax positions in prior period — (D) (310
Gross increases — current-period tax positions 12¢ 24¢ 75
Settlements — — =
Lapse of statute of limitations — (240 (15%)
Unrecognized tax benefits — end of the period $ 99¢ % 76€ $ 76C

As of May 26, 2013, the total amount of net unretpgd tax benefits is $1.0 million, of which, $8000, if recognized, would affect t
effective tax rate. The Company accrues interegtpgmalties related to unrecognized tax benefitsiprovision for income taxes. The total amouf
penalties and interest is not material as of May22d.3. Additionally, the Company does not expecunrecognized tax benefits to change mate
within the next twelve months.

Due to tax attribute carryforwards, the Compangubject to examination for tax years 1997 forwandU.S. tax purposes. The Compan
also subject to examination in various state juciszhs for tax years 1998 forward, none of whickrevindividually material.

12. Commitments and Contingencies

Operating Leases

Landec leases facilities and equipment under opgraase agreements with various terms and camditiwvhich expire at various dates
through fiscal year 2019. Certain of these leas®g warious renewal options.

The approximate future minimum lease payments utidese operating leases, excluding land leasé4apa®6, 2013 are as follows (in
thousands):

Amount

FY2014 $ 2,13¢
FY2015 1,73(C
FY2016 1,421
Fy2017 1,13¢
FY2018 554
Thereafter 35C

$ 7,32¢

Rent expense for operating leases, including mtmnthonth arrangements was $4.8 million, $1.5 millimd $1.2 million for the fiscal years
2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Capital Leases

There was no equipment under capital lease agrdaeraeNlay 26, 2013.

Employment Agreements

Landec has entered into employment agreementsceithin key employees. These agreements providddse employees to receive

incentive bonuses based on the financial performancertain divisions in addition to their annbake salaries. The accrued incentive bonuses
amounted to $548,000 at May 26, 2013 and $526,00Map 27, 2012.
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12. Commitments and Contingencies (continued)
Purchase Commitments

At May 26, 2013, the Company was committed to paseh$2.2 million of produce during fiscal year 2@i4ccordance with contractual
terms at market rates. Payments of $9.5 millioneweade in fiscal year 2013 under these arrangements

Loss Contingencies
As of May 26, 2013, the Company is not a partyrp legal proceedings.
13. Employee Savings and Investment Plans

The Company sponsors a 401(k) plan which is avigifebsubstantially all of the Company’s employdemdec’s Corporate Plan, which is
available to all Landec employees (“Landec Plaallpws participants to contribute from 1% to 50%twdir salaries, up to the Internal Revenue
Service (IRS) limitation into designated investmimids. The Company matches 67% on the first 6%ribarted by an employee. Participants are at
all times fully vested in their contributions. TB®@mpany's contribution vests annually over a faearyperiod at a rate of 25% per year. The Company
retains the right, by action of the Board of Dimst to amend, modify, or terminate the plan. kodl years 2013, 2012 and 2011, the Company
contributed $939,000, $789,000 and $720,0@3pectively, to the Landec Plan.

14. Business Segment Reporting

The Company manages its business operations thitbugg strategic business units. Based upon tbention reported to the chief
operating decision maker, who is the Chief Exeeu@ificer, the Company has the following reporta@gments : the Food Products Technology
segment, the Food Export segment and the Hyalurbaaed Biomaterials segment.

The Food Products Technology segment markets arid ppecialty packaged whole and fresh-cut fruit eegetables, the majority of which
incorporate the BreatheWay specialty packagingtferretail grocery, club store and food servicesigtry. In addition, the Food Products Technology
segment sells BreatheWay packaging to partnensdiosvegetable products. The Food Export segmerdistsrof revenues generated from the
purchase and sale of primarily whole commoditytfesid vegetable products to Asia and domestic@lig. HA-based Biomaterials segment sells
products utilizing hyaluronan, a naturally occugripolysaccharide that is widely distributed in éxtracellular matrix of connective tissues in both
animals and humans, for medical use primarily ew@phthalmic, Orthopedic and Veterinary marketsaAssult of the sale of Landec Ag to
INCOTEC and the termination of the Monsanto Agreenie fiscal year 2012, the Company has eliminatedTechnology Licensing segment and
combined the remainder of that business into thp@ate segment. As a result of this change, tgmeat information for fiscal years 2012 and 2011
has been reclassified to conform with the curreatryclassification. Corporate licenses Landec’sniat Intellicoat seed coatings to the farming
industry and licenses the Company’s Intelimer pa@ysrfor personal care products and other indugir@ucts. The Corporate segment also includes
general and administrative expenses, non-Food Etedi@chnology and non HA-based Biomaterials istérecome and income tax expenses.
Beginning in fiscal year 2013, the Food Productshfelogy, the Food Export and the Hyaluronan-b&iethaterials segments include charges for
corporate services and tax sharing allocated fl@rCiorporate segment. All of the assets of the Gmyare located within the United States of
America.
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14. Business Segment Reporting (continued)

The Company’s international sales were as follawsn(llions):

Taiwan

Indonesia

Canada

Belgium

Japan

All Other Countries

Operations by segment consisted of the followingibusands):

Fiscal Year Ended May 26, 2013
Net sales

International sales

Gross profit

Net income (loss

Identifiable assets
Depreciation and amortization
Capital expenditures

Dividend income

Interest income

Interest expense

Income tax expense

Fiscal Year Ended May 27, 2012
Net sales

International sales

Gross profit

Net income (loss

Identifiable assets
Depreciation and amortization
Capital expenditures
Dividend income

Interest income

Interest expense

Income tax expense

Fiscal Year Ended May 29, 2011
Net sales

International sales

Gross profit

Net income (loss

Identifiable assets
Depreciation and amortization
Capital expenditures
Dividend income

Interest income

Interest expense

Income tax expense

May 26, 2013 May 27, 2012 May 29, 2011
$ 31.C $ 220 % 21.2
$ 21.C % 23.C $ 20.z
$ 27.¢ % 20.8 3 18.4
$ 166 $ 15€6 $ 16.7
$ 10 $ 111 % 8.4
$ 256 % 21 $ 18.¢
Hyaluronan-
Food Product based
Technology Food Export Biomaterials Corporate TOTAL
$ 320,44 $ 78,56¢ $ 4128. $ 1412 $ 441,70¢
$ 2753: $ 78,44: $ 26,79: $ — 3 132,76t
$ 37,077 $ 527/ $ 19,10: $ 1,307 $ 62,76(
$ 20,52t $ 1,66C $ 6,83t $ (6,439 $ 22,58
$ 180,10: $ 21,737 $ 80,94( $ 8,161 $ 290,94:
$ 4761 $ 4 $ 237¢ $ 151 % 7,29t
$ 559t $ — % 3,19C $ 89 $% 8,871
$ 1,128 $ — 3 — 3 — % 1,12¢
$ 42 % — 3 137 $ — % 17¢
$ 1,707 $ — 3 301 % — % 2,00¢
$ 3,39¢ $ 33¢ % 1,400 $ 431¢ $ 9,452
$ 207,58. $ 71,48 $ 34,28: $ 4,20z $ 317,55:
$ 20,52¢ $ 71,05 $ 22,90 % — 3 114,48t
$ 25237 $ 490 $ 17,99 % 4,007 $ 52,13¢
$ 17,527 $ 2,26¢ $ 7672 $ (14,779 $ 12,69¢
$ 169,54. $ 18,42 % 81,927 $ 7,79¢ $ 277,69:
$ 3,191 $ 7 $ 224: % 181 $ 5,621
$ 249t % — $ 2,79t % 75 % 5,371
$ 1,128 $ — % — % — 1,12¢
$ 30 % — $ 12¢ 3 21 % 18C
$ 17¢  $ — % 751 % — 92¢
$ — 3 — $ — % 7,18t $ 7,18¢
$ 175,66: $ 61,66: $ 32,50 $ 6,897 $ 276,72¢
$ 18,58( $ 61,21: $ 24,02¢ % — % 103,81¢
$ 18,88¢ $ 3,901 $ 17,23 % 6,67t $ 46,69¢
$ 8,20C $ 1617 $ 727¢  $ (13,179 $ 3,92(
$ 88,24 $ 16,32( $ 83,95 $ 17,797 $ 206,31:
$ 3,17 $ 8 $ 197 $ 15¢ $ 5,31:
$ 3,62( $ — 3 2811 $ 247 % 6,68¢
$ 326 $ — % — % — % 32¢
$ 12¢ 3 — 3 164 $ 137 $ 43C
$ $ — $ 81 % — 3 82C
$ — % — % — % 4,181 $ 4,181
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15. Quarterly Consolidated Financial Infomation (unaudited)

The following is a summary of the unaudited quéytezsults of operations for fiscal years 2013, 2@hd 2011 (in thousands, except for per
share amounts):

FY 2013 1st Quarte 2dQuarte 3rd Quarte 4th Quarte FY 201z
Revenues $ 102,07 $ 114,65 $ 117,86° $ 107,117 $ 441,70¢
Gross profit $ 13,76: % 18,45¢ $ 17,50¢ $ 13,03 $ 62,76(
Net income $ 4,366 $ 891 $ 4,78¢ % 451¢ $ 22,58
Net income per basic she $ 017 $ 0.3t % 0.1¢ % 017 $ 0.87
Net income per diluted sha $ 017 $ 034 $ 0.1t % 017 $ 0.8t

FY 2012 1st Quarte 2ndQuarte 3rd Quarte 4th Quarte FY 201:
Revenues $ 73,301 % 8157( $ 80,06¢ $ 82,617 $ 317,55:
Gross profit $ 11,25 % 13,01 % 13,17 % 14,70¢ $ 52,13¢
Net income $ 1,81z $ 334 $ 4,765 % 2,77¢ % 12,69¢
Net income per basic she $ 0.07 $ 01 % 0.1¢ $ 0.11 $ 0.4¢
Net income per diluted sha $ 0.07 $ 0.1z $ 0.1t $ 0.11 $ 0.4¢

FY 2011 1st Quarte 2dQuarte 3rd Quarte 4th Quarte FY 2011
Revenues $ 64,95 $ 70,16¢ $ 73,50¢ $ 68,10 $ 276,72¢
Gross profit $ 11,817 % 11,85F % 12,477 $ 10,54¢ % 46,69t
Net income (loss $ 230 % 2,058 % 229% % 2,737 $ 3,92(
Net income (loss) per basic sh $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢ $ (0.10) $ 0.1%
Net income (loss) per diluted sh $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢ $ (0.10) $ 0.1%
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(b) Index of Exhibits.
Exhibit
Number: Exhibit Title

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of Registrant, incorated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to theifeant's Current Report
on Form 8-K dated November 7, 2008.

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Registrant, incepdrherein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Begit’'s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated October 18, 2011.

10.1 Form of Indemnification Agreement, incorporateddieby reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registm#thnual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended May 29, 2005.

10.2* Form of Option Agreement for 1995 Directors’ St&2gtion Plan, incorporated herein by reference thiltik10.4 to the
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for theéisyear ended October 31, 1996.

10.3 Industrial Real Estate Lease dated March 1, 1988dsn the Registrant and Wayne R. Brown & Bibbitsvidh, Trustees ¢
the Wayne R. Brown & Bibbits Brown Living Trust éat December 30, 1987, incorporated by referen&lbit 10.6 to
the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form(Bi& No. 33-80723) declared effective on Februk2y1996.

10.4* Form of Option Agreement for the 1996 Non-Execu®teck Option Plan, as amended, incorporated hésemeference to
Exhibit 10.16 to the Registrant’s Annual Reportkmrm 10-K for the fiscal year ended October 31,6199

10.5* 1996 Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan, incatgd herein by reference to Exhibit 10.17 toRkegistrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quaeteded April 29, 2001.

10.6* Form of Option Agreement for 1996 Amended and Redt&tock Option Plan, incorporated herein by esfee to Exhibit
10.17 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Faf¥Q for the fiscal quarter ended April 30, 1997.

10.7* New Executive Stock Option Plan, incorporated hebsi reference to Exhibit 10.30 to the Regis's Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended October 29,200

10.8* 1996 Non-Executive Stock Option Plan, as amendwdyporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3thé&Registrant’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year esh@xtober 28, 2001.

10.9* Employment Agreement between the Registrant angt Gabteele effective as of January 1, 2012, inoaged herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.35 to the Registrant’s €ntiReport on Form 8-K dated February 15, 2012.

10.10 Supply Agreement between the Registrant and Apésti-rtLC and the Growers listed therein, dated akilyf3, 2003,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.8heRegistrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K datdg 3, 2003.

10.11* 1995 Directors’ Stock Option Plan, as amended,rpm@ted herein by reference to Exhibit 10.53 sRegistrans Annua
Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended 2%, 2003.
10.12# License and research and development agreemergdretive Registrant and Air Products and Chemitradsdated March

14, 2006, incorporated herein by reference to Bxhih63 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on FA@AK for the fiscal
year ended May 28, 2006.
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Exhibit

Number: Exhibit Title

10.13* 2005 Stock Incentive Plan, incorporated hereindfgrence to Exhibit 99.1 to the Registrant's CurReport on Form 8-K
dated October 14, 2005.

10.14* Form of Stock Grant Agreement for 2005 Stock InsenPlan, incorporated herein by reference to Ex8i®.2 to the
Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated Qatdd, 2005.

10.15* Form of Notice of Stock Option Grant and Stock OptAgreement for 2005 Stock Incentive Plan, incoaier herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.66 to the Registrant’s Aalrireport on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended/N8, 2006.

10.16* Form of Stock Unit Agreement for 2005 Stock InceatPlan, incorporated herein by reference to ExXAiBi67 to the
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for thedisyear ended May 28, 2006.

10.17* Form of Stock Appreciation Right Agreement for 2@8t6ck Incentive Plan, incorporated herein by egiee to Exhibit
99.5 to the Registrant's Current Report on Formdatéd October 14, 2005.

10.20 Agreement and Plan of Merger between Landec Cotipara California corporation, and the Registralated as of
November 6, 2008, incorporated herein by referéadexhibit 2.1 to the Registre’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
November 7, 200¢

10.21* 2009 Stock Incentive Plan, incorporated hereindfgrence to Exhibit 99.1 to the Registrant's CurReport on Form 8-K
dated October 19, 2009.

10.22* Form of Stock Grant Agreement for 2009 Stock InsenPlan, incorporated herein by reference to Ex8i®.2 to the
Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated Gatdld, 2009.

10.23* Form of Notice of Stock Option Grant and Stock OptAgreement for 2009 Stock Incentive Plan, incoaier herein by
reference to Exhibit 99.3 to the Registrant's QatrReport on Form 8-K dated October 19, 2009.

10.24* Form of Stock Unit Agreement for 2009 Stock InceatPlan, incorporated herein by reference to Exi8i®i4 to the
Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated Gatdld, 2009.

10.25* Form of Stock Appreciation Right Agreement for 208®ck Incentive Plan, incorporated herein by egiee to Exhibit
99.5 to the Registrant's Current Report on Formdateéd October 19, 2009.

10.26 Stock Purchase Agreement by and among the Regigtiifetore Biomedical, Inc., Lifecore Biomedical,C and Warburg
Pincus Private Equity IX, L.P., dated April 30, 2Qincorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 16.the Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 5, 2010.

10.27 Credit Agreement by and between Lifecore BiomedicaC and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. dated April 30,120

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.thoRegistrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K défey 5, 2010.
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Number: Exhibit Title
10.28 Continuing Guaranty Agreement by and between ttgidRant and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., dated Apri| 3010,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.th®oRegistrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K déey 5, 2010.
10.29 Amendment No. 1 to the Credit Agreement by and betwLifecore Biomedical, LLC and Wells Fargo BaNkj. dated
10.30 August 9, 2010.
Amended and Restated License, Supply and R&D Agea¢ntated November 27, 2009 by and among the Ragflist
Landec Ag, LLC and Monsanto Company, incorporatedafierence to Exhibit 10.25 to the Registrant’sr€nt Report on
Form 8-K dated December 3, 2009.
10.31 Amendment No. 2 to the Credit Agreement by and betwLifecore Biomedical, LLC and Wells Fargo BaNkj. dated
Septemberl4, 2010, incorporated herein by referemEahibit 10.32 to the Registrant’s Current Reémor Form 10-Q for
the fiscal quarter ended August 29, 2010.
10.32 Share Purchase Agreement, dated February 15, BQEhd between Apio, Inc. and Windset Holdings 20D,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.thteoRegistrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K ddtelruary 18, 2011.
10.33* 2013 Cash Bonus Plan, incorporated herein by nefer&o the Registrant’s Current Report on Form @aked July 20,
2012.
10.34 Stock Purchase Agreement by and among Apio, Inee@.ine Holding Company and 2003 Riverside Cagitgireciatior
Fund, L.P ., dated April 23, 2012, incorporatecdeireby reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Registra@urrent Report on For
8-K dated April 27, 2012.
10.35 Loan agreements by and between the Registrant, Agioand General Electric Capital Corporatioredatpril 23, 2012,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibits 1Bribugh 10.9 to the Registrant’s Current Report om8-K dated May
27, 2012.
10.36 Credit Agreement and Reimbursement Agreement bybahwleen Lifecore Biomedical, LLC and BMO HarrisriBaN.A.
dated May 23, 2012, incorporated herein by refezeéadExhibits 10.1 and 10.2 to the Registrant’'sr€urReport on Form
8-K dated May 29, 2012.
10.37 Long-Term Incentive Plan, incorporated herein fgnence to the Registrant's Current Report on Rd#ndated July 31,
2013.
10.38 Employment Agreement between the RegistnatiiGregory S. Skinner effective as of JanuaB013, incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.37 to the Registrantisrént Report on Form-K dated December 10, 201
10.39+ Nonqualified Deferred Compensation P
211 Subsidiaries of the Registrant at May 26, 2013 State of Incorporation
Apio, Inc. Delaware
Lifecore Biomedical, Inc. Delaware
23.1+ Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing
24.1+ Power of Attorney — See signature page
31.1+ CEO Certification pursuant to section 302 of theb8aes-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2+ CFO Certification pursuant to section 302 of theb8aes-Oxley Act of 2002
32.1+ CEO Certification pursuant to section 906 of theb8aes-Oxley Act of 2002
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Number: Exhibit Title
32.2+ CFO Certification pursuant to section 906 of theb8aes-Oxley Act of 2002
101.INS** XBRL Instance
101.SCH** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema
101.CAL** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation
101.DEF** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition
101.LAB** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels
101.PRE** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation
* Represents a management contract or compensatamyoplarrangement required to be filed as an exhibthis repoi
pursuant to Item 15(b) of Form 10-K.
*k Information is furnished and not filed or a partofegistration statement or prospectus for puiposseections 11 or 12 of
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, is deeroefiled for purposes of section 18 of the Secessitexchange Act of
1934, as amended, and otherwise is not subjeihiity under these sections.
+ Filed herewith.
# Confidential treatment requested as to certainiguest The term “confidential treatment” and the ki@ as used

throughout the indicated Exhibit means that matéda been omitted.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registhas duly caused this Report on F
10-K to be signed on its behalf by the undersigiieereunto duly authorized, in the City of MenlalR&tate of California, on August 6, 2013.

POWER OF ATTORNEY

By: /s/ Gregory S. Skinner
Gregory S. Skinne
Vice President of Finance and Administrat
and Chief Financial Officer

LANDEC CORPORATION

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each perso whose signature appears below hereby constitutesid appoints
Gary T. Steele and Gregory S. Skinner, and each dhem, as his attorney-infact, with full power of substitution, for him in any and all
capacities, to sign any and all amendments to thiReport on Form 10K, and to file the same, with exhibits thereto andther documents ir
connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchage Commission, hereby ratifying and confirming oursignatures as they may be signed

our said attorney to any and all amendments to sai®eport on Form 10-K.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exadmge Act of 1934, this Report on Form 10- Kas been signed by the followir

persons in the capacities and on the dates indicate

Signature
/s/ Gary T. Steele

Gary T. Steele President and Chief Executive @ffand Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Gregory S. Skinner

Gregory S. Skinner Vice President of Finance adthiuistration and Chief
Financial Officer (Principal Financial and Accourgi

Officer)
/sl Nicholas Tompkins
Nicholas Tompkins Chairman of the Board of Apiug.land Director
/s/ Robert Tobin
Robert Tobin Director
/s/ Duke K. Bristow, Ph.D
Duke K. Bristow, Ph.D Director
/sl Frederick Frank
Frederick Frank Director
/s/ Stephen E. Halprin
Stephen E. Halprin Director
/sl Steven Goldby
Steven Goldby Director
/s/ Richard Dean Hollis
Richard Dean Hollis Director
/sl Catherine A. Sohn
Catherine A. Sohn Director
/sl Tonia Pankopf
Tonia Pankopf Director
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August 6, 2013

August 6, 2013

August 6, 2013

August 6, 2013

August 6, 2013

August 6, 2013

August 6, 2013

August 6, 2013

August 6, 2013

August 6, 2013

August 6, 2013




EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit
Number Exhibit Title

10.3¢ Nonqualified Deferred Compensation P
23.1Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing
24.1Power of Attorney. See signature page.
31.1CEO Certification pursuant to section 302 of theb8aes-Oxley Act of 2002.
31.z2 CFO Certification pursuant to section 302 of theb&aes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.1 CEO Certification pursuant to section 906 of theb@aes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.2 CFO Certification pursuant to section 906 of theb&aes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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Exhibit 10.39
LANDEC CORPORATION
NONQUALIFIED DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN
Section 1. Purpose of Plan and Participation in the Plan.

The purpose of this Plan is to provide specifieddfiés to non-employee members of the Board of @aes (the “Board”) of Landec Corporation, a
Delaware corporation (“Landec” or “Company”), amse executives identified by management and apprby the Board who contribute materially
to the continued growth, development and futurertass of Landec success and its subsidiaries, Apio(“Apio”) and Lifecore Biomedical, Inc.
(“Lifecore™), that participate in this Plan (colliaeely, “Eligible Participants”). This Plan shalehunfunded for tax purposes and for purposes & Tit
of ERISA. This Plan is intended to comply with afiplicable law, including Code Section 409A, andlldbe operated and interpreted in accordance
with this intention.

All Eligible Participants are eligible to defer BaBay, Bonus and cash Board fees under the Plandition, the Compensation Committee of the
Board (the “Compensation Committee”), may providat tCompany contributions may be made to the Riathe benefit of a Participant under the
terms and conditions as may be specified by thegemsation Committee, in any manner the Compens&donmittee deems appropriate; provided,
however, that any such contribution shall complthvBection 409A of the Code.

Section 2.Definitions.

2.1 Base Paypneans the annual base salary rate of cash comjmengatemployees on the U.S. payroll of Landecleding Bonuses, incentive
compensation, commissions, overtime pay, sevenaagments, shift differential, payments under thadex Disability Plan or any other additional
compensation.

2.2 Base Pay Deferral Accoumieans the sub-account of the Deferral Accountitithides (i) the sum of amounts credited to Pgudiot’'s Base Pay
Deferral Account under Section 4, plus (i) amowredited (net of amounts debited) in accordandk all the applicable crediting provisions of this
Plan that relate to the ParticipaBase Pay Deferral Account, less (iii) all digttibns made to the Participant or his or her Bamaiy pursuant to th
Plan that relate to the Participant's Base Pay maféccount.

2.3 Beneficiarymeans the person or persons designated by a Panigursuant to Section 8, in accordance wittPhe and accepted by the
Committee, to receive any amounts payable undéerldmein the event of the Participant’'s death.

2.4 Bonusshall have the same meaning as an "award" asrdletidche Company’s short-term and long-term boplasis which provides an annual
bonus compensation opportunity to Eligible Emplasyas defined by the Compensation Committee frora tortime. Bonus does not include any s
incentive compensation or commission or any otfeeus plan not mentioned herein.




2.5 Bonus Deferral Accoumteans the sub-account of the Deferral Accountitightides (i) the sum of amounts credited to Paréiot's Bonus Deferr:
Account under Section 4, plus (ii) amounts cred{tezt of amounts debited) in accordance with a@lapplicable crediting provisions of this Plan that
relate to the Participant’s Bonus Deferral Accolegs (iii) all distributions made to the Partiaipar his or her Beneficiary pursuant to this Rilzet
relate to the Participant’s Bonus Deferral Account.

2.6 Change in Controheans the occurrence of any of the following:

(i) the consummation of a merger or consoiaadf the Company with or into another entity ay ather corporate reorganization if more
than 50% of the combined voting power of the caritig or surviving entity’s securities outstandingmediately after such transaction is
owned by persons who were not stockholders of thrafgany immediately prior to such transaction;

(i) the sale, transfer or other dispositioratifor substantially all of the Company’s assets;

(iii)  the direct or indirect sale or exchangeaigingle transaction or series of related traimasby the stockholders of the Company of more
than 50% of the voting stock of the Company to arelated person or entity if more than 50% of thmbined voting power of the surviving
entity’s securities outstanding immediately aftectstransaction is owned by persons who were nckBblders of the Company immediately
prior to such transaction; or

(iv) acomplete liquidation or dissolution oktiCompany.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, a transaction oreseof related transactions shall not constitu@@hange in Control unless it or they also
constitute a change in the ownership or effectivgiol of a corporation, or a change in the ownigrsiia substantial portion of the assets
corporation within the meaning of Section 409At¢ Code and the guidance promulgated thereunder.

2.7 Codameans the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as améraiedime to time.

2.8 Committeeneans the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Finah@ifficer of Landec or other persons designatethbyChief Executive Officer
and/or Chief Financial Officer.

2.9 Deferral Accountneans the account balance of a Participant in ldre éd?eated from Deferred Amounts, any Companyrdmrtions, and the
Earnings thereon prior to a payout to the Partitipa




2.10 Deferred Amourntheans the amount the Participant elects to hawereef from Base Pay and/or a Bonus, pursuant tioBeg, or cash Board fe
the Participant elects to have deferred or Comgamyributions.

2.11 Disabilitymeans the Participant is, by reason of any megid@terminable physical or mental impairment tteat be expected to result in death
or can be expected to last for a continuous pesfatbt less than 12 months, either (i) unable age in any substantial gainful activity or
(ii) receiving benefits under the Landec Disabiltan for a period of not less than three months.

2.12 Earningsneans the deemed return on investment (or chargevestment loss) allocated to a Participant’'s BreleAccount, based on the return
of the Investment Options.

2.13_Eligibility Pay Thresholdheans the amount defined in Section 401(a)(1Mefode, as adjusted by the Secretary of the Tngasder Section
415(d) of the Code, in effect on January 1st ofdlendar year for which amounts are to be deferred

2.14 Eligible Employeeneans an employee on the U.S. payroll of Landeolss@lidated Group who has a Base Pay rate plusBauming the year in
which the election is made as specified in Seci@gual to or in excess of the Eligibility Pay Té$tield and who Landec notifies is eligible to
participate in the Plan.

2.15 Employemeans Landec or any of its affiliates as determinmeder Treasury Regulation § 1.409A-1(h)(3).
2.16 ERISAmeans the Employee Retirement Income Security At®@4, as amended from time to time.

2.17 Investment Optionseans one or more of the investment funds seldstéde Committee from time to time in accordancthv@ection 5.2.

2.18 Landecneans Landec Corporation, a Delaware corporation.

2.19 Landets Consolidated Groumeans Landec, Apio and Lifecore.

2.20 Participanimeans any individual who has a Deferral Accounteuritde Plan or who is receiving or entitled to reedenefits under the Plan.

2.21 Payout Commencement Dateans the date upon which a payment to a Particgfan amount credited to his or her Deferral Agudfirst
commences.

2.22 Performance Based Compensatimans, as defined in Section 409A, compensatioartieint of which, or entitlement to which, is cagent ot
the satisfaction of pre-established organizatienahdividual performance criteria relating to afpemance period of at least 12 consecutive months.
Organizational or individual performance criterie aonsidered pre-established if established itingrby not later than 90 days after the
commencement of the period of service to whichctiiteria relates, provided that the outcome is wriglly uncertain at the time the criteria are
established. At the time of the deferral electiargrder for the election to be in compliance witbde Section 409A, (i) the Participant must perform
services continuously for the period beginning lua later of the first day of the performance pewothe date the performance criteria are estadish
and ending on the date of election with respetitégperformance based compensation and (i) treti@etemust not be made after the amount of the
performance based compensation becomes reasorsablyaanable. There may be a performance basedasgngontribution whereby participants
may earn an employer paid performance based catitibevery three (3) years based on attainmeobgforate performance metrics to be establi:
prior to each 3-year performance period.




2.23 Plammeans the Landec Corporation Nonqualified Defe@ethpensation Plan.
2.24 Retiremenmeans the Participant has reached age sixty-fiedi6has, from the date of hire, ten (10) or marars of service with the Company.

2.25 Separation from Serviceeans a separation from service within the meaoirigeasury Regulation § 1.409A-1(h). A Participahall not be
deemed to have separated from service if the Reatitcontinues to provide services to an Emple@gem annual rate that is fifty percent or more of
the services rendered, on average, during the inatedyl preceding three full years of service whk Employer (or if employed by or providing
services to the Employer less than three year$, lesser period); provided, however, that a sejparéitom service will be deemed to have occurred if
a Participant’s service with an Employer is reduiedn annual rate that is less than twenty peraktite services rendered, on average, during the
immediately preceding three full years of servigdhwhe Employer (or if employed by or providinggees to the Employer less than three years,
lesser period).

2.27 Tax or (Taxegheans any federal, state, local, or any other gowental income tax, employment tax, payroll taxgis tax, or any other tax or
assessment owing with respect to amounts defeargdiEarnings thereon, or any payments made tocRetits or Beneficiaries under the Plan.

Section 3. Timing and Amounts of Deferred Compensation.
Participants shall make elections to participatthePlan, as follows:

3.1 Base Pay Deferrals

(a) Timing of Base Pay DeferraWith respect to a deferral of Base Pay, an eladth defer Base Pay must be made before Deceniber 3uch

earlier date established by the Committee, of #iendar year preceding the calendar year with tdpevhich the services associated with such Base
Pay are performed, and in accordance with procedes&blished by the Committee. Base Pay defdeeti@ns shall be irrevocable on the December
31 of the calendar year preceding the calendarwihrrespect to which such election pertains,umhsearlier date as Landec determines in its
discretion. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a nevgible Participant may make an initial deferralatien by the date the Committee specifies after the
individual receives enrollment materials; providedwever, that such initial deferral election shelmade no later than the 30th day after the
individual becomes a Patrticipant.




(b) Amount of Base Pay Deferralhe percentage that will be deferred from BagefBaa Participant is determined as follows:

(i) The Participant will elect an annual percemetég be deferred from Base Pay. The maximum arparabntage of Base Pay that may be deferred
each calendar year is equal to fifty percent (56%ihe amount of Base Pay.

(ii) The percentage will be converted into an antquer pay period to be deferred and adjusted asssacy.
3.2 Bonus Deferrals

(a) Timing of Bonus DeferralA Participant may elect to defer Bonuses thatadormance Based Compensation; provided, howsueh election
shall not be made later than six months prior éethd of the applicable performance period and slegiion shall be irrevocable as Landec detern
in its discretion as reflected in the election foiotwithstanding the foregoing, a new Eligible Haoyge may make an initial bonus deferral election
by the date the Committee specifies after the iddal receives enrollment materials; provided, hesvethat such initial deferral election shall be
made no later than the 30th day after the indidideaomes an Eligible Employee and the election ordy apply to compensation paid for services
performed after the election.

(b) Amount of Bonus DeferralThe maximum amount of any Bonus a Participant defgr in any calendar year is 100% of any sharrte
performance Bonus to which he or she may beconieentThe Deferral Amount must be expressed imteof a whole percentage point. Once an
election is made by an Eligible Employee to defer portion of a Bonus, the appropriate dollar amauiili be withheld from the Bonus when this
amount would have otherwise been paid.

3.3 Cash Board Fee Deferrals

(a) Timing of Cash Board Fee Deferr&tarticipants must make an election to defer b Bamrd fee no later than: (i) December 31, or attier date
established by the Committee, of the calendar gesreding the calendar year with respect to whiehservices associated with such cash fees are
performed, and in accordance with procedures éshegal by the Committee, or (ii) the 30th day after individual first becomes an Eligible
Participant and the election may only apply to cengation paid for services performed after thetielecCash Board fee deferral elections shall be
irrevocable on the December 31 of the calendar yesreding the calendar year to which such elegt@tains, or such earlier date as Landec
determines in its discretion and as reflected énetection form.




(b) Amount of Deferral of Cash Board Fee% Participant may defer any portion, up to 10@¥&any cash Board fee to which he or she may become
entitled, so long as the deferral amount is exekes terms of a whole percentage point; provitedyever, if the percentage results in a fractional
share, the amount deferred shall be rounded upetogarest whole number. Once an election is madeHarticipant to defer any portion of cash
Board fee, the appropriate amount will be withHfeton the cash Board fee when the fee would haveretise have been distributed.

3.4 Company ContributionsNotwithstanding anything provided in this Sect®or otherwise in the Plan to the contrary, then@ittee, to the extent
authorized by the Compensation Committee, shak lthe discretion to provide that Company contriimgimay be made to the Plan for the benefit of
a Participant under the terms and conditions asheagpecified by Landec, in any manner Landec degpeopriate; provided, however, that any such
contribution shall comply with Section 409A of tBede. Additionally, performance based Company doutions may be made to the Plan for the
benefit of a Participant and as further describadien Section 2.22 above. All Company contributiora/ be made subject to vesting conditions. In the
event the Company contributions are made subjegtgting conditions, any unvested Company contidbstshall become fully vested upon a Change
in Control or upon the Participant’s Separatiomfr8ervice due to death, Disability or Retirement.

Section 4. Crediting of Deferral Accounts.

Amounts deferred pursuant to Section 3 shall bditere to a Deferral Account in the name of the iegrant. Deferred Amounts arising from deferrals
of Base Pay shall be credited to a ParticipantseBRay Deferral Account at least quarterly. Defem@sulting from amounts credited to a Particifsant
Bonus Deferral Account from the deferral of Bonuskall be credited to a Bonus Deferral Accountamssas practicable after such Bonus would
otherwise have been paid. Deferrals resulting famnounts credited to a Participant’'s Deferral Acadtom the deferral of cash Board fees shall be
credited to a Participant’s cash Board fees Defférraount, as appropriate, as soon as practicdi@e such fees would otherwise have been paid. The
Participant’s rights in the Deferral Account stz no greater than the rights of any other unselogeeeral creditor of Landec. Deferred Amounts and
Earnings thereon credited hereunder shall forwabpses be part of the general funds of Landec.gayput to a Participant of amounts credited to a
Participant’s Deferral Account is not due, nor sieh amounts ascertainable, until the Payout Coroemeent Date.

Section 5. Earnings on the Deferral Account.

5.1 Crediting in GeneralAmounts in a Participant’s Deferral Account vii# credited at least quarterly with Earnings wuith amounts are paid out
to the Participant under this Plan as set fortBention 6. All Earnings attributable to the DefeAacount shall be added to the liability of anthired
therein by Landec. Any such addition to the liapiihall be appropriately reflected on the books @atords of Landec’s Consolidated Group and
identified as an addition to the total sum owedRhaeticipant.




5.2 Investment OptionsThe Committee shall from time to time selectliheestment Options available for investment dedigneby the Participants
with respect to Deferral Accounts. The Committeallstotify Participants of the type of Investmernt@ns selected from time to time. At the time of
deferral, each Participant shall designate, putsiagorocedures established by the Committee,rthestment Options for which the Participant’s
Deferral Account will be to be invested in for pages of determining the Earnings to be crediteatidabDeferral Account. In making the designation
pursuant to this Section 5.2, the Participant npecsy that all or any percentage of his or herddefl Account be deemed to be invested, in whole
percentage increments, in one or more of the Invest Options provided under the Plan as commurddaben time to time by the Committee.
Effective as of the end of any business day, adiaaht may change the designation made undefSthision 5.2 pursuant to procedures established by
the Committee. If a Participant fails to elect amdstment Option under this Section 5.2, the Comeitvill recommend a default investment option.

5.3 Investment DirectionsAlthough the Participant may designate the Inwestt Options, the Committee shall not be bounditest such amount in
any specific fund which is selected as an Investr@guion and shall have no liability to Participsufdr failure to so invest. The Committee shalest
from time to time, in its sole discretion, commatlyi available Investment Options of the investmigpes determined from time to time by the
Committee. The Committee may from time to time ceddternate Investment Options in addition tororaplacement of Investment Options previo
selected. If the Committee selects alternate Imvest options to replace an Investment Option preshioselected by the Participant, the Participant
shall be notified to change their investment degigm to a different Investment Option and if thertizipant fails to timely make such change, the
Participant’s investment designation to a repldoggéstment Option shall be substituted with an gtweent designation to an equivalent alternate
Investment Option. The balance in a Participangéeral Account shall increase or decrease in cttiorewith the performance of the Investment
Option funds selected by the Participant.

Section 6. Payout Commencement Dates

6.1 Commencement and Form of Payotlihe form and commencement of benefit shall beeniiadccordance with the Participant’s electiothat
time of deferral and this Section 6.1.

(a) Distribution upon a Specified Payment Year

(i) A Participant may elect to receive paymiain his Deferral Account upon a specified paymgar to commence no sooner than three
(3) years after the calendar year to which therdaifein the Deferral Account relate. If a Partanip's Deferral Account election provides for
distributions based on the occurrence of a specifaayment year, in such year, the Deferral Accajrt(tributable to such election shall be distiéout
to the Participant in a lump sum or in annual ilhstants not to exceed a ten (10) year period asifpeé on the Participant's Deferral Account elewti
form.




(i)  After the time of the initial deferral,Rarticipant may subsequently elect to delay theifipd payment year to which his or her defer
in a Deferral Account relate. Such a subsequermrddfelection shall be made in the manner presdrily the Committee; provided that any
subsequent deferral election must (i) be madeaat 2 months prior to the originally scheduledctjEl payment year, (ii) set a new specified
payment year which is at least five (5) years afteroriginally scheduled payment year; and (id) be effective for at least twelve (12) monthegaft
the date on which the subsequent deferral elecdiomade.

(i) In the event the value of any Participarideferral Account for a particular specified paytngear is equal to or less than the Internal
Revenue Code Section 402(g) limit, the Deferrald\ot shall be distributed in cash in a lump sunwitbstanding the Participant's election to have
his or her Deferral Account distributed in instadinis under the Plan. The Deferral Account(s) dfelfalued on the date a distribution is processed.
All payments and deliveries due under this Sedidifa) shall be made by January 31 of the speqiféatinent year, provided, however, that if the
Participant’s Separation from Service occurs piaathe specified payment year for any Deferral Actothe Participant’'s Deferral Account shall be
paid to him in accordance with Section 6.1(b) below

(b) Distribution upon Separation from Servitfea Participant does not elect to receive paynfiemh his Deferral Account(s) upon a specified pagime
year or in the event the Participant’'s SeparatiomfService occurs before such specified paymeant, ygon the ParticipastSeparation from Servic
the Deferral Account(s) attributable to such DefeAccount election shall be distributed to thetiegrant in a lump sum. A Participant, at the tiofe
deferral, may also elect to receive payment oDx@gerral Account(s) in annual installments notxceed a ten (10) year period as specified on the
Participant's Deferral Account election form. e #avent the value of any Participant's DeferraloAett as of his or her Separation from Service is
equal to or less than the Internal Revenue CodgdBet02(g) limit, the Deferral Account shall bestlibuted in cash in a lump sum notwithstanding
Participant's election to have his or her Defeatount distributed in installments under the PlEme Deferral Accounts shall be valued on the date
distribution is processed. Additionally, in the ev&eparation from Service occurs prior to Retinetnthe Deferral Account shall be distributed istt
in a lump sum notwithstanding the Participant'stéd@ to have his or her Deferral Account distrémlitn installments under the Plan. All payments
deliveries due under this Section shall be mad®mprmmence within 60 days following the first dayttisasix months following the Participant’s
Separation from Service.

(c) Distribution upon DeathUpon the death of a Participant prior to the pagtof his or her Deferral Accounts, the balanckisfor her Accounts
shall be paid to the Participant's Beneficiary lnrap sum as soon as administratively practicahléno more than sixty (60) days following the date
of the Participant's death; provided that, if sabtty-day period ends in the taxable year followihg year in which the Participant's death occies,
Beneficiary shall not have the right to designateyear of payment.

(d) Distribution upon Disability Upon the Disability of a Participant prior to thayment of his or her Deferral Accounts, the bedaof his or her
Deferral Accounts shall be paid to the Participard lump sum with such payment to be made as as@iministratively practicable, but no more 1
within sixty (60) days following the date on whittie Participant becomes Disabled; provided that,éh sixty-day period ends in the taxable year
following the year in which the Participant beconigsabled, the Participant shall not have the rigldesignate the year of payment.




(e) Distribution upon Change in ContrdUpon a Change in Control of Landec, a Particijsduatl be paid the balance of his or her Deferaaunt in
a lump sum within sixty (60) days following the eain which the Change in Control occurs; provided,tif such sixty-day period ends in the taxable
year following the year in which the Change in Gohoccurs, the Participant shall not have thetrigtdesignate the year of payment.

() Distribution upon Separation from Service withuse In the event of a Participant’s Separation froem&e as a result of an involuntary
termination with “cause”, the Participant forfedtls unvested balances of his or her Company cartidhs account. For purposes of this Plan, “cause”
shall have the same meaning as in the Company'g 368k Incentive Plan or any successor equity atiopted by the Company and in effect at the
time of the Participant’s termination. The remagnbalances in any Deferral Account(s) held by tagi€ipant will be paid in the form of a lump sum,
pursuant to Section 6.1(b) above.

Section 7. Hardship Provision for Unforeseeable Emergencies.

Neither the Participant nor his or her Beneficiargligible to withdraw amounts credited to a DedkAccount prior to the time specified in Sectir
However, such credited amounts may be subjectrtp wé&hdrawal if (1) an unforeseeable emergencyuss that is caused by a sudden and
unexpected illness or accident of the Participduat Participant’s spouse, the Beneficiary or obpahdent (as defined in Section 152 of the Code
without regard to Section 152(b)(1), (b)(2) or (d}B)) of the Participant, loss of the Participantroperty due to casualty, or other similar
extraordinary and unforeseeable circumstancesigras a result of events beyond the Participaotrol, (2) such circumstances would result in
severe financial hardship to the individual if gaxiithdrawal is not permitted, and (3) any othequieements established under the Code and
regulations promulgated thereunder, are satisfieskvere financial hardship exists only when allestreasonably available financial resources have
been exhausted, including but not limited to (Inkrsement or compensation by insurance or otlserv(®) liquidation of the Participant’s assets, to
the extent that liquidation of such assets woulditself cause severe financial hardship, or (3seéion of deferrals under the Plan. Examples aftwh
are not considered to be unforeseeable emergenclage the need to send a Participant’s childoitege or the desire to purchase a home.

The Committee shall have sole discretion to deteemihether to approve any withdrawal under thidi8ed, which amount will be limited to the
amount necessary to meet the emergency. The Cosemitdecision is final and binding on all interelsparties. A Participant who is then serving as a
member of the Committee shall not vote on whetlnerod he or she is eligible for such a withdrawadler this Section 7.




Section 8. Designation of Beneficiary.

The Participant shall, in accordance with proceslestablished by the Committee, (1) designate @fB®sry hereunder, and (2) shall have the right
thereafter to change such designation. No Benefidasignation shall be effective unless it is nitiwg or in the form and manner determined by
Landec, and provided to the appropriate persoraatiéc prior to the Participant’s death. In the acdseParticipant’s death, payment due under this
Plan shall be made to the designated Beneficigringhe absence of such designation, by will erldws of descent and distribution in the
Participant’s state of residence at the time ohiser death.

Section 9. Limitation on Assignments.

Except to comply with a domestic relations orddirgkl under Treasury Regulation § 1.409A-3(j)(3)@ienefits under this Plan are not subject to
anticipation, alienation, sale, transfer, assigninaledge, encumbrance, attachment or garnishnbgntseditors of the Participant or the Participant’
Beneficiary and any attempt to do so shall be void.

Section 10. Administration.

10.1_Administration by CommitteeThe Committee shall administer the Plan. Notvighding any provision of the Plan to the contraxymember of
the Committee shall be entitled to vote on any ematthich would create a significant risk that saedmber could be treated as being in constructive
receipt of some or all of his or her Deferral Acoburhe Committee shall have the sole authorityterpret the Plan, to establish and revise rutes a
regulations relating to the Plan and to make ahgrodeterminations that it believes necessary wisatlle for the administration of the Plan, prodde
that, with respect to any provision hereof thauiegs the Committee to obtain the authorizatiothefCompensation Committee or is otherwise
dependent upon action by the Compensation CommitieecCommittee’s determination shall be subje¢h&approval of the Compensation
Committee. Decisions and determinations by the Citimenshall be final and binding upon all partiesjuding shareholders, Participants,
Beneficiaries and other employees. The Committeg adetegate its administrative responsibilitiesitaieems appropriate.

10.2 Claims and AppealsThe claims and appeals provisions for the Plarsat forth in the summary to the Plan that is i to Participants.

10.3_Books and Record8ooks and records maintained for the purposa@Pian shall be maintained by the officers andleyags of Landec at its
expense and subject to supervision and contrdieCommittee.

Section 11. Rabbi Trust.

A rabbi trust (the "Trust") may be established@mection with the Plan. In such case, Landectrélisfer the Participants' deferrals to the Trike
Trust will be irrevocable and will terminate on tharlier to occur of (i) all funds having been dizited from the Trust, or (ii) the date all obliigas
under the Plan have been satisfied. The TrustproNide that the assets of the Trust will be distied only to or for the benefit of the Participaat
their Beneficiaries unless the insolvency provisiofithe Trust apply. Landec will appoint an indegent trustee for the Trust and will enter intowest
agreement, in form and substance acceptable ©©dhenittee, with the Trustee. The Committee shadictehe initial independent trustee.
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Section 12. Amendment and Termination of the Plan.

Landec, by action of the Committee, in its solediion may suspend or terminate the Plan or revisemend it in any respect whatsoever; provided,
however, that amounts already credited to Deféxcabunts will continue to be owed to the Particiggaor Beneficiaries and will continue to accrue
Earnings and continue to be a liability of LandBElee Committee may, in its discretion, terminate Pten in accordance with Section 409A of the C
and the regulations promulgated thereunder, forraagon including a Change in Control. Participant8eneficiaries will be given notice prior to the
discontinuance of the Plan or reduction of any Benprovided by the Plan. Notwithstanding any othevision of the Plan, Landec may without
Participant or Beneficiary consent amend the Ptachange the Plan’s administrative rules and procegior modify the terms of a deferral election to
comply with Section 409A of the Code.

Section 13. Tax Withholding.

Landec’s Consolidated Group may withhold Taxes feom cash payment made under the Plan, any Boanoplarrangement, owing as a result of
any deferral or payment hereunder, as Landec dapprepriate in its sole discretion. If, with respicthe pay period within which a deferral or
payment is made under the Plan, the Participaeives insufficient actual cash compensation to ceueh Taxes, then Landec’s Consolidated Group
may withhold any remaining Taxes owing from theedefd amount or Participant’s subsequent cash cosagien received, until such Tax obligation
is satisfied, or otherwise make appropriate arraveges with the Participant or Beneficiary for satision of such obligation.

Section 14. Applicable Law.

This Plan, and all rights under this Plan, shalitterpreted and construed in accordance with ERE&applicable, and, to the extent not preempted,
the law of the State of California, unless otheenstated in the Plan. This Plan is intended to ¢pnamd shall be interpreted as necessary to cgmply
with Section 409A of the Code and the regulatiomsrpulgated thereunder. Any provision of the Plaat th noncompliant with Code Section 409A is
void or deemed amended to comply with Code Sed@9A. Landec does not guarantee or warrant thedagequences of any payment under this
Plan and the Participants shall in all cases tdifor any taxes due with respect to the Plan.
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Section 15. Notice.

Any written notice to Landec required by any of gvevisions of this Plan shall be addressed takief executive officer of Landec or his or her
delegate and shall become effective when it isivede

Section 16. No Employment Rights.

Nothing in the Plan, nor any action of Landec parguo the Plan, shall be deemed to give any pesgmight to remain in the employ of Lan’s
Consolidated Group or affect the right of Landetetmninate a person’s employment at any time andrfig reason.

Section 17. Severability of Provisions.

If any particular provision of this Plan is fourallte invalid or unenforceable, such provision shatlaffect any other provisions of the Plan, Inet t
Plan shall be construed in all respects as if sudlid provision had been omitted.

Section 20. Execution.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Landec has caused this Pldretduly adopted by the undersigned this __th day of , 2013, effective as of August 1,
2013.

Landec Corporation

By:
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Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRbgistration Statement (Form S-8 Nos. 333-109889;89368, 333-62866, 333-06163, 33803,
333-80313, 333-52339, 333-129895 and 333-16392@ipiang to the Non-Plan Stock Option, 1996 Stogkin Plan, New Executive Stock Option
Plan, 1995 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, 1995 tome&tock Option Plan, 1996 Stock Option Plarg6lBlon-Executive Stock Option Plan, 1988
Incentive Stock Option Plan, 2005 Stock IncentilenRnd 2009 Stock Incentive Plan of our reportedi&ugust 6, 2013, with respect to the
consolidated financial statements of Landec Cotmrand the effectiveness of internal control duesincial reporting of Landec Corporation,
included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for thear ended May 26, 2013.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLP

San Francisco, California
August 6, 2013



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS

I, Gary T. Steele, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKandec Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notadomny untrue statement of a material fact or eaonttate a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstancesuwtieh such statements were made, not misleaditigrespect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts,other financial information included in thisnaal report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfie periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure controls and procedures (as defined ir
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) amuriat control over financial reporting (as definedxchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15
(f) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and proceduries éiesigned under our supervisi
to ensure that material information relating to tégistrant, including its consolidated subsidisyrie made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period inigh this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finah@gorting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggifte reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@iedeaccounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantelaisire controls and procedures and presentedsingiport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and prores] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in theéstegnt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registramtourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annyabrg that has materially affected, or is reasondikély
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal trmh over financial reporting; and

5. The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | have discloskdsed on our most recent evaluation of internafrobover financial reporting,
the registrant’s auditors and the audit committeth@ registrant’s board of directors (or persoedgrming the equivalent function):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradofinancial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisigability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significésin the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: August 6, 201
/sl Gary T. Steele
Gary T. Steelt
President and Chief Executive Offic




Exhibit 31.2

I, Gregory S. Skinner, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKandec Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notadormtny untrue statement of a material fact or eaonittate a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstancesuwtieh such statements were made, not misleaditigrespect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
financial condition, results of operations and cisWs of the registrant as of, and for, the pesipdesented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officers arate responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) amuriat control over financial reporting (as definedxchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15
(f) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to tégistrant, including its consolidated subsidisirie made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period ihigh this report is being prepared,;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finah@gorting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggiite reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallygiedeaccounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantaassire controls and procedures and presentedsimgiport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proes] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regigtsanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth dilsguarter in the case of an annual report) thatnhaterially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal tmhover financial reporting; and

5. The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | have discloskdsed on our most recent evaluation of internalrobover financial reporting,
the registrant’s auditors and the audit committeth@ registrant’s board of directors (or persoedgrming the equivalent function):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesiethe design or operation of internal contradiofimancial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regigigability to record, process, summarize and refivancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significémin the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: August 6, 2013

/sl Gregory S. Skinne

Gregory S. Skinner
Vice President of Finance and Administrat

and Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Landec Qugtion (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the periedding May 26, 2013 as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on theldaeof (the “Report”), |, Gary T. Steele, Chief Exgve Officer and President of the Company,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adoptedyant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2€6&;

(1) The Report fully complies with thejterements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SemsiExchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Retfairly presents, in all material respects, timaficial condition and result of operations of the
Company.

Date: August 6, 2013

/sl Gary T. Steele

Gary T. Steelt

Chief Executive Officer and Preside
(Principal Executive Officer)

The foregoing certification is being furnishealedy pursuant to Section 906 of the SarbaDekey Act of 2002 (subsections (a) and

of Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title 18, Unitedt&aCode) and is not being filed as part of therFdd-K or as a separate disclosure
document.



Exhibit 32.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Landec Qugtion (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the periedding May 26, 2013 as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on theldaeof (the “Report”), I, Gregory S. Skinner, Vieeesident and Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 135G dmpted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-OxlepA2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with thejterements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SemsiExchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Retfairly presents, in all material respects, timaficial condition and result of operations of the
Company.

Date: August 6, 2013

/sl Gregory S. Skinner

Gregory S. Skinne
Vice President and Chief Financial Offic
(Principal Accounting Officer)

The foregoing certification is being furnishedlely pursuant to Section 906 of the SarbaDeley Act of 2002 (subsections (a) and

of Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title 18, Unitedt&aCode) and is not being filed as part of therFdd-K or as a separate disclosure
document.



